
1 

 

April 8, 2025 

 
YANKTON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

  7:00 P.M. 

Call Meeting to Order 

Roll Call 

Approve Minutes from previous meetings 

Items to be added to Agenda 

Approval of Agenda 

Conflict of Interest Declarations 

Reorganize Commission 

 

7:05 P.M. 

Michels Road and Stone – Conditional Use Permit 

Applicant is Requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a Temporary construction facility in an AG 

(Agriculture) District. Applicant wishes to construct a Concrete batch plant to supply the SDDOT US 

HWY 81 construction project per Article 5 Section 507, Article 18 Section 1805, and Article 19 Section 

1905. Said property is located at the South half of the Northwest Quarter (S2 NW4) and the West half of 

the Southwest Quarter (W2 SW4) excluding the South Eight hundred fifty-eight feet (S858') of the 

Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter (SW4SW4) EXC 3A W/HIWAY and excluding Lot H2 of 

Government Lot One (1) in the Northwest Quarter (NW4) and Government Lot Two (2) in the Southwest 

Quarter (SW4)and  excluding TRACT One (1) JONES Addition in the Southwest Quarter of the 

Southwest Quarter (SW4SW4) and Excluding part of Lots One and two (1 &2) of  Hackberry addition in 

the South half (S2) all in Section six (6) Township Ninety-four (T94), Range Fifty-five (55) West of the 

5th P.M., Yankton County, Yankton, South Dakota. E911 address is 30344 US HWY 81, Yankton, South 

Dakota. 

 

7:10 P.M. 

Central Specialties, Inc – Conditional Use Permit  

Applicant is Requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a Temporary construction facility in an AG 

(Agriculture) District. Applicant wishes to construct a Temporary portable crushing and HMA plant site 

for road Construction per Article 5 Section 507, Article 18 Section 1805, and Article 19 Section 1905. 

Said property is located at the Southeast Quarter, Excluding Lot H1 and excluding Lot 6 Sun Valley 

Subdivision in Section two (2) Township Ninety-four (94) North, Range Fifty-six (56) West of the 5th 

P.M., Yankton County, Yankton, South Dakota. E911 address is 30344 US HWY 81, Yankton, South 

Dakota. E911 address is 30371 439th Ave, Yankton. 

 

7:15 P.M. 

Public Hearing on proposed ordinance changes 

  

7:20 P.M. 

Plats  

Slowey - Plat of Tract 2 of Yaggie’s Addition in the N1/2 SE1/4 of Section 35, Township 94 North, 

Range 56 West of the 5th P.M., Yankton County, South Dakota containing 665,600 S.F (15.28 acres more 

or less)     

 

7:25 P.M. 

Public Comment 

       

 Cheri Loest   Sam Hummel  Lauren Nelson 

 Mike Welsh   Chris Barkl  

 Don Kettering   Dan Clark  

AGENDA



1 
 

MEETING (ENTITY):  PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR OR SPECIAL MEETING: Regular 

DATE: 3/11/2025 TIME: 7PM LOCATION:  COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

  
STAFF ATTENDANCE: Conkling/Vetter 

ROLL 
CALL: 

☒ BARKL ☒ LOEST ☒KETTERING ☒ HUMMEL ☐NELSON ☒WELSH ☒CLARK  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: MOTION BY: Welsh SECOND BY: Loest 

PLANNING: ☒ BARKL ☒ LOEST ☒KETTERING ☒ HUMMEL ☐ NELSON ☒WELSH ☐CLARK 
  
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: MOTION BY: Loest SECOND BY: Hummel 

PLANNING: ☒ BARKL ☒ LOEST ☒KETTERING ☒ HUMMEL ☐ NELSON ☒WELSH ☐CLARK 
 
 
 

Change – remove Schmidt plat from agenda 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Kaddatz Plat 

ADDRESS/LEGAL: Plat of Kaddatz Addition, in the W1/2 of the SW1/4 of Section 3, T95N, R56W of the 5th P.M.,  

Yankton County, South Dakota 

COMMENTS: None 

 

  

MOTION: Approve as presented 
Passed 6-0 

APPROVAL: MOTION BY: Loest SECOND BY: Welsh 

PLANNING: ☒ BARKL ☒ LOEST ☒KETTERING ☒ HUMMEL ☐ NELSON ☒WELSH ☒CLARK 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Schmidt Plat 

ADDRESS/LEGAL: Plat of Parcel A in Tract 1 of Schmidt’s 4th Addition, in the SW1/4 of Section 13, T94N, 

R56W of the 5th P.M., Yankton County, South Dakota 

COMMENTS:  

MOTION: Removed from agenda 

APPROVAL: MOTION BY:  SECOND BY:  

PLANNING: ☐ BARKL ☐ LOEST  ☐KETTERING ☐ HUMMEL ☐ NELSON ☐WELSH ☐CLARK 
 
 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion on proposed ordinance changes 

ADDRESS/LEGAL:  



2 
 

COMMENTS: None 

MOTION: Recommend moving to Public Hearing in April 
Passed 6-0 
 

APPROVAL: MOTION BY: Hummel SECOND BY: Loest 

PLANNING: ☒ BARKL ☒ LOEST ☒KETTERING ☒ HUMMEL ☐ NELSON ☒WELSH ☒CLARK 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Comment 

ADDRESS/LEGAL:  

COMMENTS: None 

MOTION: Adjourn 
Passed 6-0 

APPROVAL: MOTION BY: Loest SECOND BY: Hummel 

PLANNING: ☒ BARKL ☒ LOEST ☒KETTERING ☒ HUMMEL ☐ NELSON ☒WELSH ☒CLARK 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  

ADDRESS/LEGAL:  

COMMENTS:  

MOTION:  

APPROVAL: MOTION BY:  SECOND BY:  

PLANNING: ☐ BARKL ☐ LOEST ☐KETTERING ☐ HUMMEL ☐ NELSON ☐WELSH ☐CLARK 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  

ADDRESS/LEGAL:  

COMMENTS:  



3 
 

MOTION:  

APPROVAL: MOTION BY:  SECOND BY:  

PLANNING: ☐ BARKL ☐ LOEST  ☐KETTERING ☐ HUMMEL ☐ NELSON ☐WELSH ☐CLARK 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  

ADDRESS/LEGAL:  

COMMENTS:  

MOTION:  

APPROVAL: MOTION BY:  SECOND BY:  

PLANNING: ☐ BARKL ☐LOEST ☐KETTERING ☐ HUMMEL ☐ NELSON ☐WELSH ☐CLARK 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  

ADDRESS/LEGAL:  

COMMENTS:  

MOTION:  
 

APPROVAL: MOTION BY:  SECOND BY:  

PLANNING: ☐ BARKL ☐ LOEST ☐KETTERING ☐HUMMEL ☐ NELSON ☐WELSH ☐CLARK 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  

ADDRESS/LEGAL:  

COMMENTS:  

MOTION:  

APPROVAL: MOTION BY:  SECOND BY:  

PLANNING: ☐ BARKL ☐ LOEST ☐KETTERING ☐ HUMMEL ☐ NELSON ☐WELSH ☐CLARK 



4 
 

 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  

ADDRESS/LEGAL:  

COMMENTS:  

MOTION:  

APPROVAL: MOTION BY:  SECOND BY:  

PLANNING: ☐ BARKL ☐ LOEST ☐KETTERING ☐ HUMMEL ☐ NELSON ☐WELSH ☐CLARK 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  

ADDRESS/LEGAL:  

COMMENTS:  

MOTION:  
 

APPROVAL: MOTION BY:  SECOND BY:  

PLANNING: ☐ BARKL ☐ LOEST ☐KETTERING ☐ HUMMEL ☐ NELSON ☐WELSH ☐CLARK 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  

ADDRESS/LEGAL:  

COMMENTS:  

MOTION:  

APPROVAL: MOTION BY:  SECOND BY:  

PLANNING: ☐ BARKL ☐ LOEST ☐KETTERING ☐ HUMMEL ☐ NELSON ☐WELSH ☐CLARK 
 



Yankton County Planning Commission 

Yankton County Board of Adjustment 

Applicant Michels Road and Stone 

District type: � AG O R l-Low O R2-Moderate O R3-High O C-Comm. 

□LC-Lakeside Commercial D RT-Rural Transitional

CUP needed: 
� Section 507 D Section 607 D Section 707 D Section 807 

� Section 1805 � Section 1905 

NOTE: 

Conditional Use Permit 

Applicant is Requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a Temporary construction facility in an AG 
(Agriculture) District. Applicant wishes to construct a Concrete batch plant to supply the SDDOT 
US HWY 81 construction project per Article 5 Section 507, Article 18 Section 1805, and Article 
19 Section 1905. Said property is located at the South half of the Northwest Quarter (S2 NW4) 
and the West half of the Southwest Quarter (W2 SW4) excluding the South Eight hundred fifty
eight feet (S858') of the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter (SW4SW4) EXC 3A 
W/HfW A Y and excluding Lot H2 of Government Lot One (1) in the Northwest Quarter (NW4) 
and Government Lot Two (2) in the Southwest Quarter (SW4)and excluding TRACT One (1) 
JONES Addition in the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter (SW4SW4) and Excluding 
part of Lots One and two (1 &2) of Hackberry addition in the South half (S2) all in Section six 
(6) Township Ninety-four (94) North, Range Fifty-five (55) West of the 5111 P.M., Yankton
County, Yankton, South Dakota. E911 address is 30344 US HWY 81, Yankton, South Dakota.

PC: Article 18 Section 1805 
BOA: Article 19 Section 1905 

Planning Commission date: 
4/8/2025 

Board of Adjustment date: 
5/6/2025 

Time: 
7:05 
PM 
Time: 
6:30 
PM 









Point 

Lat: 42.989644 Lon: -97.397537 

81 

CUP MANAGER 

Submitted by: Anonymous user 

Submitted time: Mar 3, 2025, 4:42:12 PM 

Esn Community Maps Contributors, Nebraska Game & Parks Comrrnss1on, South Dakota Game Fish and Parks,© OpenStreetMa.. Powered by Esn 

Longitude 

-97 .39849977 411939

Latitude 

42. 989577 43613377

Permit Number 

CUP2511 

Parcel Number 

06.006.300.110 

Permit Status 

Approved Active 

Permit Fee 

300 

Total Due 

300 



Was fee paid? 

Yes 

Receipt Number 

240108 

Planning Commission Action Date 

Apr 8, 2025, 7:05:00 PM 

Planning Commission Action Time 

7:05 PM 

Board Adjustment Action Date 

May 6, 2025, 6:30:00 PM 

Board_Adjustment Action Time 

6:30 PM 

Application Accepted By 

Bill Conkling 

Checked By 

BILL GARY 

Existing Zoning 

AGRICULTURE 

Affected Zoning Ordinance 

Article 5 Section 507 

Is location in floodplain? 

No 

Applicant Name 

Michels Road & Stone Inc. 



Applicant Phone 

5073694546 

Applicant Address 

817 Main street, Brownsville, WI 53006 

Applicant Email Address 

gcarlson@michels.us 

Owner Name 

Ralph Marquardt 

Owner Phone 

605-660-6970

Owner Address 

PO Box 1040 Yankton, SD 57078 

Owner Email Address 

cweatherton@hotmai I .com 

Property Address 

30344 US-81, Yankton, SD 57078 

Reason for Request 

The erection and use of a Temporary Concrete Batch Plant to supply the SDDOT USH-81 construction project for the 

months of Mid April- End of July. Uses will include laydown area for materials, aggregate stockpiling and equipment 

storage. 

Legal Description 

Mobile Concrete Batch Plant 

Date of Application Submission 

Mar 3, 2025, 12:00:00 PM 



Attachments: 

• tSignature-.jpg Applican 

SKETCH-.pdf 
PDF 

7MB 

OwnerSignature-.jpg 



81 

.. 

REVISIONS 

:;: ;:=:t:=:::::========:::::::: 
� t-----+---+----+-----< 
:;: 

otra[Off: 

BATCH PLANT LAYOUT PLAN 

25246472P- USH81 YANKTON, SD 

YANKTON COUNTY, SD 

MICHELS
®

ROAD & STONE, INC. 







March 24, 2025 

Applicant: 
Michels Road and Stone 
817 Main St. 
Brownsville, WI 53006 

NOTIFICATION 

Dear Yankton County Property Owner: 

The Yankton County Zoning Ordinance requires written notification describing a specific 

action be sent to the owners of real prope1ty lying within 2640 feet of the property on which 
the below described action is proposed. The notice shall be given to each owner of record 
by depositing such notice in the United States Post Office not less than 10 days prior to the 
hearing date. Therefore, you are hereby notified. Please take a moment to review the notice 
of public hearing described below. 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Notice is hereby given that a public hearing will be held before the Yankton County 
Planning Commission, Yankton County, South Dakota, at 7:05 P.M. on the 8th day of 
April, 2025 at the Yankton County Government Center, Commissioners Chambers, 321 
West Third St., Yankton, South Dakota. 

Said hearing is to consider the following: 
Applicant is Requesting a Conditional Use Pennit for a Temporary construction facility in an AG 
(Agriculture) District. Applicant wishes to construct a Concrete batch plant to supply the SDDOT 
US HWY 81 construction project per Article 5 Section 507, Article 18 Section 1805, and Article 
19 Section 1905. Said property is located at the South half of the Northwest Quarter (S2 NW4) 
and the West half of the Southwest Quarter (W2 SW4) excluding the South Eight hundred fifty
eight feet (S858') of the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter (SW4SW4) EXC 3A 
W/HfWAY and excluding Lot H2 of Government Lot One (1) in the Northwest Quarter (NW4) 
and Government Lot Two (2) in the Southwest Quarter (SW4)and excluding TRACT One (1) 
JONES Addition in the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter (SW4SW4) and Excluding 
part of Lots One and two (1 &2) of Hackberry addition in the South half (S2) all in Section six 
(6) Township Ninety-four (94) North, Range Fifty-five (55) West of the Yh P.M., Yankton
County, Yankton, South Dakota. E911 address is 30344 US HWY 81, Yankton, South Dakota.

The application may be reviewed at the Zoning Administrators office, Yankton County 
Government Center, 321 West Third St., Yankton, S.D. or online at the Yankton County 

Website. 

Sincerely, 
Michels Road and Stone 
Petitioner 



ANDERSON, ROGER D (D) 
212 RIVERSIDE DR 
YANKTON SD 57078 

BROWNE, PHILIP (D) 
120 HACKBERRY LN 
YANKTON SD 57078 

FRANK, MARK (0) 
116 DE CAZA DR 
YANKTON SD 57078 

HEINE FARMS (0) 
PO BOX 477 
YANKTON SD 57078 

MARQUARDT, RALPH (C) 
PO BOX 1040 
YANKTON SD 57078 

MURTHA, MISTY J (D) 
128 HACKBERRY LN 
YANKTON SD 57078 

SD DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION {D) 
NSPORTATION 
700 EAST BROADWAY AVE 
PIERRE SD 57501 

VELLEK, FRANK C {LE) (D) 
1010 APRIL LN 
YANKTON SD 57078 

BAKKE, DALE W (D) 
43992 304 ST 
YANKTON SD 57078 

DROTZMANN, JAMES (D) 
605 JAMES PL 
YANKTON SD 57078 

HALLA, GRANT (D) 
2900 OAKSIDE DR 
BRYAN TX 77802 

LCM PARTNERSHIP (D) 
44023 306 ST 
YANKTON SD 57078 

MARQUARDiRALPH(D) 
PO BOX 1040 
YANKTON SD 57078 

SCHROEDER, JOHN (D) 
101 SKY RANCH DR 
YANKTON SD 57078 

SPARKS, EARL R (D) 
30479 US HWY 81 
YANKTON SD 57078 

BROKEN ARROW LIVING TRUST {D) 
743 EAST US HWY 14 
SHERIDAN WY 82801 

EGGE, ALAN {D) 
44021 303 ST 
YANKTON SD 57078 

HALLA, GREGORY (D) 
415 COLORADO AVE #C 
CHULA VISTA CA 91910 

MARQUARDT FAMILY LTD PRTNRSHIP ( 
PO BOX 1040 
YANKTON SD 57078 

MARQUARDT, RALPH J (D) 
PO BOX 1040 
YANKTON SD 57078 

SD DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION (D) 
700 EAST BROADWAY AVE 
PIERRE SD 57501 

ULMER, AL E (D) 
43984 304 ST 
YANKTON SD 57078 



PAE$$ & DAKOTAN ■ FRIDAY, MARCH 28, 2025 

2010 Legal and Public 
Notices 

D11ed uus 28th a-1 or MArth 1015 

A'M'EST: Git')' Vcuc, • Oc�lop
mtnl Sc:rvw::u Dttc,ctor 

Pubti.lbed (WU • * tow approq
m.ate. cast of .S,,M.� ud can be 
\rtewaf me of tbuJc Id .. ww.Kl 
pubhCnolJC.d.COlU 

P\lbtlmc:d M11tt.h 28 � April 4, 
2025. 

"0'l1CE Of 1'1181,IC HEAR.l'iG 

NOUce is betcby &IYtn that • publJe 
hcanng wiU be held be.fort the 
Ylnkloll Cau.nty PlaminJ Cou:u:ruJ
Jton. YaoiJoq County. South Duo
LL It 7� P� N tbe Sdt day of 
Ai,nt. 2025 .. .,,. v..- c ... y 
GoYC:m.meat Ce.Mer. Commimoae,,. 
Cluunbco, 321 W,;1 Thud SL, 
Y1ntton, Soulh 01ko1a. 
Mlc�f, Road aad $1.l)M Ls Rt-qu�t 
1n, a Coodruoo.ilJ Utt Purnit ror • 
Te.mporuy ecutnactN>a bciht:, ID 
'" AO IAJPC,II01ttl Duuia. Appl, 
cut wbbcs to coa,o,,ct ,1 �  
b1uch plant to .NppJy ibe SDOOT 
us HWY 81 CONU\letion pro.)CCI 
per Article .S Sct1ion 507, Ankle UI 
Scclioa 180S. IDd Mk-Je 19 Senioo 
190$ Said propat)' II ICICM� Iii 1hr 
� bit! of tbe Nonb,mt Quans 
CS2 �'W•> _, Ille w.., liolf ol lhc 
s--... Qwnor (W2 SW4) ... 
c-Jud:1111 the S(x,(h Eist,1 bvruhd 
rlliy-<i&bt f .. , (S8581 or the South• 
wcat Quarter ot lbc Southwest Quar• 
tct (SW4SW4) 11.XC )A W/HIW/\Y 
aad uclodm1 Loi Hl ol Goftm.
- Loi 0.. 111 ,. the N
Qw,ne, (1''W4) ud Go""""''" Loi 
n.-o (l) iD lbe Soutln\•es.t Qoutc, 
(SW4),md <.<ch.tina TRACT One 
(I) JONES Addllion In tl>e South• 
wen Quarter of me Southwest Qua,• 
1a (SW..SW4) and E.tclodq p,r, 
of Lats Ont ud ...-o Cl &2J of 
H-.tbcny � 11 lbe. Soudli lt&l/ 
(S2) all in Scc11toa il.1- (6) Towmbip 
Nu�y.four (9-4) Nonb, Range Fifty. 
riYe (S.S) We,11 of the .Sth P.M , 
Yanboo CaanIy, Yank:100, South 
OOOCL £911 llddtm b 30344 US 
ll',ll'Y 81 .  Y aaboo. Soolb D>k<>la. 

NOl'ICE OF PI/BLIC HEARING 

Nodce is be.rcby alvto Wl a pobhc 
btaring wiU be htld before tho 
Y.utlon COIWt)' P1111nit11 Commii1• 
1aoll. Yanktoo C<,QQty. So8th DUD 
ta. ac 7:10 P.M.. ca lbe ldl dly of 
April. 2025 ■ Ibo YWJOa Coualy 
Oo\'enuncm Ccmer. Com.mis:s.ioaen 
Otambcn. 321 WeN Third SL, 
Yllllkloo, Soulh D1koc1. 
C.nlnl Sp,aaltles. loo. Is R,que.t
•IIC • COlldia.iouJ Ute Pmni.l (Of I 
Te-.,onry coutnactaoa &a.i.y ia 
u AO (Ag,Kulon� Dbcrict. Appll• 
cant wi.sbe$ IO CONUacl a Tempo, 
C'll)I ponablt CNstuna md t{.'\1.A, 
pl1n1 $.lte for I n)ad CODSb'UC'titm 
projca per ArtJC le S Sectioo 507. 
Miele 18 Sec- 180l, ud Ankle 
19 s«,;c,, l\lOS. Sold _.., d lo
-.d .. ... Soo- Q,,n<r. E<· 
� Loi HI IOd =ludiq Loe 6 
Sun Vlllley Subd1.,.11ioo 111 
Se<:lioo two (2) Towns.hip Nindy 
rour (94) North. Rona• FIJI),••!.< 
(l6) w .. , of Ibo Sib P .M-. Yankloo 
C"'""Y, YWIDO, Soudl DotOIL 
E9I I _, I, Jo371 439111 A,-. 
YWIOG. 

PubbJhed twb • the toll.I appro�
ma1c cost of $48J� and ean bo 
'nt:wtd free or chvp II WWW 5(1. 
pohlk:QOfjca,cOtJI 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

Y&llktori Tnnsn. Inc:. dba Soulbcui 
PublJc Tramll ..,. 1o apply for 
faod, ...sa - 5311 of Ille S.
f.:;e T� ANuuDoe ACI 
tor the oontiDDed operMiOII of I pm+ 
lie nmporw;ion projoct iD 0111 
County of SC>Ulb Dakot._ 

11w. DOQCe ortm � oppomuu1y 
llor a pabfoc bdri8', ..- ol 
.a-vice pn:,poAII o, OCll!IIDCuts � 
awdulc the pro,ec<. .........s po1, 
Uc or privtte tt'IDllt or pantranw 
provitkrs are iovl!cd to oommel'lt on 
thi.J proposal or 1®mi1 propo,a.lJ to 
provide thiJ �«'- � for I 
pubic � COCDalt"nQ or re:· 
qoe,,, for a copy o(SoutJ,oa,c N,, 
1,c Trwuit', p,-1 lhoold be di
recccd 10: Ylllklon Tram11. Inc. dbl 
Southtas Pubbc TtaM11, 901 £. 7th 
SL, Street Yankton. Sol.llh Otkota 
$7071! by April 30, 202$ 

hibhshed nriCI • tbc &CC.II appro:u 
m11t OOM cl $19.17 ud ua be 
� free or c:bArp at www.ad· 
pubbe:�.COUI 

!°!'�td M�b 18 & Apc-11 4, 

2010 L!gal and Pubfic 
Notices 

ot a MiDOJ Ould his t-ttn filed by 
S1cpha.DJe H.,-cty !he objec-1 I.lid 
prayer or whkh It to change their 
mlnor ctilld'1 name. from D«Lao 
MKbad Au,:� &: E,·1 Ann Austin 
to Dec.tu M,c-t..l Hardy & E,-.. 
,.,,,, lhnl}. °" .... Y' day "' """1-
?025. a1 the laour of 10-00 am tald 
Vmftcd �tlbon will be beard by 
1hl, Coun btfurc tht ffOOOfflble 
OaYid Knoff Pruldlna • •  , lhe Court 
Room \II tbe: Y1D.kl01.1 Counly Cow, 
booo<. Gey ol Yaokt00. Yaal;coe 
COIIM)'. Soldi 0111.ou. or a,. 1009 
lbtrt.al\a as II coe"� for c.bc 
COW\. A.Dy 1Dlien-:1oted pany may 
come aod •ppc&r 11 !bat tone' and 
show rt-a$0n,, lf any, •hy said nruu 
�hoold not be c.ba.natd u �tcd 
OIied tbjs IJ.., day ol M.ch. 20Zj 
M '"aokroc. South Dakota. 

ArrEST, 
Jody Jphnsop 
Clert olCoon 
By tf@kS sfs 

llopnJ, 

Publiihcd four IU11tl at the cotal Ip, 
pro�imi;ue cos.1 or S-8 J .Q,I. a.nd ciw be 
"tewed rrcc of cbuac at www id 
puMacb0Cic-e1:.i,.:orn, 

Publisllftl "•1'Th 21 & 21.. Aprll ..I 
& I J ,  2125. 

YANKTON COl/NTY 
COMMISSION MEETl.'10 

Mu<h 18, 20"J 

11,, n,p!M ,-,,. otlhe Y
Coaat:y Coa:imm;oa WU called to 
order by Cba.irmac Jotu, Maiquard1 
It 6.00 p.m.. oo Tut.day. Matt.h 18, 
2025. 

ftoU caJJ was &IMII •ilb the fol.low 
•• eomm,_,. ...,.._ Ryu 
Hnnc. Dan Kliauldl., Dea Kdla-• 
,qs, WIDda Ho-we)•Fol: IPd Jobo 
Mlnlaanlt. 

There wts:e oo cowUcu rcponcd by 
m,cnbcn ol the ,_d 

Acuoa 2:SSJC: A lllOllOII WU aade 
by f.oz qd t(!IC(IO(lod by Kllmnc• to 
1pproVc the mccun, -,et,da. All 
preSCIII vOled ayt. motion caaied, .S· 
0 

Tbe.re WU DO poN.JC con;IID(.al. 
Clwnnm M...,,i, dokd po1>1,<. 
, ........

Count)' Tru.surer P&.U)' Va"" •P
pe&red to infon:n tho boanJ th11 Gar• 
land �ltnOD It rtqUtu.i.ng a Tu 
f rtt.U: of hn 2024 real e.1Uile ti.let 
Vfffl $aid \tr ,-..,_ milKd dl,r 
- IO awl!' for the Tax Ftoc,.e 
Propam. Vnn laid MJ' Pemoa ro
ee1vcd the w fretu for IC"tnl 
)'CIU1 a.nd would h11vo quaJ.iek4 
•al.ill if be bad wbm.ietd tbc fonn 
ill MIC. Peanoo plac<d the IP}'llic'• 
..... """·• • fllo  ... ioraol.,_ 
..... -� 
Acuoa 2"$4C: A rnodoo- wu ...,_ 

�; =:
h 

.:'Ti:-;:,�� 
rneot for Gadand P� AD 
� voted •re. mouoo camtd.. ,_ 
0 

f..m,e:rgeoey MaD11ement Oin!a« 
Paul Sch<"""'11i' pro,6sccl ,_.,. 
on LEPC and LSMPO ,nci11 m.-

=: -:,(tiff:�:::i,:vuir: 
1<btiJ1 - - •- wil be 
<'-"a <CII � �._ 
Verizoi, 10 T-Mobale He $1:.id UICI 
Verizon bill tee.,. �till& mote U• 
ptodvc. Seherschllg1 also P.id Ibo 
('(Kl!lly was rccoe,ni.wd as a Storm� 
Read)' Commwuty by die Nation.:tJ 
w..- ScMce !NWS� Tbc bootd 
_.... .... , ....... ..-
Action 2".SC: A mOCJOI •-is aa:lc 
by fo, IIOd socoo<l,d by K-1111 
10 appro..,c I.be Mffl:h 4,,. � meet• 
iQI mioutu. VOW11 aye: Foi; � 
1,cb. K-.na ud � 
�r- -.....i. M..- � 4-

>.ctioo 2SS6C: A MOltOD "-'IS madf 
by Fox und seconded by Klimisicb IO 
lpprGYe d,c £0Uow10J ClalJDS; Com• 
mi,,� Clat11y Telecoo>. U.C 
(V1illuet) sso,o. ---· llR. 
U.C (Pro{ s.mo..) $�135 01; 
Soolll 00.U MIi< "- /\). 
,....,. (Uabilrty lnsuraou) 
S2,0S8 79: Yanktoa Couo1y Obscr--• 
er (Publisbllli) SJS0-64: Yonk1on 
Dally Pl"4 & l)o&ouo (PUblisillllJ) 
S4l8.72. IRS IOlll<r) $41.32; EJoc. 
-· Qoahllcd - -
1Surpil<$) $7481. Coon A,..,. S.,. 
tn,d lbn Hoopltal (Lab) 
S1.164 00; Blaclburu & slevena 
Prol. LLC (Pror Services) S97'l,4.2: 
Cen.ified Lan11.111cu 1.-ematio,;aat 

2010 L!gal and Pubffc 2010 L!gal and Pubffc 

==="--=�jfces�= 
Notices 

81Akcatd (M.111:1.1toan«) SJ.081.61 . (U111JUCS) $867'. Barco Mwuetpel 
State, AttorDC) Aodcncn Tckcorn. Pmduc.ts. Inc. ($1,1ppl1e.1) JS,793.96. 
LLC (lobintcllllJ'l<:c) $375.00: Sw\h Outlet MtathiDCt)' Co. (Mauic.c..
Oatota Publ..: Astcu-ancc AJliaace amce) $8.l96.88. NAPA Auto P.aru 
IL.ability IMutance) S1.211.22; ol Y.,,k,oo /M,1DWW1Cel S10097. 
Quahfi<d - S<mtt <Suppl•) NAPA A- ..... u/ y-.,,, !Slip
S91 115; Ooe Offlt< Solaboa (Sop- ph"I S13.74. C..uryu.t M,J,. 
pht:J) $2.&6.19. T'homwe Reuttt'I• lit.I) $79..31. IMEO Corp. (Brid$Cf) 
Wen tS\lpplJC$) $222.24. GoVf"m· 56.618 40: Duotl.luld Autoglau., 
mt.nt Center. Oanly Tclcc0m. U.C Inc. (Millntcnaocc) $16.95; ECHO 
1lhib1i,.) S25 25: Cullia>D (Sup- Electric Supply !Supplies) S19.60; 
pbe.1) $141..69; M1d·Amttican Re· ESRJ (Marn�naoce) Sl,050JIO. 
,....i, C!leoucaJ IS'l'!'hes) $10,I 37; N<w C--,. FS IH,pny Foci) 
s-ti 00.U N,t,,; ,._ /\J. St.799 S4. TI.C ,-.. !Suwla) 
1...... Cl,.w,l,ilJty """'-<) 1635.04; Sootll � !'IJblic M 
S}l,264.04: Fil'll Bankcvd (Sup-- wrmce Allu.,nce (1.J1b1hty ln5111"" 
pUct) $3.80; uny's Heat.ma & 111ce) $62,370.66; K &. M TIRl (Sup• 
CooHog (Maln1cnanc--e) $105.14, pUu) S8.7.31.)9; o·, Enlerprbe5, 
MJdAmmc"" En«&Y (lillliti<IJ Inc (Suppl!<,) S)l,7ROO: FeJf,r 
$991 II>. 01,oa·, Pl,.,c Tc<hnici... Pt'""""" & HubAc (Mau,<,-.) 
i�b.-U11Ce) S8' 00:: Yanboa "69 80: Finl Batalrd (Prof Ser 
W11UXbOG Co <�l \'!Ca, SlJl 1.j(). AtA Bu.h':MI 
S'6 70. DllfflOI' o( Equtl.a;auot. IMa.i.a,tet1111«) $661 71: Faitc!:NI II• 
Aodtn.en Tdeeom. U..C (Maurtc- d,mrial & Conuructioo Supply 
nance) S75.00, Cllf'11y TeJcc(Jffl, 1S11pplies) SQ l J8: At110 Vt.lt.1e 
LLC (Utilitlo) $191,$0: South (M11Ul1�} $1,437.67; Allto Val 
O.W.. Pub!,,; ......,.,,.. Alliaoc< u, (Suppii<s) S18.$8. ! Suu TN<k 
•Labdit} laaanlkc) SUl&.9'. Ccn.ta (Mau111t�c) Sl .332.66; I 
FINC llat<ald , Suppbe>) S6:US, s... Tnd C-, (Supphca) 
fnt Baakcan:I iEdlX'&ltca) $765.()(►. S(i07,.SO; Jcss,c:a·• Owtiia,c Sa-vice: 
M-.bclle Ooc.k:cr, (Travel) S,S2 00; Wt di tics) S60.00; Mnurd:s {MainlO
\Hcrofilrn lml.Jlne Systems (M�II• nArtCC} SSJ,S4; Mcnartfs (Supplict) 
ienanc•> s,2000. ciu,ur...i Pr<>M s122.io, MidAmerie,o En<<ar 
Service (Suppbu) $7.326 09. (Utillt1e.1) $1.19062: Yauwn 
SDACES (TB,.I) Sil 00: One Of County ()btcn,e, I� 
flee "°""""' c�.-....1 $14 00. SD Dq,o,1""°' o( T,_ 
$1S0.$4. R-1<r of Deeds: Clu,I)' - rBnd,es) Sl.5$4 6'. 
Tcltt.om. U.C ClJUlrties) Sl7lj,(). Southt:&.ilffll El«tric Compa,y 
Executi,·e Mana,cmcn1 Finaocc (Utllitics) $212 11; Truck Trailet 
(Supplic$) $Sl,OO: South Dakota Sales & Smite (Malnte.olUK'e) 
PubUc A.t.5u.rance A.lllance (Uabihl)' $1,641 .50; One Office Sow.lion 
lownoce) Sl.017.!2. Qualilied Pro ,s..,.1ia1 $141 08, Yaokcoo Duly 
- s.mc. cs.o.t,a) 549.33; Pmo a lluouo � 
SOACES (Trawd) $iS.()I); Vm.ru, S44 06� E9ll: Gokkawcst Tdecoa
Scn-tee omce. Otri1y Tc� � (lil1lJtles) SJ47,21; 
UC (Utilities) S25.2!, South o.l.o• OllM: Andmeo Telecom. LLC 
ta Public AJ.S\ll"'IDCO Allim:c (U•• ll,iainlenmcc) $8?.00; B·Y EJcctrlc 
blllt) I""'"'°"') $476.85; Ll!Af (Utiliti«) !6.1.00: N/\PA AUIO Pons 
(l\cntals) $59 76, Ooc Office Sol• of Yaolctoo (M>lott.-e) $52.98, 
- (M••-1 SIOJ6: s,t,cy ESRJ IM--•) $2.10000: 
c,.., S-., c..&)' Te-. Finl Baotanl (S,pplieo) SSU.14, 
LLC (lJuliuet) $$299; H ....... Plnl 11■,);,;w (Pio( Scr.;c:,t) 
Equipmecit (M.aJn\eOIOCO) $141.lJ; .S,OS.62; Fust Bankcard (Ma:tote
Oow Creek Mdlll, Inc. (Maitl1c,. nancc) $46,20, t..a.AP (Rcntalt.) 
1111ncc) $300.()(); City of Yaru:100 .Sl34.ll: MJdt:onllnc.111 Commwt.k► 
(Udl.itie&) S\6000, South Oak.OIi 11UM (llti)ities) Sl79..96; Tabor 
Pllblic """""'" Al1iooce (Llabilicy l.mlber Coop ($"'9hes) $227.47; 
'-<) S31.69) 74; - C<,m,ty B•ikllAp: /\..,_tio Boild 
a..t<ard (I>.__) S92.50. ,. c..trob -) 
Jobe,oo Cooaol� Inc 0-lllllte- SU91.00; "-i,er HoaciDg & Cool• 
oa.,..) Sl,146.ll; M..wd,(Maiolo- in, (MAlole...,..) Sl,oo:?.65; '1,0r/" 
n�) $4�.9S� MidAmerican Boer• Plu:iaion Klo!lk Tothnologi« (Prof 
&Y (Vtil,i<>) S3.428.!2; Uoiled Servlou) SI.SOO 00: � & PR Rind; 
La- lac. (Supplle,) Ooc Ofti<e Solllrloo (&,ppi,..) 
S91122: Sbcnlf. Kopcaky's A.e S61.01; Noo-Dq,onnxaw: Yuboo 
--. (Supplldl $12.Wc ,._ CouMy (hen.., IV- <=-y 
- Tdoooa,. U.C cc...po,e, Set· Duch) $4.08; Y-oa Daily Pn:■ 
VICC:S) $200.00; Cny or Yanktoai A Duou.a (YIID:k.101:I Couoly Oddi) 
(Fuel) $3,659.39: Quud;.., Alli"'« S6.24: Satelwe 'l'rlcki"i of l'\:,ople 
Technologies. Inc. (Mailllc.oana: flail Tnclcina Monitors) $6.SO; Su• 
Coo°"') $62.l.OO. Sow DwM• petCoa, loc. (Jail T..:kina MooJ. 
N>lic """"°"' /\lh-• (Ll>t,UJ<y ton) S123.50. Byroo Noa<'"'°"' 
-) $21,409 17; Tedder IA- (CAM Dally t..) S2J)07.00; 8)
......,.._ ILC IL.a• Ear.......,. Nogelmo<r (S- l'lrticipa>oa 
f.<tWpmatt) S149,70; l'odE> (Prvl Foes) S1.32•.00: $ootheut 1'1,bbc 
St,",'lOCI.) $22,ll; Qu&hfiod Prctort fraisportatiOQ (t>lvtNion Ezpense� 

:� ��"':
"'
ci��� g�;:\ i::.:,·:;.�:n:: 

IM.,.,,_,) 5661 94; Tn Mui, C0pioid """""") $1,143.50; lo 
lie< ........ o-c...-, � 1oc (C>fl!jd � 
•.:-= ;'����=·� Yao\;100 '11.l!y 1'lao • � -) $363.2.59 0 South Duou(N,ll,luog) SlQ,00: �•Y Jal. 0epanme,,1 or fi..,,... (Wa.sto Men Sacrod ll<an Ho,,j,ilal (Prof foca) $6,364.2$ S'oull> DakOUI � s.,;.ice,) S2.36013: ........ Tdo- -• ol �•ooe (ltOD Fees) m'; � J

6
s«

J'!i
"I' �:-•i;:> $1.680.00: Soolb Dotata ll<p,r,• 

• • • •111 al Rnuiuc (MSC Sa-vice-, (Su;,phc,) S6U.lj; �_r!� Sl,1 1 •. 6': Soolb OOOOI Dq,o,1, Cln>op-W'dlcocboo � ...,. o( Re,aiuo (Redfield S<r 
= a1�W� ;.,.:,� ,Ices) Slll/.00: SDACO (M & PR 
,.,..t S2.5.38;�i:,roallh, _U£ �1.,.�:•

2
=

°'

t 9� (Pro{ s..,,,...) SSS0.00: Wbhocy $138,879 19. � Mano ... Dell- IPlof Servio<s) 52.1 12.50: - $4.«1660 AU pma,c -
:!. llab<a

(Uab,
� "»:::.::; aye; moooo camod. 5-0 

S 11..157 IJO: )Cl, Sohni.... (Sup
pbe,) Sl,7lU•: 01,on', Pesc Tecb• 
oJcims (Maintell.ll'ICe) SIS.S.00: 
Pboenl.< Supply (Supplie<) $738.78: 
v-.. Rua11 llni1 Co- 1Pror s.... 
•icn) $619.17, Cxcoer. Oac Offioe
Solahoo (S,pplio,) $667.91; Jove, 
OJ.le. �bOQ: M.umehaha Coumy 
.klvcaile- DctcD1.1oa Ccotu (Rclllalt) 
$23,749.12; Pr>o, Rehd: Qoalif,od 
Pro'°" SeMU (Sllppilosl SI 15.39; 
Pubbc Hultli Nww Solllh OOota 
Pllbbc ......._. A_ n.,.i.t,cy  
la-) 519970; Ambulaoc< 
Cini)' Tdoeom. U.C (V1ili""'l 
$87.99; Boond Tn,e Medical, UC 
(Supplies) 5850,37: City of Yank.ton 
ISuppJie,) S1.28707: South OOOOI 
Public. � AU1ance (Llabihly 
"""'-'<) 5'.015 IO; Samd Heon 
lluJtli Semca C5"ppbe$) Sl.50: 
Finl 8am<an1 IS11PPbes) S337.01: 
Ptnt PIUclfd (Tn.vc.1) $727.61� 
flnt 8ankcanl (Prof $crviceo) 
!)2-00: LEAP (R<,.al,) $)70 08: 
Menn, (Suppllcol) Sl'1.n:Ohoa'1 
Par Tcdmic:I,_ �WIUCaaocc) 
SI 19 00; O'Rnlly ,._ Pam ('Malo
-) S10 99, M<•lally lhodi· 
e>ppod, SO /\cluevc dba Uf-., 
(Monthly Allounem) $120.00: Meo, 
tal Rlne$5. Board: V-3 LAnoo (Hear• 
i,.s) S4-8. 00. Kolm.ky Law Office.. 

ACLl<;>o 2S87l. A mobOo w.u made 
by Kllmi.sc:b I.lid accoodcd by Hel ne 
10 adop. lbe followin,: resoludOfl 
Wbtrcu 1t appun J� � 
18d Todd A. Ckaol,. CIWDCn of 
rc:cord, ban c:uted • � to be 
- "' the foll- ml propeny 
Kaddltz. Adl;btJon. WI/2. swu,. 
S«tioo l-9SN,56W, Ccwuy ol 
Yanktoo., S.O .. and MS subm.ltted 
,i,c.h plat to tbc. YWloo Co111My 
f'laulo& c.........,. 111d Yu!Ooo 
°"""Y c-,.,- for _...i. 
"'low � be. r, n=soi\"ed that 
,ueb plat bM brd uecuted accord· 
lfll 10 law and oooform.s 10 au c:Ost• 
lo, llppllcabtc .<on.Ina. subdi.•hion. 
erosion am1 JCChmem coatrol and "'°' iS "=by ,ppro,-ed. C
"°"""' "......., -ed ad di
rected IO eodotM OCI Jltlda I.be proper 
rtJOIDl:ioo ud ,ntify lhe YmC All 
pttlCOf V'Oled a,e; moc..oe earned. $-
0 

TI,, boon! ...._d the 1•au11>il11r 
o( dliu,ema or e.bawu,t1.q seq ..._... 
.. for -cik>)- � 
IChmdc.h Dad bcc-auic of Yan.boa 
CouJUy'S CWfflJI fln.ancjaJ silUMlOD, 
moyilg cmplo} oes IDOft lhan oo• 
tttp lhould be r«oniidcnd. Com• 
............ _ c.... .,. ··- - J 

2010 L!gal and Pub He 
Notices 

COt'urnl5s1onc.r Kelttnng �,thdrcw 
his motion. 

ACOOI 2.S91C: A mocioa was a.de 
by Heme ..., -- by K)um"" 
10 "'I""',.,.,, __ m>a1 dcpan 
GWIit heads for la)" employee Slc:p 
nues goina rorw.ud AU pruern 
vo1td a)c: m0uor1 a.med. 5..0 

The board ducwaJ i0lu.t1on1 10 4-
H £ncm10II 8iaakbc is.sucs. Com
_ 11< ... _.- ...,. 1o1. 
low .... adopc,I t-odl<S lhu .,.., 111d 
-.otk v,.idl -4-H leadc:n to seek com• 
p.nubtc �u-1joo1. -'·H Ludm 
Ratid)' Fn-tt.i lod Mary Fttdlcr al;o 
�poke durina the dUCUJ'l:IDft 

Ccmmu.sioecr M«ma, 1•� 1 �  
pon OD ., .. t,.IJ � ud 
,o&b of ibe nc-.l)' ftlrmed Yankton 
Count) financial planning I.Uk: 
forct 

Actloo l592AVD A lnDl>OD ,.M 
,_ by foi aod iecaadod by 
tkae '° �� dair A_.tot"1 
\40111:bly Sdlkmitnl w.'"ltb the Tttl 
JUrtt and Pooled Cash Rq.,on ,s of 
Pebruacy 202$ <;bowm.g Tow.I C8$h 
ofS9.7:k;,l7<J. 10 The Genet>! FUlld 
.-as "·"JZ.1506,. Spe.::W Fund! 
11-tte Sl.316.207 12. dd Tnut Mid 
A.Cncl' .._., •'m $1361.l206J 
lddt.PJ 10 1 GflDd Toul of Oeoeol 
1..cd&cr Cub lftd ln\'CSUncnu of 
Slf>,736,179 10 A dc1allod rc.pon. la 
on fllc with the COllnly Auditor. All 
p,ne.11 .,.ocCIII aye; modor, canied. 5 
0 

A.cooa. 2.S93AUO A IDOlioo. •• 
made by fo• IDII ""°"doll by 
lleUIC to approve the 202◄ 4th Q\w 
t« Ml Report A.JI preseot voccd 
aye: moriou canied.. S-0. 

Acbo. 2S94(:; A IIDOlto11 •-u aadc 
by Kliawd, ...,  - by -
10 appmve I propmy ID abal.cmt:QI 
of $2,038..Sl All prcu:nt vCACCI &)t, 
motion came4. $.0 

Tbc board dlscu,�d U&Ul8 Our 
Oov pRlp'aD fur budcd, pr,epan� 
UN,. No actioo -- cat.ca. 

There •• .1$ 00 pubUc c:om:me:aL 
Chairman Mwqu-.rdt closed pubUc 
commen1. 

CotlMDIMloact uc,date&: The Rod:·•· 
lhoo toadrmer for \1ut,, oa \\"bceb 
..... , I gral -.:«al wJCb 1it-Ycnl 

��=�:-=
d

CROSSWORD 
By THOMAS JOSEPH 

ACROSS 45 Hokey 
1 Gteen 46 Party 

strokes VIPs 
6 Must 

1 1  Still alr;e 
n a  
paintball 
battle 

12 Stay away 
• from 

13 Sailpture 
in 
Sl Peter's 

14 Chop 
finely 

15 Ballet 
attire 

17 Sets the 
price at 

18 Warring 
god 

20 Goat 
cheese 

22Clumsy 
one 

23 Aaptors' 
home 

26 Soccer's 
Lionel 

28 PaSSIOll 
29 Auns out 
31 Reseateh 

site 
32 Skating 

j� 
33 Reactor 

parts 
34 Schooner 

feature 
36 Ukraine's 

capital 
38 Useful 

skill 
40 Aival 
43 TAkP lh,o 

DOWN 
1 Young 

seal 
2 Numencaf 

prefix 
3 0.H. 

Lawrence 
book 

4 •_ 

And10n1· 
cus· 

5 Sports 
figure 

6 Sandwldl 
meat 

7 Ace, e.g. 
8 D.H. 

Lawrence 
book 

9 Clock 
sound 

10 Lofty 
poems 

PAGE 9 

201 o L!gal and Pub Re 
Notices 

IJied f'ot Apnl 22 202.S ai 9:30 Lro 
ComflU5:siooet Fox comffk!ntcd on 
ponibthty ot usln, ankk br.ittlcu 
Cor JU�'"('oile offcodc:n • ari al1.crm 
0\-(' 10 ba:ild&q I IC:W C01M11y Ju�« 
a.de ddcAuoe c.c:akr COCJ:lllll$$KlaC 
Hnnc lot.eel the poltDtal ccoaomK 
df«u rA cour11y rc:�tnCQOQ, on boa 
f.cdJtlCI. 
Aclion 2S95C: /\ mocion WH rude 
b)' fo( @d secoodtd by KJ.lmitch '° 
f«CM the rt&l!Llf �00 al 7:J, 
p• Md COG\CM iA eucarivc -· 
IIOa � duomla .  penomx-.J u..c 
"""""" IO SDCL 1-ll-l(I). /\U 
r VOied 1yc moflOft catTieJ. � 

Aaioo 2596C. A motlOO •1$ � 
by fox ..a ......i.J by K!im..,\ IO 
adJ('W'8 �.l«Vb\C _,.IOa Ill 3 )0 
p.m. ud ftlCOIIUN ID � ... 
JIOIL All pret;tnl YOted •)'C. rDOUOft 
camcd. i-0 

Act.ion 2597C A mot,oa was made 
by Fo. aod o«oodc<! by lkme to 
tn"111lmte • «IUU)' tmplo)-et be,, 
.- ol ...-_ All _ 
Youd ayr.. moti(IQ camc-d, 5-0 

Action 2598C: A mocion wu mMJe 
by fo:t .aJJd seconded by Klimisch tO 
ldJOUlll All prettot VOffl:1- •�; rao
uoo camtd. .s...o 

The OCI.I ITpiM mect.18.g �10 be 
T'unday. Apn.1 1. ?02.S • 6.00 pm 

John Ma,quudt, Cbalrman 
Ylllkloe C.ouni'1 Commissioo 

ATTEST. 
Patty Hoj,ml. Y•t• Ca.ery AIO 
,or 

Published Ol'l(c 1u the 1otaJ apptod• 
mlllL\ <'Oil of Sl83.S4 aod cao be. 
y,cv,cd he of clwae U WWW 1d 
pabbellDOCQ.COa 

Pubtl:shf'd Mart.b 28. 20?5 

W A L E I P R  I S  M S
I R  O N  I A E R I  A L
S E  C T  I S C  O T  T Y

P A  K I S T  A N •• 
- E R R  p I L O T
N U  D E S  S C  U B A
1 D 0 C O P
c o  U R T  F A  K E  S 
E N  T E  R A G  e-

- L A  B R  A D  O R
L A  R E  D 01 T O  G O
A T  O N  E II I E U  R O
G E  N T  R Y■ S T  E M

'Yesterday • answer 

16 Sl(y 
saucer 

18 Jerry 
Herman 
musical 

19 Pinnacle 
21 Historic 

periods 
23 Bike 

part 
24 Warty 

creature 
25 Balls 
27 "Sweet' 

age 

30 Caribou's 
kin 

33 Fab 
Four 
drummer 

34 Like the 
Ger. "de!" 

35 Regarding 
37 Casual 

assent 
39 Atte� 
41 Got 

together 
42 Word of 

accord 



Applicant 

Yankton County Planning Commission 

Yankton County Board of Adjustment 

Central Specialties, Inc - Conditional Use Permit 

District type: i:gi AG O Rl-Low O R2-Moderate D R3-High O C-Comm.

OLC - Lakeside Commercial D RT-Rural Transitional

CUP needed: 
i:gi Section 507 D Section 607 D Section 707 0 Section 807 

i:gi Section 1805 i:gi Section 1905 

NOTE: 

Conditional Use Permit 

Applicant is Requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a Temporary construction facility in an AG 
(Agriculture) District. Applicant wishes to construct a Temporary portable crnshing and HMA 

plant site for a road construction.project per Article 5 Section 507, Article 18 Section 1805, and 
A.Iticle 19 Section 1905. Said property is located at the Southeast Quarter, Excluding Lot H 1 and 
excluding Lot 6 Sun Valley Subdivision in Section two (2) Township Ninety-four (94) North, 
Range Fifty-six (56) West of the 5th P.M., Yankton County, Yankton, South Dakota. E9 l I 
address is 30371 439u, Ave, Yankton, South Dakota. 

PC: Article 18 Section 1805 
BOA: Article 19 Section 1905 

Planning Commission date: 
4/8/2025 

Board of Adjustment date: 
5/6/2025 

Time: 
7: JO 
PM 
Time: 
6:35 
PM 









Point 

Lat: 42.986267 Lon: -97.422917 

CUP MANAGER 

Submitted by: Anonymous user 

Submitted time: Mar 13, 2025, 1: 10:38 PM 

Esri Community Maps Contributors, Nebraska Game & Parks Comrniss1on, South Dakota Game Fish and Parks,© OpenStreetMa . . Powered by Esri 

Longitude 

-97 .42291714651893

Latitude 

42.98626683503167 

Permit Number 

CUP2512 

Parcel Number 

10.002.200.100 

Permit Status 

Approved Active 

Permit Fee 

300 

Total Due 

300 



Was fee paid? 

Yes 

Receipt Number 

00644257 

Planning Commission Action Date 

Apr 8, 2025, 7:10:00 AM 

Planning Commission Action Time 

7:10 PM 

Board Adjustment Action Date 

May 6, 2025, 6:35:00 PM 

Board_Adjustment Action Time 

6:35 PM 

Application Accepted By 

Bill Conkling 

Checked By 

BILL GARY 

Existing Zoning 

AGRICULTURE 

Affected Zoning Ordinance 

Article 5 Section 507 

Is location in floodplain? 

No 

Applicant Name 

Central Specialties, Inc. - Luke Lippert 



Applicant Phone 

3208940691 

Applicant Address 

6325 County Road 87 SW, Alexandria, MN 56308 

Applicant Email Address 

lukel@centralspecialties.com 

Owner Name 

Ralph Marquardt (Dave Husby - Lessee_ 

Owner Address 

Po Box 1040, Yankton, SD 57078 

Property Address 

30371 439 AVE 

Reason for Request 

Temporary portable crushing and HMA plant site for road construction. 

Height of Building 

Temporary plant setup 

Legal Description 

SE4 EXC LT H1 & EXC LT 6 SUN VALLEY S/D 

Date of Application Submission 

Mar 13, 2025, 12:00:00 PM 

Section Township Range 

2-94-56



Attachments: 

PDF 

PDF 

ApplicantSignature-.jpg 

SKETCH-.pdf 

509.7KB 

Marquardt Site Operations and Reclamation Plan.pdf 

95.4KB 

OwnerSignature-.jpg 



,,
 

C
 

m
 

"'
 

m
 

...J
 

-C:
 

C'CI
 

-0..
 

"0
 

QI
 

Ill
 

0
 

Q.
 

e
 

0..
 

N
 

N
 

�
 ' 

N
 

�
 

"'�
 

N
 

"
 

2
 

�
 ....

en
 

.6.
L

 

-"a.
 �
 

0
 

�a.
 

' 

�
 

'• 



C(llflltAt,. SN;CW.rlUWC 

Site Operations and Reclamation Plan 

Contents 

Introduction ................................................................................................................. 2 

Company Background ............................................................................................... 2 

Purpose and Summary ............................................................................................... 2 

Operational Overview ................................................................................................. 2 

Gravel Pit Mining and Processing Overview .............................................................. 2 

HMA Plant Overview ............................................................................................... 3 

Site Location and Description ..................................................................................... 3 

Operations Plan ............................................................................................................ 3 

Extraction and Crushing Summary .............................................................................. 3 

HMA Plant Summary .................................................................................................. 3 

Site Layout and Access .............................................................................................. 4 

Hours of Operation .................................................................................................... 4 

Site Security .............................................................................................................. 4 

Truck Activity ............................................................................................................. 4 

Sanitary Facilities and Waste Management ................................................................. 5 

Regulatory Compliance and Environmental Stewardship ................................................. 5 

Plant Air Emissions and Pollution Control .................................................................... 5 

Stormwater Management ........................................................................................... 5 

Dust, Noise, and Odor Control. ................................................................................... 5 

Site Reclamation ........................................................................................................... 6 

Reclamation Background ........................................................................................... 6 

Interim Reclamation Plan ........................................................................................... 6 

Final Reclamation Plan .............................................................................................. 7 

Conclusion ................................................................................................................... 7 

Page 11 















VERIFICATION OF APPROVAL 

YANKTON COUNTY, SOUTH DAKOTA 

dayof�/ll 
, 

--
' 2� am aware of the 

proposed Variance/CUP Rezone/Building Permit being proposed by Central Speclaltles, Inc. (Luke Lippert) at the 
property legally 

described as SE4 EXC LT H1 & EXC LT 6 SUN VALLEY S/D

City, State, Zip 

Phone 





March 24, 2025 

Applicant: 
Central Specialties, Inc 
6325 County Road 87 SW 
Alexandria, MN 56308 

NOTIFICATION 

Dear Yankton County Property Owner: 

The Yankton County Zoning Ordinance requires written notification describing a specific 
action be sent to the owners of real property lying within 2640 feet of the property on which 
the below described action is proposed. The notice shall be given to each owner of record 
by depositing such notice in the United States Post Office not less than 10 days prior to the 
hearing date. Therefore, you are hereby notified. Please take a moment to review the notice 
of public hearing described below. 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Notice is hereby given that a public hearing will be held before the Yankton County 
Planning Commission, Yankton County, South Dakota, at 7:10 P.M. on the 8th day of 
April, 2025 at the Yankton County Government Center, Commissioners Chambers, 321 
West Third St., Yankton, South Dakota. 

Said hearing is to consider the following: 
Applicant is Requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a Temporary construction facility 
in an AG (Agriculture) District Applicant is Requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a 
Temporary construction facility in an AG (Agriculture) District. Applicant wishes to 
construct a Temporary portable crushing and HMA plant site for a road construction 
project per Article 5 Section 507, Article 18 Section 1805, and Article 19 Section 1905. 
Said property is located at the Southeast Quarter, Excluding Lot Hl and excluding Lot 6 
Sun Valley Subdivision in Section two (2) Township Ninety-four (94) North, Range 
Fifty-six (56) West of the 5th P.M., Yankton County, Yankton, South Dakota. E91 l 
address is 30371 439th Ave, Yankton, South Dakota. 

The application may be reviewed at the Zoning Administrators office, Yankton County 
Government Center, 321 West Third St., Yankton, S.D. or online at the Yankton County 
Website. 

Sincerely, 
Central Specialties, Inc 
Petitioner 



BOYKO, THOMAS R (D) 
30386 438 AVE 
YANKTON SD 57078 

GRATE, LEO L (D) 
30375 438 AVE 
YANKTON SD 57078 

LARSON, GUY W (D) 
30370 438 AVE 
YANKTON SD 57078 

MARQUARDT, RALPH J (D) 
PO BOX 1040 
YANKTON SD 57078 

CWACH, MARY J (D) 
30627 439 AVE 
YANKTON SD 57078 

JRD ENTERPRISES LLC (D) 
PO BOX 76 
YANKTON SD 57078 

CWACH, MARY KAY (D) 
30427 439 AVE 
YANKTON SD 57078 

KRALICEK, MELISSA M (0) 
43844 304 ST 
YANKTON SD 57078 

MARQUARDT FAMILY LTD PRTNRSHIP ( MARQUARDT, RALPH (0) 
PO BOX 1040 PO BOX 1040 
YANKTON SD 57078 YANKTON SD 57078 

SD DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION (0) 
700 EAST BROADWAY AVE 
PIERRE SD 57501 

SD DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION (0) 
NSPORTATION 
700 EAST BROADWAY AVE 
PIERRE SD 57501 

SIK, BRADLEY REVOCABLE TRUST (D) VAITH FAMILY PROTECTION TRUST (0) VELLEK, FRANK C (LE) (D) 
PO BOX 473 42838 303 ST 1010 APRIL LN 
YANKTON SD 57078 LESTERVILLE SD 57040 YANKTON SD 57078 

VELLEK. RICHARD (C) 
43904 304 ST 
YANKTON SD 57078 

WAID, MICHAEL C REVOCABLE TRST ([ 
703 CHALKSTONE RD 
YANKTON SD 57078 



Timpo,..,,, CO(l<;;lfUCbOn fa.cilil) In 
an AG (Agriculnm·) Disttic,. Appli 
cam wishe5 lO coMb'Ut't a Coocrcte: 
batch plUI 10 supply the- SOOOT 
US HWY 81 construC"tion proJCCI 
per Arti<:le S Section 5,07, A.tOde 18 
SeA;tion 1805, and Artiele 19 Sect.ion 
1905. Sold p-ope:ny is located at the 
Sowh ball or the -Northwest Qu.ancr 
(S2 N\Y4) and the West b.\lf or the 
Sootbv.cSI Quarter (W2 SW-4) cii:• 
cludi.Dg lhe South Eighl bundrcd 
fifty-.cighl feet (S8l8') of the South• 
west Qu.u1er of me Southwest Quar• 
tct (SW4SW4) EXC 3A W/HIWAY 
and excluding Loi Hl of Go-.-em
ment Loi One (I} in the Northwest
QuatteT (NW4) a.Del GoYel'lllnt.nl Loi 
Two (2) in the Solllhwnl QLwter 
(SW4)nnd excludina TRACT One 
(I) JONES Addition in I.he Soulb
west Qu11r1er of lhe Sooth,.e11 Quar• 
ter (SW.CSW4) and Ex.clndiog part 
or Lots One and two {l &:2) of 
Hac.kh<"rry llldditiot1 in the South balf 
(S2) oJJ ln Section six. (6) Township 
Ni..,y-fou< (94) Nonh, Rani!• F"d\y
fivc (55) We5t of the Sth P.M .. 
Yankton Co.io1y. Yankton, Sotith 
Dakota £911 -'drt» i$ 30344 US 
HWY 81, Yankton, Solllh Dakota. 

Nance OF Pl)BLlC HEARING 

Notice- i,. bereby pven lhu II pub!Jc 
bearfog wiU be beld befOfe the 
Y■ni.1.00 County Plt.nning Commis
llon. YWtoo County, SOI.Ith Dako
ta. at 7:10 P,M. oo the Sth day ol 
April, 2025 tu me Ya.nkton Coumy 
Government Ccnttt, Cammiuioncrs 
Olambers.. 321 Wc,st third St. 
Yankton. Sooth Dak«a. 
et,nral Specialtie$., IQc, is Roquest
illg a Coudilioaal Use Permit for 1 
Temporary constructiOfl facility lll 
a.a AO (A.gricuhwe). Di.sU:ic.t. Appli
cant wi$.hcs to cOMlJUct a Tempo
rary portable cMhioa end HMA 
plant she (Ot" a IO.ld consuuclion 
proj,e,et pet' Article 5 Section S07. 
Anick 18 Section 1805, aod Article 
19 Section 1905. Said propeny i$ lo
� at 1.b,e SpultJ:eru.t.1

Q,tjuta. Ex� 
clU(liDg Lol H-1 and txeludin& LOl 6 
Sun Volley Sutxli't1$io11 in 
Section two (2) Tov;n.1hip Ni.oet'y
rour- (94) North, Range Pifty-i.lX 
(56) West of the 5th P .M., YanktoJI 
Coua.t)', Yankton, Solllb Oakoo:i. 
E.91 1 add.tt:ss ls 30371 439th Ave. 
YIU'llcton 

Published twice al the 10W apptOA.i• 
mti.c cos-1 ol $43.39 ruxl oan be 
viewed free or c:barge at wwv. .sd
p�bllcooticcs.eom 

Publl5hed Man:h 28 & April 41 
202.5. 

PlJBUC NOTICE 

Yan).:ton Transit. loo. dba Southca11 
Public Ttamit int.ends to apply for 
funds unck.r Smion S3 J  I of tbe SW'• 
Caee TrlUISJ)«UdOII A,sisuince Act 
for the continued oper11lon or a pub• 
lk tRMf)O"-ation project in Ct•)' 
Coun1y of Soulh Oak:ot.a. 

ThU. ooticc offm the opponunily 
for I public hellrulg. S1Jbmi1ud of 
sc-rvice proposals or co.mmcnu � 
g"'1in& lb< project. ln"""t,d pub
he 01 private tIUSit or paracrao.sit 
prGYidcn are invited to commen1 on 
I.hi$ proposal or �brnit proposals to 
provide lh.iJ service,, Reque.5t, for a 
public heariag, COrnmtdl$ Of (t• 
quesu fot I copy of Sou\bea$1 Pub
lic Tralls.il's propoul should be di· 
tteled 10: Yankton Trnnsi1. tnc. db.a 
$QUlbt$ Public Tramit, 901 E. 1th 
SL. Strcct Ya.nk1011., SoLltb Moua 
57078 by Apdl 30, 2025 

Publishrd 1wice a1 the total app.rolU• 
matt c� of $19.87 MK! can be 
vie�"'Cd rrce of dlarse a1 www.sd
ptiblicootioes.ccn:n 

Publl�hed M,rd1 28 .&: r\prll -1. 
2025. 

Cktt of Court 
B). Nicl)o)c Smmlcr 

Dep,t) 

{Li.ability Imurmce) $2.,218.95; Cc:ottr (Mai.ok�e} Sl.332.66; I 
F":int Bankcttd (Supplies) 562.58, Swc Truck Ceolct (Supplies) 
Fifsl 88Qkc1ud (Educ,,tion) S76S.OO; $601.SO; Janssca'is Garbage Servi.ct 
MicbeUe Goeken (Tr,,\'cl) $.52.00, (lltilitiies) $60.00, Mella.rds (Malntc
Microfilm lml'l8iof Sytte.mS (Ma.I;• oance) $53.S4: Menucb (S11ppHcs) 
cenaocc) S120.00: Qualified Preson $122.30: MKiAmcriean El'ICcgy 
S<rncc /Supplies) $7,326.09, (Utihtie<) Sl.l90.62. Yaoktoo 
SDACES (Trivel) $1.S.O(r, Ooe Of- Coonl)' Observer (Publishins) 
Ike Solution (Maitt.tcna.oce) $14.06: SD Oepa11meo1 or Tram:

Publlshed March 11 & 28, April 4 $150.54; Regist.er of Occds: Oari1y poM1:i011. (Brid,ges) $1.$54,64; 
& 11, 2015. Tc-lccorn.. U.C (Utilities) $171.50; SoutbcQem Ekctrlc Compaa)' 

EAec:utive Mannsc�nt Firu&nce (Ut:i.lJtics) $212.12; 'fruck Tnuler 
(Supplies) $51.00: Sooltl Duor..a SaJes & Setvloe (MlliuttDance) 
Publi.c A.sswance Alliance (Liabilily $1.�l.SO. Ooe Office Solutioo 
loSW'3llCe) Sl,011.52: Quallf:ied Pre,. (SuppllU) $141.08: Yankloa Dail)' 
SM Service (Suppl.ieJ) $49,33; Press & OU:Olan (Publi.s:hin&) 
SDAC:£S (Travel) $15.00; V�eta.Q • $44.06: E.91 l :  Goldenwesi Tele.com• 
Sc:t\ict Office: Clarity Telteom. municattOns (Utilltie..5) $147.21;
LLC (Vtililict) SZS.2S; Soulh Dako- OEM: Andcr1et1 Telecom. U.C 
ta Pubbc AJ.$WUCC" Alliance (Li.a- (Mahlt,maocc) $32.00: B· Y El.ectric 
bilil'y lnsunmcc) $476.85: LEAF (UtiliOeJ) $6S,OO; NAPA Auto Paro
(Rentals) $59.76: One Office SQlu- of YanktO(I (Maintenance) $52.98; 
tiou (Ma.imcnmce) $10.36; Safet)' ESRJ (Maimcaance) $2,lOO.� 
Cer:11er Buildin1: Oari1y Tclca,m,. First Bukce.rd (S1Jpplies} $813.24; 
LLC (Utilioe,) $82.99: Horwa1b Pln, Banlc<"'1 (Prof s«viees) 
Equipmitill (Maio�l)UICC) $141.23; .$705.62; Finl Bankcard (Maiote• 
Bow C<cd< MC!II, Inc. (Maillte- nance) $46.20: !£AF (Re.,....) 
ncnoe) $300.00: City of Yubou $134.13: Midconti.oenl Com.munk.a

Publb,hcd four times at the total ap
proximaic cost of SS 1 .04 and can be 
Viewed free or cbugc II www.sd
publicooticir$.cOm 

YANKTON COUNTY 
COMMISSION MEETING 

Mil/Cb 18, 2025 

The regular moeoog or the Yankton 
County Commis!ion WU c.alled to 
o<d<r by Chairman John 'Marquarot 
Al 6:00 p..m on 'Tuesday. M'trdl 18. 
2025. 

RoU e,,1.1 was lllken whb &he follow• 
ing CommisrioottS prese.m.: Ryan 
Heine:, Dan Klimiscb, Doo Kenc:r
i,ng. Wanda Howey.Fox Md John 
Mlllrqu3fdt. 

Tbue w«c oo con!lk:ts reponed by (Ulilities) S160.00: Sol.lib Du:ota tions (U,iliDet) Sl 79,96: Tabor 
mcmbers o{lbe bo»d, Publie A� Alliimec (l.iabilil}' Lwnber Coop. (Supplies) ,$2'27.47; 

insurance) $31.693.74: F\.l'SI Coun�y Buildi:ngs: Automatic Build• 
Bankcard °'�ainte.nancc) $.92.50;. mg ControlJ . r.-,1aintcnance) 
Job.ruon Controls, I.no.. (Mainte• Sl.891.00; K.ahe:r Htatin& & Cool• 
na.oce) Sl,146.28: Me.nards (Maintc,. ing (Mai.ntuuncc} $1,002.65: 2.An: 
nance) $446.9:S; �lid.Ame.de.an EDt1'• Pteclsioo K10$k Tc,cboolositt (Prof 
gy tulillrl<s) $3,428.52; Uiutod S<rncc,) $1 ,500.00: �i & PR FUnd: 
Labo111torics.. inc. (Supplies) Ooc Offk.e Solution (SuppUes) 

There w� 110 public comment. S918.22: Sheri.ff: JCopeUk.y's Ace ,$61.01: Noa.-�maJ: Y&l)bon 
Chairman Marquard1 clo$cd )Xlblk H.111dw&1e (SuppUcs)S l2.99: Ander- Couril)' Observer (YA.Olnon County 

SCll Tclocom. I.LC (C.Omputet Ser- Diteb) $4.08, Yanboo Daily Pn:s.s 
vices) SZ00.00: City of Yankton & Dakotao (Yatton Coumy Oh.ch) 

Cowity TrcaJ!Jftt fa.It) Vavn ap,- (Fuel) $3.6!5!>.39: Go.ardWJ Allilllee $6.24; Satellite Tracking of �plc: 
pcand to inform 1he board th:u Ow� Technologies, Inc. (Maiotciiance (Jail Tnw:.kina Mollicon) S6SO: Su· 
land Pear$on i.s. ttqucsting a Tiu. Co'Otn!IC() $625.00: South Oak.OU pctCom IDC. (Jail l'nding Maoi• 
Ftee7,e of his 2024 real ettatc wa. Public AsSWU1Ce Alliance (Li.ability ten) $t2J.SO; B)'fOG No,g:dmcicr 
Vavra '8id Mr. l'cam>n mi,,ed 1be lnsWU<c) $28,409.17; Tcddct J.. (CAM Dally l'c,s) $2.907.00: B}'fOCI 
deadline to apply for the Tax Fn:cu dusuies, UC (Law Enforcement No,ge.lineia (Swo P.-tidpathx1 
Program, VaY,a $aid Mr. Pca.rson re- Equipment) .$149.70; Fed& {Pr<tf Fee!) Sl,324.00: Sootbea11 Pub& 
ceived the, tax [ree-u for several Services} S22.22; Qualified Presort Tran$pO(Wion {Divcn:ioo Espense). 
years and would ha\·c qlWi.Oed S«vim (Mai.nl<"n.anee Co�) $260,00: Fim Bl\Akc:ud (Dh·mioo 
again if be b(t submitted &he fOOJ' SIS�.16, Lewu ,t Clad ford �U$e) S$2.46; Deteco,Cbem. loc. 
ia tilne. Pe,usonplaced the appb•a• (Mll.lJl,tl!.nHce} $661.94; lite Muf- (Opioad Fudln.a) $1,8-43.». bl· 

AClioo 258:JC: A mouon was made 
by fo'll: and seconded by KJUimeh to 
.appro,·c lbe mcetiog agcn� All 
pre.sent voted aye; motion cai;:ricd, S
O. 

ronuneru. 

::::.-la• �batfot��

t-e

Qci ��'t���,�-���� • - � ,.., '\'e1' .-� - lS21�!;.�!f�l� 
Acuon �&4�.:00.�n waa tmde "'· ahXtoia "'U-.ulf � �� ;� sl68is�J��

J 
Ottot& 

by Kh,ni,eb aJ><l s«oodocl b& »w,e (PubUilwt&) $50.00; Couoty Jail, Depanme,11 or � .... .,. (W
to �PPfOVC th,e Tax Freeze AM1e- A .. ·� Saicred Hean Hospital (Prof_ Ftts} S6.364.2S; S'ouib Dakota De
ment for GulliDd PeariO'e.. .A-0 Sor:vi«t) S2.360,l�; A.Dder:Kn Teft-.: �t or R,;vr:nuc (1{00 FU!i) 
presenl. voted aye: motion earned, 5- com. L:-C (Sccur:ar) Ma.i�tenlDOe) $1 ,680.00. SOWi Oikoca Depan•
O. S225,00. ICS l•a) Supphcs. Inc. nlCQt C)r Rc .. ·eqtie (HSC Sa-v:icelj (Supplid) SoS2.89, ',:jf! M<dioll ll,114.64: South Dakota Depon• 
Emcrgcnc.y Mau1,cmcn1 Director �P-r'!!.��c,a

$�� "!<'01 of Rc�ue (.RCQf»ld Set"· 

::w Jk�•�-�: M«lical Group-JW,ol"Kl' (P,or s..,. =l S
l
��i.&'&�?,.IM t.:

ceiYcd and dif{crCIII. COJ;t saYin& pro- YIU.$) $2.S�S; Sa.pplurc Health. _1..1.c $2.35,745.00; Road & Bridae 
gnuru tbal att. aYail.ablc. .Sdcr• (Prof Sovices) $SSO.OO: 'Whitnc)' $138 879 19· Emergency Man.,..ge
schlig1 said his de�t wul be Ocl.lotgc (Prof 5av!ce5) �"2, l l 2-50:: fflel)l $4.406.60� All preaec, "'Oced 

��!:• t:
c

��:u:'°tfe
mt

!l-o! :!c Dak
b��t� 

Alli
� a)·e; motion cmied. S-0. 

Veri7.on bill lcecp5, sctnog more u• SJ8,SS7.80; JCL. Solullons (Sup-, Action 25S7Z: A ll)otion was made 
pco$.ivc.. SehctKhllgt aJ,o said t.ht plies) S1.754,54'; Olson's Pe.$l Tech- by JCJ.iroj5eh and secoooc,d by Heine 
COUlll)' WU recognized M • SCCfffl• nlCiBnS (Maio1ca.anee) $)55.00: to adopt tbc foUowint resolution: 
Rttd)' Communi1y by lhe Nati,onal Pboc:nix Supply (Supplies:) S73S.?8; Wheius it 111ppurs Ja.oeue Kaddll1z
Wcatbtr Sen·k:e (NWS). The boa.rd Yanl"t.on Rex.all Drug Co. (Prof Stt. and Todd A. Cicbos, O'WDCt5 of 
a.pprovcd I.be change in vendors.. viceJ) $619.17: Coroner. One Office rocord., have awed a rcpla:I to be 

Action 2S85C: A motion ,ru made 
by Fo:r. and s«oodod by � 
to approve the Mardi 4, 202.S .mttt• 
ing minu1u. Votlnt aye-: fox� Kllm• 
l1eh, Keoering and Marqg� 
�cinir abstained. Molioo c!rricd, J. 

Sohll>OO (Sopplics) 5667.91: Juv,. JMdc o1 the follc,;.lng ,w p-openy: 

:•:e�,
e
�:�::�� (Re� K�!t Addit'°'1, Win. SWlf4, 

$13,749.IZ; Poor Relit'(: Quilifitd Sectio11 3·9.5N-S6W. County of 

Prc5IJl1 Service (Suppl.its) SI 15.39: Yan.boo. S.D .. ud b� sot>mined 
Publie Health Nurse: South 'oakou �:1c:��ank= y<;:: 

:si:n:::�99-�aDC:n�= C01Jol)' Olmmissioo foi approval. 
C1ari1y Telecom. LLC (Utilities) ::: p��

ore 
� e

1!C:c!t"�� 
ACllon l586C: A rnouoo was _m.,de $87.99; Bound Tree Medical, lLC i.og 10 Jaw tod conform,; to all exist• 
by .Fox and sccoodcd by Klimisth to (�upplies) $850.37; City of Yank1o.o ing applicable wttinj. 5ubdhisioo. 
approve the rouowioa claims; Com• (Supplies) Sl.187.07: Soutb Datou ennio11 aod sedimc.01 cOlllrol and 
minion: Clarity 1'cJc-.com. U.C Public A�W'll.DCC Alli1nee (Llability .sunc is beffby opproved. Cou.my 
(Utilitres) $50.50: Ah.ernathe - 'RR:, tnsu.rance) $5,07:5.80: Saicrcd Hl'.tlr1 Auditor is hereby autbori.ted and dj. 
Lt..C (Pro( Sav1�..s} SJ,135.01; Heahb Services (Supplies) �.SO; rttl.Cd to endorlc on $UCb the proper 
Soulh D&kou Public Assonnce Al• Finl BWcard (Supplies) 5337.01: re.solution and certify lhc same AJJ 
Uance (Uabiht)' lmuratlee) Finl Bankcard (Travc.l) $127.61; prcse:m �cd aye: rootion ca:ricd, �
$2,058.79-, YW1on COU.llt)' Ob$crV- firSt Bankcard (Prof Servi<U) o. 
et (PubUsbing) $)80.64; Ytmkton 132.00; !£AF (Rcnw,) $170.08; 
Daily PteM & Dakotan (Publislfln&) Mcnardil (Supplies) $J$7.77;0bon'5 
$4SS..72; IRS (Other) $41.32: Eoc· Pqt Tcx:hoicians (Mablt�) 
tioo,; Qualified Pruon Smi<e SI 1�.00. OReilly A"'o Paru (Main• 
(Supplies) 574,88: Coun; Avera Sa- ttaanee) SI0.99: Meollllly Handi• 
cred Hean HMpital (Lab) capped: SD Achieve, dba Wes.cape 
St.164,00; Blackbum ,t Stcveas (Mootb1y AUotmelll) $120.00: Mcn
P,of. u.c (Pror Savi<e.) S977A2: 111 111oc,s Bow: v� Lanoo (Hear• 

STATE OFSOlTIB DAl<OTA 

00�!1."TY OF Y ANK10N 

��;:,iSJfr20�=�� �}� 
$4

si�: ��::�s�
w

:.� 
{F«.1) S.S29.06: Physicifi.tll Ulboca· M.ut K2t1erh1gea (lfea.rinp) 

) IOI')'. PC (Prof Scrvim) $3,174.00; $48.00: Lewis &: Clark BcfulvM>ral 
)s.s; Mcg.1.11 Ru�s (Prol Scrvio::s) Rea.l1b Setvices. (Hearings) 

The board diSQIUCd the J)OM:ibilhy 
ot cbanlfflg OI'" ctiminadng step rais
es for empJo)'ccs. CommiffloOt':I' 
Klim.iscb Sliid because of Ye.nlaon 
County·, CW1ffl: lin.ancial lntlation, 
moting employec:5 more !hon oa� 
Step should be m:onsidcrod. Com
missiooet fo:ii: ,;vu also coocera.ed 
...,ith tl,e i;1cp ioc-_rea,cj. Commis� 
sionu Marquardt wggestcd climi
nadq the step rmtrix and baYing 11 
pcrform�oce inccnth·c cap of I.� 
put.COi qver the CPI. Com.m..iS5loDef 
Xctttrior. sugs.c.�� allowms the fi. 
aaoci.a1 pJ..o.nnina La.tk: force, which 
consists of ihffc. dcp:i,n:meot beach 
and two ooJJl]IUSSioners, 10 review 
the matt:er ud come. up 'whh a rec
ommudalion. Register of Deeds 
Brio.; Hunlloff aDd County �ur• 
u Patty Vavni abo spoke dunng I.be 
discussiom 

) S142.10; KCM«ly Pier Loftu, & $1,125.00; Lincoln County T,..,..,. 
Reynolds, Ll.P (Prof Scrvk:t:s) er (Hearings) $3,829.74; Luci 
$4,01 1 ..50; Kole.tz.k)' Law or&c: Lcwno {Hcaril'.lgs) $985.46: E:ucn
Prof. IJ..C (Prol Sttvicd,) ,Joo: Sooth Dakota Pubtie Assw
$4,013.00; Ot:pfflmCOt of Jieal1b ance Alliance (UabUhy lnsuraJ)ce,) 
(Lab) $1,225.00: Dean Schaefer $1, 190.97; MidAJntric&o EntTty 
(Prof Services) $1.038.00: TboftlM>Q (Ulilities) $181. 67; Nonhwe)lm, 
Rcul.efs,-Wesl (Supplies) $1 ,236.13; Etiergy {Utiliucs) Sl9l.64; Soll 

8'I CIRCUIT COllRT 

l'lltST JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

In the Mauer of the htition 
regardms. 

Dcclan Michael A.U5bn & £va Ann 
MUUP 
(Binb Cmi.ficalt' Name). A Minar 
Cruld. 

for a Change o( Nmx. to 

Ot<lan Micbacl Jhrdy & E..,a AM 
Hardy 
(Pn,poocd Nome) 

66CJV: 25-108 

NOTICE OF HEARING 
FOR NM!E CHANGE 
OF A MJNOR CHILD 

(IJNCOmESTEOJ 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN thal 
I Verifi(d Pelition r« Name C�llge 

Auditot: Ctant) Teleeom, L.LC Coostrvalion: South Dakoui Publie 
(Utilities} $121.15: SOwh Dakoa. Assurance Alliaixc. (Liability lnsur
Public AilW11oce Alliance (Liiabllity ance) S.197 .96; Weed: Bomgaars 
ln.surance) $1,017.52� Am. (SuppUe.•) $27.98, Amazon Capital 
B&nltoanl (l'ntv.:I) $436.58 !£AF $crviccs (S.ppl,e,) S9.79: Sooth 
(Remab) Sl 83,3S: Quo,lirn!d

0 

Presort Dal:.ota Public Assurance All� 
Savi« (Supplies) $238.44: (Liabilily Wurancc} $2,046.31; 
SDACES (Tm'Cl) SI S.00; 0,,. Of- Fim Bankcffd (l'ntvel) $67S5; 0oc 
ftcc Sol11tion (Maioteaaoc.e}.. Off'lCe Soluiion (Supplit$) $2.4.8?; 
S20S.76; Tboaoon Reuier,.wei(' Plwming and Zonina.: Clarity 1eJe.. 
(Pro( S«vice,) S 186.1 ): Treasw= <om, U.C /Utilities) Sl0.50, ESRl 
Andersen Tclcoom, U.C (Maitlte,. (MaituetULOCe) $2,100.00: Soutb 
oancc) S2SO.OO; Oarity Tc-1,ccom, Dakota Public Assunmce AUb.ooe 
LLC tu11litics) 5197.20: Sou1b (Llabilil}' lnsunn<e) $1,418.00: 
Dakoui Public .Assuraoee AJJilDCt!: F"iru Blllll:card (Supplies) $23.00: 
(Llabihty Insurance.) $1,017.SZ; f"U'Sl Bankcard (MalntelWKlc) 
I.EAf (Rentals) S 133.60: Qualified $62.38: Mi<rofilin Imapug Sy,tem 
PR$0n $er,ice (Supphe.$, ,SISl.89: (Maillteoence) $10.00; Yankton 
SDACES (Tmel) $15.00: 0.10: Daily Pt= & Dakoran (Publislting) 
An<Je.18en Telecom, UC (Mainte- $.79..50: Highway: BomJam (Mai.n
nance) $891.98; Clarity Telecom, 1enance) $99.98; 8omg.aatS (Sgp
LLC (Utllitie!) .SS.SJ.54: firsi plia) ffl.94: B·Y Water Dutrict 

Action 2.S88Z: A motion v,::u made 
by Kcueririg •od seconded by Heine 
10 tcmporuily limit employee an• 
nivenary ra.i.ses 10 Olle ncp. 
Act.loo 2589C: A motJM was made 
by Foll a.nd 5«0Ddc(I by Heine lO re
CCU the regular session ud convene 
in ex«:mive $C$$JOO to discu5,, a 1e
glll m.llllCr with Swes. Anomey 
Tyler Larsen. All present Yoted aye: 
modonca,riod.5-0. 

Action 259QC! A motico Wa!i made. 
by Fox and secoodcd by �b 10 
adjoum CJ1cc1Aive $C.55.iOD aod rc
coo\'ellC in Kgular .$C$$ion. All 
prtSCnt 't"Ottd aye: mot-ion carried. 5. 
0. 

madt. � to:it aJ)(J $CConGCO O)' Lttl'lllfllJtt' a county cmp10y« oe
Heinc to approve the Audstor'.s cause or nmcooduci AJI prcst:m 
Monthly S«llemeru wnh the Trea- voted aye; motioo �- S.O. 
sutcr aod Poolod Cash Jl<"pon •� of 
Febru81)' 202.5 .sbowiog Toca! Ca.sh Acno11 2.598C: A modoc "M made 
or $9.736.179.JO, The General fund by Fox a.ud secondod by KJinusch tO 
was SS,432., l 50.65� Special Pu.otk adjourn. All prese.n1 voccd 1ye; mo
wiere Sl�:336,207.82: aod Trust and tion canicd. S-0. 
Ageocy Ruwl$ were .$ 1.967 ,!20.63 
adding to a Grand Total of General The mx1 ttgulu mcesing will be 
Ledger Cash and lnvestn,en1.s of Tuesday. April 1. 2025 ar. 6:00 p.m. 
S9,736,179.10. A deuiilcd ttport u 
OQ rue with the County Audilot AU Jcbo MlrqUardt, ChainnatJ 
pteknl VOi.eei O)'e: motion �. 5,. Yan\..1.on Counly Commillion 
0. 

A'JTEST, 

Action '2593AUD: A IDOlion was Piny Ho)CtD. Ylllklon County AudJ• 
made by Fox tDd socooded by 1or 
Heine 10 appo,ve the 202-4 4th Qim· 
ter Ml Rcpon. All preser,1 vOU<I 
•fl!; motion c� 5-0. 

Actioo 2S94C: A mcxion wa1 mack
by Klimi.sch IJlid l(lC()OOed by Heine 
to appro,·e a propcr1y tu •�tc.me:11 
of$2,038.SI. All �1 voted aye: 
motion c4n'lcd. 5-0. 

The board discussed UJJ.og Oe:ar. 
Gov 9t0gram for budici Jnl>aB· 
tion. No action WIS Wen. 

Tberc W8$ oo p11bUc ooouncnt, 
Chairman M#quardt clo$ed public 
couunem.. 

Commis.sioocr upcb.1&: The Rook·•· 
tbon fuftd:raiser ror Meal$ oa Wheel.$ 
was a pa1 SLIC'«M with SCYcral 
couoty officials panicipating. Boud 
ot E.ctualilalioo bwing.s are s,che(I. 

CROSSWORD 
By THOMAS JOSEPH 

ACROSS 
1 Green 

strokes 
6 Must 

11 Stilt alive 
,n a 

' painlball 
battle 

12 Stay away 
• from 

13 Sculpture 
in 
St. Peter's 

14 Chop 
finely 

15 Ballet 
attire 

17 Sets the 
price at 

18 Warring 
god 

20 Goa! 
cheese 

22 Clumsy 
one 

23 Raptors' 
home 

26 Soccer's 
Lionel 

28 Passion 
29 Runs out 
31 Research 

s�e 
32 Skating 

jump 
33 Reactor 

parts 
34 Schooner 

feature 
36 Ukraine's 

capital 
38 Useful 

skill 
40 Rival 
43 Take the 

wheel 
44 Concur 

45 Hokey 
46 Party 

VIPs 

DOWN 
1 Y9Ung 

seal 
2 Numerical 

prefix 
3 D.H. 

Lawrence 
book 

4 "
Androni
cus" 

5 Sports 
figure 

6 SandWich 
meal 

7 Au, e.g. 
8 D.H. 

Lawrence 
book 

9 Clod< 
sound 

10 Lofty 
poems 

11 

Pul,li.sbed ollcc at the toW r,ppro:ii:J
ma«- eos1 of Sl8J.3• a,nd, can be 
viewed free of charge al W\ll>"W.&d·
publicnoticcs.com 

Pllbllsb«I �- 211. 20l5 

W A  L E I p R I S M S
I R  O N  I A E  R ( A L 
S E  C T  S C  O T  T y  
P A  K l  S T A  N---

E R R  p I L O T
N U  D E S  S C  U B A
1 0 0 C O P
c o  U R  T F A  K E  S 
E N  T E R  A G E  

- L  A B R  A O  O R
L A  R E  0 01 T O  G O
A T  O N  E D  I E U  R O  
G E  N T  R Y ■ S T  E M

Yesterday's answer 

16 Sky 
saucer 

18 Jerry 
Herman 
musical 

19 Pinnacle 
21 Historic 

periods 
23 Bike 

part 
24Warty 

creature 
25 Balls 
27'Sweet' 

age 

30 Caribou's 
kin 

33Fab 
Four 
drummer 

34 Like lhe 
Ger. "der' 

35 Regarding 
37 Casual 

assent 
39Attempt 
41 Got 

together 
42 Word of 

accord 
10 

A X Y  D L B A A X R  
is L O N G F E L L O W  

One leuer stands for another. In 1his sample, A is used 
for lhe 1hree L's, X for 1he Iwo O's, etc. Single leuers, 
apoSlrophes, lhe lenglh and formation of the words 
are all hint,, Each day the code letters are differenJ. 

3-28 CRYPTOQUOTE 

J L N K K  Y W R C Z  L I M  F W Y C M Y  

L I  M Y M  H B D  Q E N L  E C M Q 

Y W E Z  W Y  E J M F Y M L  S E L M .

O . Y . Y .  L W K T N M C  
Yesterday's Cryptoquote: SHE STOOD IN 

THE STORM, AND WHEN THE WJND DID NOT 
BLOW HER WAY, SHE ADJUSTED HER SAILS. 
- ELIZABETH EDWARDS 

0 2018 K1n1i f<ilures Syndical<!, In<. 



Yankton County 

Lagoon - Any pond, basin, or other impoundment made by excavation or earthen fill 
for storage or treatment of human sewage or animal waste. 

Landing Strip - A strip of ground used or capable of being used for the landing and 
take-off of aircraft. 

Large Wind Energy Conversion System (L WECS) - shall mean an electrical 

generating facility producing 50 kW or more and comprised of one or more wind 

turbines and accessory facilities, including but not limited to: power lines, 

transformers, substations and meteorological towers that operate by converting the 

kinetic energy of wind into electrical energy. The energy may be used on-site or 

distributed into the electrical grid. Accessory facilities do not include facilities 

utilized for energy storage. (Amended September 3, 2024) 

Loading Area - A completely off right-of-way, space, or berth on the same lot for the 
loading or unloading of freight carriers, having adequate ingress and egress to a 
public right-of-way. 

Loading Space, Off Right-of-Way - Space logically and conveniently located for bulk 
pickups and deliveries, scaled to delivery vehicles expected to be used, and accessible 
to such vehicles when required off right-of-way loading space is not to be used as off 
right-of-way parking space in computation of required off right-of-way parking space. 

Locker - A meat processing plant and any other facility where meat, poultry or eggs 
are cooked, cured, smoked, or otherwise processed or packed, provided that all 
activities are carried out indoors. This term shall not include a delicatessen, stockyard, 
slaughterhouse, tannery, a poultry killing establishment, an animal food factory, or an 

animal by-products plant. 

Lot - For purposes of this ordinance, a lot is a parcel of land of at least sufficient size 
to meet minimum zoning requirements for use, coverage, and area, and to provide 
such yards and other open spaces as are herein required. Such lot shall have frontage 

on an improved public right-of-way, or on an approved private right-of-way, and may 
consist of a single lot of record; a portion of a lot of record; a combination of 
complete lots of record, of complete lots of record and portions of lots of record, a 
parcel of land described by metes and bounds; provided that in no case of division or 
combination shall any residual lot or parcel be created which does not meet the 

requirements of this ordinance. 

Lot Coverage - The percent of the area of a lot occupied by buildings, or structures, 
including accessory building or structures. 

Lot Depth - The average horizontal distance between the front and rear lot lines. 

Lot Frontage - The portion of the lot nearest the right-of-way; for the purpose of 
determining yard requirements on comer lots and through lots, all sides of a lot 
adjacent to right-of-ways shall be considered frontage, and yards shall be provided as 
indicated under "Yards" in this ordinance. 

18 





























Yankton County 

18. Repair shops, auto-body;

19. Repair shops, motor vehicle;

20. Restaurants;

21. Restaurants, drive-in;

22. Restaurants, in-house;

23. Retail sales;

24. Self-storage warehouses;

25. Service establishments;

26. Theaters;

27. Utility facilities;

28. Veterinary clinics;

29. Warehousing facilities;

30. Wholesale sales.

31. Cannabis Cultivation Facility

32. Cannabis Dispensary

33. Cannabis Product Manufacturing Facility

34. Cannabis Testing Facility; (Amended December 19, 2023)

35. Accessory Structures. and (Amended December 19, 2023)

36. Solar Energy Conversion Systems (SECS) under 50 kilowatts alternating current
(AC). (Amended December 19, 2023)

Section 1005 Permitted Accessory Uses and Structures 

Those accessory uses and structures normally appurtenant to the permitted principal 
uses and structures shall be permitted in a Commercial District (C) when established 
in conformance within the space limits of this district. 

1. Signs, banner;

2. Signs, directional off-site;

3. Signs, directional on-site;

4. Signs, easement and utility;

5. Signs, flag;

70 









Yankton County 

ARTICLE 12 

RURAL TRANSITIONAL DISTRICT (RT) 

Section 1201 Intent 

The intent of Rural Transitional Districts (RT) is to protect un-developed and under 
developed lands lying within or adjacent to expected growth corridors from 

unstructured or incompatible land uses in order to preserve land best suited for 
planned development to ensure practicality and service delivery. 

Section 1203 Permitted Principal Uses and Structures 

The following principal uses and structures shall be permitted in a Rural Transitional 
District (RT): 

1. Agriculture;

2. Historic sites;

3. Horticulture; (Amended December 19, 2023)

4. Utility facilities. and (Amended December 19, 2023)

5. Solar Energy Conversion systems (SECS) under 50 kilowatts alternating

current (AC). (Amended December 19, 2023)

Section 1205 Permitted Accessory Uses and Structures 

The following accessory uses and structures shall be permitted in a Rural Transitional 
District (RT): (Amended June 21, 2022) 

1. Accessory structures.

2. Customary water irrigation systems, other than manure irrigation equipment;

3. Farm drainage systems;

4. Horne and farm occupations;

5. Shelterbelts;

6. Signs, banner;

7. Signs, directional off-site;

8. Signs, directional on-site;

9. Signs, easement and utility;

78 



Yankton County 

10. Signs, flag;

11. Signs, name and address plate;

12. Signs, on-site;

13. Signs, real estate;

14. Stock dams; and

15. Temporary/seasonal roadside stands.

Section 1207 Conditional Uses 

After the provisions of this Ordinance relating to conditional uses have been fulfilled, 
the Board of Adjustment may permit as conditional uses in a Rural Transitional 

District (RT): (Amended June 21, 2022) 

1. Dwellings, single family.

2. Individual septic or sewage treatment facilities, pursuant to Section 1513;

3. Manure irrigation;

4. Parks;

5. Portable processing plants;

6. Rural Developments, pursuant to Section 1219;

7. Sanitary landfills or restricted use sites, permitted by the Department of

Environment and Natural Resources (DENR);

8. Spreading, injection, or other application of manure or animal waste generated

from a concentrated animal feeding operation not permitted by Yankton

County, shall be required to submit a waste management plan for land

application of said manure within the Rural Transitional (RT) District. The

waste management plan shall be the same as for a permitted site, pursuant to

Section 519(3);

9. Temporary construction facilities; and

10. Utility Facilities.

Section 1209 Classification of Unlisted Uses 

In order to insure that the zoning ordinance will permit all similar uses in each 
district, the Planning Commission and Board of Adjustment, upon its own initiative or 

upon written application, shall determine whether a use not specifically listed as a 
permitted, accessory, or conditional use in a Rural Transitional District (RT) shall be 

deemed a permitted, accessory, or conditional use in one or more districts on the basis 

79 



 

 

 

YANKTON COUNTY 

ZONING ORDINANCE 2020 
Adopted: February 18, 2020 
Amended: September 3, 2024 
Prepared by: Yankton County Commission 

Yankton County Planning Commission 



Yankton County 

1 

 

 

DEFINITIONS 
 
 

Definitions 
 

For the purpose of this Ordinance, unless otherwise stated, words used in the present 

tense include the future; the singular number includes the plural and the plural the 

singular; the word shall means mandatory, not discretionary; the word may is 

permissive; the word person includes a firm, association, organization, partnership, 

trust, company or corporation, as well as, an individual; the word lot includes 

the word plat or parcel; and the words used or occupied include the words intended, 

designed, or arranged to be used or occupied. 

 

Terms 
 

For the purpose of this Ordinance, certain terms or words used herein shall be 

interpreted as follows: (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

Abandoned Sign/Billboard - a sign or sign structure that is blank, obliterated or 

displays obsolete advertising material for a period in excess of twelve continuous 

months. The twelve-month period for determining if a sign is abandoned commences 

upon notification of violation to the offender. 

Abut - Having a common border with, or being separated from such a common border 

by a right-of-way, alley, or easement. 

 

Accessory Agricultural Structure - A structure customarily incidental and necessary to 

farming and the raising of animals including barns and other animal shelters, corrals 

and fences, silos and storage sheds for machinery and crops. 

 

Accessory Building - A subordinate building, the use of which is purely incidental to 

the main building. It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, or corporation in the 

following Yankton County Zoning Districts: Low Density Rural Residential (R1), 

Moderate Density Rural Residential (R2), High Density Rural Residential (R3), 

Manufactured Home Park (MHP), Lakeside Commercial (LC), Rural Transitional 

(RT), Planned Unit Development (PUD) to use any van body, truck body, semi- 

trailer, rail car, “shipping crate”, and/or any vehicle no longer used for its 

manufactured purpose as a storage shed, storage building, warehouse, or as living 

quarters. It shall be unlawful to use manufactured homes for any use other than 

residential living quarters in all Yankton County Zoning Districts. However, this shall 

not prevent the lawful parking of vehicles properly licensed, insured, and in regular 

use for their intended purpose to include ‘RVs’ and camping trailers. (Amended May 

19, 2020) 

Accessory Use or Structure - A use or structure on the same lot with and of a nature 

customarily incidental and subordinate to the principal use or structure. It shall be 

unlawful for any person, firm, or corporation in the following Yankton County 

Zoning Districts: Low Density Rural Residential (R1), Moderate Density Rural 

Residential (R2), High Density Rural Residential (R3), Manufactured Home Park 



Yankton County 

2 

 

 

(MHP), Lakeside Commercial (LC), Rural Transitional (RT), Planned Unit 

Development (PUD) to use any van body, truck body, semi-trailer, rail car, “shipping 

crate”, and/or any vehicle no longer used for its manufactured purpose as a storage 

shed, storage building, warehouse, or as living quarters. It shall be unlawful to use 

manufactured homes for any use other than residential living quarters in all Yankton 

County Zoning Districts. However, this shall not prevent the lawful parking of 

vehicles properly licensed, insured, and in regular use for their intended purpose to 

include ‘RVs’ and camping trailers. 

Actual Construction - Actual construction is hereby defined to include the placing of 

construction materials in permanent position and fastened in a permanent manner. 

Where excavation or demolition or removal of an existing building has been 

substantially commenced, preparatory to building, such excavation or demolition or 

removal shall be deemed to be actual construction, provided that work shall be carried 

on diligently. 

Addition - Any construction that increases the size of a building such as a porch, 

attached garage or carport, or a new room. 

Administrative Review - A process brought forth by the Zoning Administrator to 

clarify a provision of the Zoning Ordinance. A review may include policy 

interpretation or procedural questions but shall not include the appeals process as 

detailed herein. 

 

Adult Entertainment - Any premises or part thereof in which a principal feature or 

characteristic is the nudity or partial nudity of any person; to include a place or part 

thereof where, in pursuance of a trade, calling, business or occupation, goods or 

services appealing to or designed to appeal to erotic or sexual appetites or 

inclinations. 

 

Advertising Sign - An advertising sign, billboard, or poster panel which directs 

attention to a business, commodity, service, or entertainment not exclusively related 

to the premises where such advertising sign is located or to which it is affixed, but 

does not include those business signs which direct attention to the business on the 

premises to a brand name of a product or commodity with which the business is 

specifically identified and which is sold on the premises. 

 

 

Agriculture - The planting, cultivating, harvesting and storage of grains, hay or plants, 

fruits, or vineyards along with the raising and feeding of livestock and/or poultry shall 

be considered an agricultural use. Grain elevators or Agricultural Product Processing 

Facilities shall not be considered an agricultural use if such use constitutes the main 

or principal use on a lot or parcel. 

 

Agribusiness – A business which directly supports the agricultural industry, such as 

suppliers of feed, seed, chemicals, fertilizer, farm equipment, and equipment parts, 

farm equipment repair services, veterinary services, drain tile installers, and 

commercial grain elevators. (Amended August 19, 2021) 



Yankton County 

3 

 

 

Agriculture Product Processing Facility - A business activity customarily designed to 

process raw agricultural products into value added products. Agricultural processing 

facilities include, but are not limited to; feed mills, ethanol plants, soy bean 

processing facilities, cheese plants, milk processors, packing plants and rendering 

facilities. 

 

Agrivoltaics - The use of land for both agriculture (crop production, livestock grazing 

and pollinator habitat) and solar photovoltaic energy generation. This is located 

underneath solar panels and/or between rows of solar panels. (Amended December 

19, 2023) 

 

Aggrieved Person - A person aggrieved is any person directly interested in the 

outcome of and aggrieved by a decision or action or failure to act regarding a zoning 

decision thus: (Amended August 19, 2021) 

1. Establishes that the person suffered an injury, an invasion of a legally 

protected interest that is both concrete and particularized, and actual or 

imminent, not conjectural or hypothetical; 

 

2. Shows that a causal connection exists between the person's injury and the 

conduct of which the person complains. The causal connection is satisfied if 

the injury is fairly traceable to the challenged action, and not the result of the 

independent action of any third party not before the court; (3) Shows it is 

likely, and not merely speculative, that the injury will be redressed by a 

favorable decision, and; (4) Shows that the injury is unique or different from 

those injuries suffered by the public in general. 

 

Alley - A way which affords only a secondary means of access to abutting property. 

 

Amendment - A change in the wording or substance of this ordinance or a change in 

the boundaries or classifications upon the Official Zoning Map. 

 

Amusement Park - A facility, primarily outdoors, that may include structures and 

buildings, where there are various devices for entertainment including rides, booths 

for the conduct of games or sale of items, buildings for shows and entertainment and 

restaurants and souvenir sales. 

 

Animal Feeding Operation: An animal feeding operation is a lot or facility where 200 

or greater animal units, excluding aquaculture, are confined, stabled, fed, or 

maintained in either an open or housed lot for a total of 45 days or more in any 12- 

month period. The open lot does not sustain crops, vegetation, forage growth, or post- 

harvest residues in the normal growing season. Two or more facilities under common 

ownership are a single animal operation if they adjoin each other (within one mile), or 

if they use a common area or system for the disposal of manure. (Amended August 

19, 2021) 



Yankton County 

4 

 

 

For the purposes of these regulations, Animal Feeding Operations are divided into the 

following classes: 

 
Class Animal Units 

Class A 500 - 10,000 

Class B 200 – 499 

 

Animal Feeding Operation or CAFO, New - An animal feeding operation or CAFO, 

(see definitions), constructed after the effective date of this ordinance or any 

subsequent amendment of applicable Articles or Sections. Operations in existence 

upon adoption or prior to future amendments may be considered a new operation if 

the facility is expanded to facilitate an increase of more than three hundred (300) 

animal units. Any new construction relating to an expansion must comply with the 

applicable performance standards. The Planning Commission and Board of 

Adjustment shall have the authority to decrease or waive any standard deemed 

contradictory to the intent of the zoning ordinance upon review and in accordance 

with the conditional use and variance process described herein. (Amended May 19, 

2020) 

 

Animal Units - A unit of measure for livestock equated as follows; one head is 

equivalent to animal units: (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Cow, feeder, or slaughter beef animal, including cow/calf pairs 1.0 A.U. 

Horse 2.0 A.U. 

Mature dairy cattle, excluding dairy calves under 300 pounds 1.4 A.U. 

Farrow-to-finish sows 3.7 A.U. 

Swine in a production unit 0.47 A.U. 

Nursery swine less than 55 pounds 0.1 A.U. 

Finisher swine over 55 pounds 0.4 A.U. 

Sheep or lambs, goats 0.1 A.U. 

Laying hens or broilers 0.033 A.U. 

Ducks and/or geese 0.2 A.U. 

Turkeys 0.018 A.U. 

 

Animal Waste Facility - A structure designed and constructed to store and/or process 

animal waste. Animal waste facilities include but are not limited to holding basins, 

lagoons, pits and slurry stores. 

 

Apartment - A portion of a multiple dwelling used as a separate housing unit and 

having cooking facilities and a private bath. 

 

Applicant - For purposes of this Ordinance a person shall be deemed to be an 

applicant if they are the owner of the proposed facility; an officer or director of the 

owner thereof; or an owner of any interest, direct or indirect, in any company, except 

a publicly traded company, which is the owner of the proposed development. 

Aquaculture - Land devoted to the hatching, raising and breeding of fish or other 

aquatic plants or animals for sale or personal use. 

 

Arcade - A place of business where an individual, association, partnership or 

corporation maintains four or more amusement devices for public use. 



Yankton County 

5 

 

 

Auction Barn - Any premises used predominantly as a livestock auction facility and 

may include the auction of agriculturally related items on an incidental or accessory 

basis only. The term may also include a building or structure or lands used for the 

storage of goods and materials which are to be sold on the premises by public auction, 

and for the sale of the said goods and materials by public auction and on an 

occasional basis. 

 

Auction Yard - Any premises used predominantly as an auction pavilion or any area 

dedicated to consignment auctions or similar activities. A yard may include structures, 

open, and fenced display areas. 

 

Automobile-Machinery Service Station - Building and premises where motor fuel, oil, 

grease, batteries, tires, and vehicle accessories may be supplied and dispensed at 

retail, and where, in addition, customary repair services may be rendered. 

 

Automobile Wrecking Yard - Any premises on which two or more self-propelled 

vehicles not in running order or operating condition are stored in the open. See also 

Junkyard and Salvage Yard. 

 

Back-To–Back Sign: An off-site or on-site sign consisting of two sign facings 

oriented in the opposite direction with not more than one face per side. 

Bar - A building or part thereof where, in consideration of payment therefore, liquor, 

beer, or wine or any combination thereof are served for consumption on the premises, 

with or without food. 

 

Basement - A portion of a building with the floor located below the mean grade level. 

For the purpose of this ordinance, any such basement with more than four (4) feet 

above grade level shall be counted as a story. No dwelling unit shall be situated in a 

basement having less than four (4) feet above grade level. 

 

Bed and Breakfast - A dwelling occupied by a family and used incidentally to provide 

accommodation and meals to guests for remuneration, but shall not include a boarding 

house, residential care facility, hotel, motel, or other similar uses. 

 

Billboard - See Sign, Off-Site. 

 

Board of Adjustment - The Yankton County Commission shall serve as the Board of 

Adjustment. 

 

Bona fide practitioner-patient relationship” means: (Amended November 4, 2021) 

a. A practitioner and patient have a treatment or consulting relationship, during 

course of which the practitioner has completed an assessment of the patient’s 

medical history and current medical condition, including an appropriate in- 

person physical examination; 

b. The practitioner has consulted with the patient with respect to the patient’s 

debilitating medical condition; and 

c. The practitioner is available to or offers to provide follow-up care and 

treatment to the patient, including patient examinations; 



Yankton County 

6 

 

 

Buildable Area - The portions of a lot remaining after required yards have been 

provided. 

 

Building - The word "building" includes the word structure and is a structure that is 

entirely separate from any other structure by space or by walls in which there is no 

communicating doors or windows or similar openings. A principal building including 

covered porches and paved patios, is a building in which is conducted the principal 

use of the lot on which it is situated. In any residential district, any dwelling shall be 

deemed to be the principal building on the lot on which the same is situated. 

 

Building Line, Front - A line parallel to the street, or right-of-way intersecting the 

foremost point of the building, excluding uncovered steps. 

 

Building Permit - A type of authorization that must be granted by a government or 

other regulatory body before the construction of a new or expansion of 
existing building can legally occur. (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Building Setback Lines - A line parallel or approximately parallel to the lot lines at a 

specified distance therefrom, marking the minimum distance from the lot line that the 

building may be erected. 

 

Building Site - A lot or parcel, or portion thereof, whether a lot of record or described 

by metes and bounds, used or intended to be used as the location of a building for 

housing one or two families. 

 

Building, Alterations of - Any change or rearrangement of the supporting members 

(such as bearing walls, beams, columns, or girders) of a building, an addition to a 

building, or movement of a building from one location to another. See Structural 

Alterations. 

 

Building, Height of - The vertical distance measured from the average grade of the 

building level of the highest and lowest elevations of the site covered by the building 

to the top of the roof or parapet of the highest story. 

 

Building, Principal - A building in which is conducted the main use of the lot on 
which said building is located. 

 

Bus Depot - A building or premises where commercial motor vehicles pick up and 

discharge fare-paying, passengers. Accessory uses may include ticket offices, luggage 

checking facilities and similar uses. 

 

Business Sign - A sign which directs attention to a business or profession conducted 

or to a commodity, service, or entertainment sold or offered upon the premises on 

which such sign is located or to which it is affixed. See also on-site and off-site signs. 

 

Camper - See Travel Trailer. 

 

Campground - Any premises where two (2) or more camping units are parked or 

placed for camping purposes, or any premises used or set apart for supplying to the 

public camping space for two (2) or more camping units for camping purposes, which 



Yankton County 

7 

 

 

include any buildings, structures, vehicles or enclosures, uses or intended for use or 

intended wholly, or in part, for the accommodation of transient campers. 

 

Camping Unit - Any vehicle, tent, trailer or portable shelter used for camping 

purposes. 

 

Cannabis (or Marijuana) - all parts of any plant of the genus cannabis, whether 

growing or not; the seeds thereof; and every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, 

mixture, or preparation of such plant or its seeds. The term does not include fiber 

produced from the mature stalks of the plant, or oil or cake made from the seeds of 

the plant, or the resin when extracted from any part of the plant or cannabidiol in a 

drug product approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration. The term 

does not include the plant Cannabis sativa L. and any part of that plant, including the 

seeds thereof and all derivatives, extracts, cannabinoids, isomers, acids, salts, and 

salts of isomers, whether growing or not, with a delta-9 tetrahydrocannabinol 

concentration of not more than three-tenths of one percent on a dry weight basis. 

(Amended October 21, 2021) 

 

Cannabis, Allowable amount - (Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

a. Three ounces of cannabis or less; 

b.  A quantity of cannabis products with an equivalent cannabis weight as 

established by rules promulgated by the department under § 34-20G-72; 

d. If the cardholder has a registry identification card allowing cultivation, three 

cannabis plants minimum or as prescribed by physician; and 

e. If the cardholder has a registry identification card allowing cultivation, the 

amount of cannabis and cannabis products that were produced from the 

cardholder's allowable plants, if the cannabis and cannabis products are 

possessed at the same property where the plants were cultivated; 

 

Cannabis Cultivation Facility - a legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, 

cultivates, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells cannabis and related 

supplies to a cannabis establishment. (Amended October 21, 2021) 

 

Cannabis Dispensary - a legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, stores, 

delivers, transfers, transports, sells, supplies, or dispenses cannabis, cannabis 

products, paraphernalia, or related supplies and educational materials. 

(Amended October 21, 2021) 

 

Cannabis Establishment - a cannabis cultivation facility, a cannabis testing facility, a 

cannabis product manufacturing facility, or a cannabis dispensary. (Amended 

October 21, 2021) 

 

Cannabis Establishment, Non-licensed - an entity which would otherwise meet the 

definition of a cannabis establishment but which is not legally licensed. (Amended 

October 21, 2021) 

 

Cannabis product - any concentrated cannabis, cannabis extracts, and products that 

are 



Yankton County 

8 

 

 

infused with cannabis or an extract thereof, and are intended for use or consumption 

by humans. The term includes edible cannabis products, beverages, topical products, 

ointments, oils and tinctures. (Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Cannabis Product Manufacturing Facility - a legally licensed entity that acquires, 

possesses, manufactures, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells cannabis 

products to a cannabis dispensary. (Amended October 21, 2021) 

 

Cannabis Testing Facility - a legally licensed entity legally authorized to analyze the 

safety and potency of cannabis. (Amended October 21, 2021) 

 

Cardholder - a qualifying patient or a designated caregiver who has been issued and 

possesses a valid registry identification card (Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Car Wash - An establishment having facilities for washing motor vehicles by 

production line methods which may include a conveyor system or similar mechanical 

devices. This definition may also include a self-service operation. 

 

Casino - A room or rooms in which legal gaming is conducted. 

 

Cellar - A portion of a building between two floor levels which is partly or wholly 

underground and which has more than one-half (½) of its height, from finished floor 

to finished ceiling or to the underside of the floor joists of the story next above, as the 

case may be, below the average finished grade level adjacent the exterior walls of the 

building. 

 

Cemetery - Land that is set apart or used as a place for the interment of the dead or in 

which human bodies have been buried. “Cemetery” may include a structure for the 

purpose of the cremation of human remains and may include facilities for storing 

ashes of human remains that have been cremated or the interment of the dead in 

sealed crypts or compartments. 

 

Church - A building wherein persons regularly assemble for religious worship, and 

which is maintained and controlled by a religious body organized to sustain public 

worship. 

 

Clinic - A building or part of a building used solely for the purpose of consultation, 

diagnosis and treatment of patients by one or more legally qualified physicians, 

dentists, optometrists, podiatrists, chiropractors, or drugless practitioners, together 

with their qualified assistants, and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the 

building may include administrative offices, waiting rooms, treatment rooms, 

laboratories, pharmacies and dispensaries directly associate with the clinic, but shall 

not include accommodation for in-patient care or operating rooms for major surgery. 

 

Club - A building owned, leased, or hired by a non-profit association of persons the 

use of which is generally restricted to due-paying members and their guests. Such 

club may periodically be rented, or leased, to non-members for gathering such as 

weddings, anniversaries, and dances, but no portion of the building shall continuously 

be used for business purposes. 



Yankton County 

9 

 

 

Common Wall - A wall common to but dividing contiguous buildings; such a wall 

contains no openings and extends from its footing below the finished ground grade to 

the height of the exterior surface of the roof (Amended October 18, 2022) 

 

Company - For purposes of this ordinance the term, “company” includes, but is not 

limited to, any corporation, partnership, limited liability company, limited liability 

partnership, limited partnership, business trust and any other business entity. 

 

Comprehensive Plan - Any legally adopted part or element of the Yankton County 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Commissioners - the Yankton County Board of County Commissioners (Amended 

November 4, 2021) 

 

Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation (CAFO) - An animal feeding operation that 

is previously defined meets one or more of the following criteria: (Amended August 

19, 2021) 

1. Contains at least 500 animal units 

2. Utilizes a Liquid Manure System (see definitions) 

3. Utilizes environmentally controlled housing where the animals are contained 

in a thermostatically controlled environment 

4. Discharges pollutants into waters of the state through man-made ditch, 

flushing system, or other similar man-made device 

5. Discharges pollutants directly into waters of the state which originate outside 

of and pass over, across, or through the facility or otherwise come into direct 

contact with the animals confined in operation 

 

Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation (CAFO) Existing - Concentrated animal 

feeding operations in existence prior to the effective date of this ordinance or any 

subsequent amendment of applicable Articles or Sections. (Amended August 19, 

2021) 

 

Concentrating Solar thermal Device - CST technologies use mirrors to reflect and 

concentrate sunlight onto a receiver. The energy from the concentrated sunlight heats 

a high temperature fluid in the receiver. (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

Conditional Use - A conditional use is a use that would not be appropriate, generally 

or without restriction, throughout the zoning district, but which, if controlled as to 

number, area, location or relation to the neighborhood, would promote the public 

health, safety, welfare, morals, order, convenience, appearance, prosperity or general 

welfare. Such uses may be permitted in such zoning district as conditional uses, if 

specific provision for such conditional use is made in this Ordinance. 

 

Congregate Housing - Housing units that provide a semi-independent living 

environment, which offers residential accommodations, central dining facilities 

(where at least one (1) meal a day is provided seven (7) days a week), related 

facilities, and supporting staff and services to persons of at least sixty-two (62) years 

of age or with disabilities. 



Yankton County 

10 

 

 

Construction Services - A yard, structure, or combination thereof of any general 

contractor or builder where equipment and materials are stored or where a contractor 

performs shop or assembly work but does not include any other yard or establishment 

otherwise defined or classified herein. 

 

Contiguous - Next to, abutting, or touching and having a boundary, or portion thereof, 

which is adjoining. 

 

Contractor - The person who contracts with an individual or developer to construct a 

building on a parcel of land prepared by a developer. 

 

Convenience Store - A retail store in which articles for sale are restricted to gasoline 

sales and a limited range of food items such as milk, bread, soft drinks, ice cream, 

canned and bottled goods, snacks and candy. Retail sales may also include the limited 

sale of magazines, books, house wares, toiletries, bait, alcoholic beverages and 

tobacco. 

 

Court - Any open space, unobstructed from ground to sky, other than a yard, that is on 

the same lot with and bounded on two or more sides by the walls of a building. 

 

Covenant - An agreement, convention, or promise of two or more parties, by deed in 

writing, signed and delivered, by which either of the parties pledges himself to the 

other that something is either done, or shall be done, or shall not be done. The term is 

currently used primarily with respect to promises in conveyance or other instruments 

relating to real estate. 

 

Cul-de-sac - A local right-of-way with only one outlet that terminates in a vehicular 

turnaround and having an appropriate terminal for the safe and convenient reversal of 

traffic turnaround. 

 

Cultivation facility - an entity registered with the department pursuant to this chapter 

that acquires, possesses, cultivates, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells 

cannabis and related supplies to a medical cannabis establishment. (Amended 

November 4, 2021) 

 

Day Care - The providing of care and supervision of children or adults as a 

supplement to regular parental or home care, without transfer of legal custody or 

placement for adoption, with or without compensation, on a regular basis for a part of 

a day. 

 

Day Care Center - Any type of group day care programs including nurseries for 

children of working parents, nursery schools for children under minimum age for 

education in public schools, parent cooperative nursery schools, playgroups for pre- 

school children, programs covering after-school care for school children provided 

such establishment is licensed by the State and conducted in accordance with State 

requirements. 

 

Day Care, Family - The provision of regular care and supervision of no more than 

twelve (12) children including the provider’s own children who are under the age of 



Yankton County 

11 

 

 

six (6) years for part of a twenty-four (24) hour period as a supplement to regular 

parental care. 

 

Day Care, Group Family Home - The provision of regular care and supervision of 

thirteen (13) to twenty (20) children either in the provider’s home or in a facility 

outside the provider’s home for part of a twenty-four (24) hour period as a 

supplement to regular parental care. 

 

Debilitating medical condition – (Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

a. chronic or debilitating disease or medical condition or its treatment that 

produces one or more of the following: cachexia or wasting syndrome; severe, 

debilitating pain; severe nausea; seizures; or sever and persistent muscle 

spasms, including those characteristic of multiple sclerosis; or 

b. Any other medical condition or its treatment added by the department, as 

provided for in SDCL 34-20G-26; 

 

Deck - A structure abutting a dwelling with no roof or walls except for visual 

partitions and railings that is constructed on piers or a foundation above-grade for use 

as an outdoor living area. 

 

Department - the Department of Health (Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Designated caregiver - a person who: (Amended November 4, 2021) 

a. Is at least twenty-one (21) years of age; 

b. Has agreed to assist with a qualifying patient’s medical use of cannabis; 

c. Has not been convicted of a disqualifying felony offense; and 

d. Assists no more than five (5) qualifying patients with the medical use of 

cannabis, unless the designated caregivers’ qualifying patients each reside in 

or are admitted to a health care facility or residential care facility where the 

designated caregiver is employed 

 

Developer - The owner of the property being platted or replatted or the person 

designated by the owner as being responsible for the development of the property. 

The terms “subdivider” and “developer” are synonymous and used interchangeably, 

and shall include any person, partnership, firm, association, corporation and/or any 

officer, agent, employee and trustee thereof who does or participates in the doing of 

any act toward the subdivision of land within the intent, scope and purview of this 

Ordinance. The developer shall also be defined as the builder or contractor if they are 

responsible for the construction of buildings and/or structures or permanent 

improvements. 

 

Directional Sign - A sign erected for the convenience of the public, such as directing 

traffic movement, parking or identifying restrooms, public telephones, walkways and 

other similar features or facilities and bearing no advertising in the message. 

Disqualifying felony offense - a violent crime that was classified as a felony in the 

jurisdiction where the person was convicted. (Amended November 4, 2021) 



Yankton County 

12 

 

 

Domesticated Large Animals - Any animal that through long association with man, 

has been bred to a degree which has resulted in genetic changes affecting the 

temperament, color, conformation or other attributes of the species to an extent that 

makes it unique and different from wild individuals of its kind. For the purpose of this 

ordinance the definition shall include, but is not limited to, animals commonly raised 

on farms and ranches, such as cattle, horses, hogs, sheep, and mules. 

 

Dormitory - A building or part of a building operated by an institution and containing 

a room or rooms forming one or more habitable units which are used or intended to be 

used by residents of the institution for living and sleeping, but not for cooking or 

eating purposes. 

 

Double Faced Sign - An off-site or on-site sign with two adjacent faces oriented in the 

same direction and not more than 10-feet apart at the nearest point between the two 

faces. 

Drive-in Restaurant or Refreshment Stand - Any place or premises used for sale, 

dispensing, or serving of food, refreshments, or beverages in automobiles, including 

those establishments where customers may serve themselves and may eat or drink the 

food, refreshments, or beverages on the premises. 

 

Due Diligence - Such a measure of prudence, activity, or assiduity, as is properly to 

be expected from, and ordinarily exercised by, a reasonable and prudent man under 

the particular circumstances; not measured by any absolute standard, but depending 

on the relevant facts of the special case. 

 

Dwelling - A building or portion of a building designed for residential purposes, 

including one and two family dwellings, but not including hotels, motels or lodging 

houses. 

 

Dwelling Unit - A room or suite of rooms designed for and occupied by one family 

and having not more than one kitchen facility. 

 

Dwelling, Efficiency Unit - A dwelling unit having only one room exclusive of 

bathroom, kitchen, laundry, pantry, foyer, communicating corridor, closets, or any 

dining alcove. An efficiency unit shall be permitted in a multi-family dwelling. 

 

Dwelling, Multiple Family - A residential building designed for, or occupied by, three 

(3) or more families, with the number of families in residence not exceeding the 

number of dwelling units provided. 

 

Dwelling, Single Family - A detached residential dwelling unit other than a 

manufactured home designed for or occupied by one (1) family only. 

 

Dwelling, Two Family - A building containing two dwelling units designed 

exclusively for occupancy by two families living independently of each other. 

 

Easement - Authorization by a property owner for the use by another, and for a 

specified purpose, of any designated part of their property. For the purposes of this 

Ordinance the term shall primarily be used to describe utility access. 



Yankton County 

13 

 

 

Edible cannabis products - any product that: (Amended November 4, 2021) 

a. Contains or is infused with cannabis or an extract thereof; 

b. Is intended for human consumption by oral ingestion; and 

c. Is presented in the form of foodstuffs, beverages, extracts, oils, tinctures, or 

other similar products; 

 

Employee(s) - In regard to off right-of-way parking requirements, all who work in the 

enterprise, including owners. 

 

Enclosed, locked facility - any closet, room, greenhouse, building, or other enclosed 

area that is equipped with locks or other security devices that permit access only by a 

cardholder or a person allowed to cultivate the plants. Two or more cardholders who 

reside in the same dwelling may share one enclosed, locked facility for cultivation. 

(Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Exhibition Areas - A building, group of buildings, or place where art, objects, articles, 

or livestock or agricultural projects are placed on display for the public. 

 

Extraterritorial Zoning Jurisdiction - The area illustrated within the Official Zoning 

Map of Yankton County as described per Article 1 Section 103 Jurisdiction. 

(Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

Facility - A building, piece of land or any combination thereof owned and operated by 

the same owner and dedicated to a specific use or uses. The term shall include those 

operations where indoor and outdoor activities may be conducted in concert and are 

integral or compliment the operation as a whole. An example may be an automobile 

dealership with office spaces, a small indoor display area, separate maintenance 

facility, and an outdoor display area. 

 

Fairground - An agricultural fairground where farm produce is on display for judging 

and for sale, and livestock shows, horseracing and other sports events are held and on 

occasion for auctions, flea markets and concession stands. 

 

Family - Any number of individuals living together as a single housekeeping unit, in 

which not more than five (5) individuals are unrelated by blood, marriage or adoption. 

This definition shall not include foster families as regulated by the State. 

 

Farm Building - All buildings and structures needed in agricultural operation. 

(Amended July 20, 2021) 

 

Farm Drainage Systems - The term shall include all waterways, ditches, flood control, 

watershed, and erosion control structures and devices provided each individual system 

or structure comply with the applicable local, state, and federal regulations. 

 

Farm Occupation - A business activity customarily carried out on a farm by a member 

of the occupant's family without structural alterations in the building or any of its 

rooms, without the installation or outside storage of any machinery, equipment or 

material other than that customary to normal farm operations, without the 

employment of more than two (2) persons not residing in the home, which does not 



Yankton County 

14 

 

 

cause the generation of additional traffic in the area. Farm occupations include, but 

are not limited to, seed sales and custom combining support facilities. 

 

Farm Unit - All buildings and structures needed in an agricultural operation, including 

dwellings for owners, operators, and other family members. 

 

Farm, Hobby - An activity carried out in rural residential areas, which includes the 

planting, cultivating, harvesting and storage of grains, hay or plants, fruits, or 

vineyards. The raising and feeding of livestock and poultry shall be considered as part 

of a hobby farm if the area, in which the livestock or poultry is kept, is one (1) acre or 

more in area for every one (1) animal unit, and if such livestock does not exceed ten 

(10) animal units. 

 

Farm, Ranch, Orchard - An area of unplatted land, which is used for growing usual 

farm products, vegetables, fruits, trees, and grain, and for the raising thereon of the 

usual farm poultry and farm animals such as horses, cattle, hogs and sheep, and 

including the necessary accessory uses for raising, treating, and storing products 

raised on the premises; but excluding an Animal Feeding Operation. The processing 

and storage of raw agricultural products, such as grain elevators and ethanol plants, 

shall not be considered a farm, ranch or orchard if such constitutes the main or 

principal use on the lot or parcel. (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Farmstead - A place with empirical evidence of a previous farmstead including at a 

minimum foundations, structures, or a tree belt. For the purposes of this ordinance the 

Zoning Administrator or Planning Commission shall determine the eligibility of a 

farmstead as a building site as described within Section 516. (Amended August 19, 

2021) 

 

Feeder Line - shall mean any power line that carries electrical power from one or 

more wind turbines or individual transformers associated with individual wind 

turbines to the point of interconnection with the project distribution system, in the 

case of interconnection with the high voltage transmission systems the point of 

interconnection shall be the substation serving the wind energy conversion system. 

(Amended September 3, 2024) 

Fence - An artificially constructed barrier of any material or combination of materials 

erected to enclose, screen, or separate areas. 

 

Financial Institutions - The premises of a bank, trust, finance, mortgage, or 

investment company. 

 

Fireworks, Sales - A building, structure, or place where fireworks are sold, pursuant 

to all applicable state statutes. 

 

Fishery - As defined by South Dakota Administrative Rules, Sections 74:51:02:02 and 

74:51:02:03 (January 17, 1999). Yankton County as described in Section 74:51:02:68. 

• Lakes Marindahl and Yankton (Section 74:51:02:03(4)) are warm water 

permanent fish life propagation waters; 



Yankton County 

15 

 

 

• State or Beaver Lake and Westside Kid’s Pond (Section 74:51:02:03(6)) are 

warm water marginal fish life propagation waters. 

• The Missouri River (Section 74:51:03:05(1,4,7,8,11)) is a domestic water 

supply, warm water permanent fish life propagation waters, immersion 

recreation waters, limited contact recreation waters, and commerce and 

industry waters. 

• James River (Section 74:51:03:20(5,8)) is a warm water semi permanent fish 

life propagation waters and limited contact recreation waters; 

• Beaver Creek, Mud Creek (Section 74:51:03:20(6, 8)), Clay Creek, and 

Turkey Creek (Section 74:51:03:25(6, 8)) are warm water marginal fish life 

propagation waters and limited contact recreation waters. 

 

Flammable or Combustible Liquids, or Hazardous Material - Flammable material is any 

material that will readily ignite from common sources of heat, or that will ignite at a 

temperature of 600o F or less. Flammable liquid is any liquid having a flash point below 

100oF and having vapor pressure not exceeding forty (40) pounds per square inch (absolute) 

at 100oF. Combustible liquid is any liquid having a flash point at or above 100oF. Hazardous 
material includes any flammable solids, corrosive liquids, radioactive materials, oxidizing 

materials, highly toxic materials, poisonous gases, reactive materials, unstable materials, 
hyperbolic materials, pyrophoric materials, and any substance or mixture of substances which 

is an irritant, a strong sensitizer or which generates pressure through exposure to heat, 
decomposition or other means. 

 

Flood or Flooding - A general and temporary condition of partial or complete 

inundation of normally dry land areas from: 

1. The overflow of wetlands, lakes, streams, tributaries, or other water bodies; 

and/or 

2. The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any 

source. 

 

Flood Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM) - The official map issued by the Federal 

Insurance Administration where the areas of special flood hazard have been 

designated Zone A. 

 

Floodway - The channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas 

that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without an accumulative 

increase in the water surface. 

 

Food Product Processing Facility - A commercial establishment in which food or 

food-related products are processed, packaged, or otherwise prepared for human 

consumption but not consumed on the premises. 

 

Footprint – The land area covered or occupied by a building and a facility as defined 

herein. The term shall also include any land area dedicated to a use such as outdoor 

storage or any area utilized for storage, display, or livestock confinement as part of or 

in support of the building or use. 

 

Game Farm - An area of five (5) acres or more, which is used for producing hatchery, 

raised game and non-domestic animals for sale to private shooting preserves. 



Yankton County 

16 

 

 

Game Lodge - A building or group of detached, or semi-detached, or attached 

buildings occupied or used as a temporary abiding place of sportsmen, hunters and 

fishermen, who are lodged, with or without meals, and in which there are more than 

two (2) sleeping rooms. 

 

Gaming Device or Gaming Equipment - Any mechanical contrivance or machine used 

in connection with gaming or any game. 

 

Gaming or Gambling - The dealing, operating, carrying on, conducting, maintaining, 

or exposing for pay of any game. 

 

Gaming or Gambling Establishment - Any premises wherein or whereon gaming is 

done. 

 

Garage - An accessory building or portion of a building including a carport which is 

designed or used for the sheltering of private motor vehicles and the storage of 

household equipment incidental to the residential occupancy and in which there are 

no facilities for repairing or servicing of such vehicles for remuneration or 

commercial use. 

 

Garage, Public - A building or portion thereof used for the housing or care of motor 

vehicles for the general public or where such vehicles are equipped or repaired for 

remuneration or kept for hire or sale. This may include premises commonly known as 

“gasoline stations” or “service stations”. 

 

Gasoline Station - Any area of land, including structures thereon, that is used for the 

sale of gasoline or other motor vehicle fuel, and oil or other lubrication substances; 

and which may include facilities used or designed to be used for polishing, greasing, 

washing, spraying, dry cleaning, or otherwise cleaning such vehicles. 

 

Golf Course - A public or private area operated for the purpose of playing golf, and 

includes a par 3 golf course, club house and recreational facilities, driving ranges, and 

miniature golf courses, and similar uses. 

 

Grain Elevator - Grain storage facilities, which are the principal and primary use of 

the lot. Said facilities are generally equipped with devices for housing and discharging 

significant quantities of grain. This definition does not include normal farm product 

storage and warehousing facilities such as grain bins and where such storage is an 

accessory use to the parcel. 

 

Grandfather - For the purposes of this ordinance the term “grandfather” shall be 

defined as a lay term used to describe structures, land uses, facilities, operations or 

similar activities in existence prior to adoption of the zoning ordinance. The term is 

generally applied to uses not allowed or further regulated within the new ordinance. 

The act or condition of grandfathered is more fully addressed in the nonconforming 

Article herein. 

 

Greenhouse, Commercial - A building for the growing of flowers, plants, shrubs, 

trees, and similar vegetation which are not necessarily transplanted outdoors on the 



Yankton County 

17 

 

 

same lot containing such greenhouse, but are sold directly from such lot at wholesale 

or retail. 

 

Group Home - See Residential Care Facility. 

 

High voltage transmission line - means a conductor of electric energy and associated 

facilities. (Amended September 3, 2024) 

Highway - Every way or place of whatever nature open to the public, as a matter of 

right, for purposed of vehicular travel, is a highway. The term “highway” shall also 

include private access easements and roadways. 

 

Home Occupation - A business activity customarily carried on in the home by a 

member of the occupant's family without structural alterations in the building or any 

of its rooms, without the installation or outside storage of any machinery, equipment 

or material other than that customary to normal household operations, without the 

employment of more than two (2) persons not residing in the home, which does not 

cause the generation of traffic in excess of that experienced on an average right-of- 

way of similar design, noise, electrical interference, fumes, odors, etc. 

 

Horticulture - The science or art of cultivating fruits, vegetables, flowers, and plants. 

 

Horticulture Sales - The on-site retail sale of farm produce, floral, fauna, or similar 

items. The majority of the produce sold shall be seasonal in nature and grown on-site. 

An exception may be a cooperative venture between numerous producers. 

 

Hospital - An institution devoted primarily to the operation of facilities of the 

diagnosis, treatment, and cure of disease, illness, injury, or other abnormal physical 

conditions with provisions for keeping patients overnight. 

 

Hotel - An establishment of transient guests having sleeping rooms without individual 

cooking facilities for more than six (6) persons for compensation and may or may not 

provide meals. 

 

Interchange - A grade-separated intersection with one (1) or more direct connections 

for vehicular travel between the intersecting right-of-ways. 

 

Irrigation Systems - This term shall include all canals, ditches, piping, center pivot, 

and other methods utilized to irrigate cropland. This term does not include systems 

designed to land apply waste or water from animal feeding operations as defined 

herein. All irrigation systems shall comply with local, state, and federal regulations. 

 

Junkyard - A place where non-recyclable waste, having no economic values, or waste, 

which is recyclable, but has no chance of being recycled is deposited. 

 

Kennel - Any place where more than twenty (20) dogs, cats, or other domesticated 

animals of breeding age are housed, groomed, bred, boarded, trained, harbored, kept, 

or sold for commercial purposes. 



Yankton County 

18 

 

 

Lagoon - Any pond, basin, or other impoundment made by excavation or earthen fill 

for storage or treatment of human sewage or animal waste. 

 

Landing Strip - A strip of ground used or capable of being used for the landing and 

take-off of aircraft. 

 

Large Wind Energy Conversion System (LWECS) - shall mean an electrical 

generating facility producing 50 kW or more and comprised of one or more wind 

turbines and accessory facilities, including but not limited to: power lines, 

transformers, substations and meteorological towers that operate by converting the 

kinetic energy of wind into electrical energy. The energy may be used on-site or 

distributed into the electrical grid. Accessory facilities do not include facilities 

utilized for energy storage. (Amended September 3, 2024) 

Loading Area - A completely off right-of-way, space, or berth on the same lot for the 

loading or unloading of freight carriers, having adequate ingress and egress to a 

public right-of-way. 

 

Loading Space, Off Right-of-Way - Space logically and conveniently located for bulk 

pickups and deliveries, scaled to delivery vehicles expected to be used, and accessible 

to such vehicles when required off right-of-way loading space is not to be used as off 

right-of-way parking space in computation of required off right-of-way parking space. 

 

Locker - A meat processing plant and any other facility where meat, poultry or eggs 

are cooked, cured, smoked, or otherwise processed or packed, provided that all 

activities are carried out indoors. This term shall not include a delicatessen, stockyard, 

slaughterhouse, tannery, a poultry killing establishment, an animal food factory, or an 

animal by-products plant. 

 

Lot - For purposes of this ordinance, a lot is a parcel of land of at least sufficient size 

to meet minimum zoning requirements for use, coverage, and area, and to provide 

such yards and other open spaces as are herein required. Such lot shall have frontage 

on an improved public right-of-way, or on an approved private right-of-way, and may 

consist of a single lot of record; a portion of a lot of record; a combination of 

complete lots of record, of complete lots of record and portions of lots of record, a 

parcel of land described by metes and bounds; provided that in no case of division or 

combination shall any residual lot or parcel be created which does not meet the 

requirements of this ordinance. 

 

Lot Coverage - The percent of the area of a lot occupied by buildings, or structures, 

including accessory building or structures. 

 

Lot Depth - The average horizontal distance between the front and rear lot lines. 

 

Lot Frontage - The portion of the lot nearest the right-of-way; for the purpose of 

determining yard requirements on corner lots and through lots, all sides of a lot 

adjacent to right-of-ways shall be considered frontage, and yards shall be provided as 

indicated under “Yards” in this ordinance. 



Yankton County 

19 

 

 

Lot Frontage, Pie Shaped - A lot usually abutting a cul-de-sac. For the purpose of 

determining frontage, said distance shall be measured perpendicularly to the said lot 

lines at a point thirty (30) feet from the front line. 

 

Lot Line - The legally defined limits of any lot. 

 

Lot, Corner - A lot situated at the intersection of two (2) right-of-ways, the interior 

angle of such intersection not exceeding one hundred thirty five (135) degrees. 

 

Lot, Double Frontage - A lot having frontage on two (2) non-intersecting right-of- 

ways, as distinguished from a corner lot. 

 

Lot Line, Exterior - The side lot line, which abuts the right-of-way on a corner lot. 

 

Lot Line, Rear - The lot line or point of intersection of the side lot lines farthest from 
and opposite the front lot line. 

 

Lot Line, Side - A lot line other than a front or rear lot line. 

 

Lot of Record - A lot which is part of a subdivision recorded in the office of the 

County Register of Deeds, or a lot or parcel described by metes and bounds, the 

description of which has been so recorded. For the purposes of this Ordinance, a 

legally transacted parcel prior to adoption may be considered as a lot of record. 

 

Lot Width - The mean horizontal distance between the side lot lines of a lot measured 

at right angles to the depth or the same distance measured at the front building line. 

 

Lot, Corner - A corner lot is defined as a lot located at the intersection of two (2) or 

more right-of-ways. A lot abutting on a curved right-of-way(s) shall be considered a 

corner lot if straight lines drawn from the foremost points of the side lot lines to the 

foremost point of the lot meet at an interior angle of less than one hundred thirty-five 

(l35) degrees. 

 

Lot, Interior - An interior lot is defined as a lot other than a corner lot with only one 

frontage on a right-of-way. 

 

Lot, Through - A through lot is defined as a lot other than a corner lot with frontage 

on more than one right-of-way. Through lots abutting two right-of-ways may be 

referred to as double frontage lot. 

 

Lot, Reversed Frontage - A reversed frontage lot is defined as a lot on which the 

frontage is at right angles or approximately right angles, interior angle less than one 

hundred thirty-five (135) degrees, to the general pattern in the area. A reversed 

frontage lot may also be a corner or a through lot. 

 

Main Building – A building in which is conducted the primary or predominant use of 

the lot on which it is located. (Added June 21, 2022) 

 

Major Road Plan - The Transportation Plan in the Yankton County Comprehensive 

Plan. 



Yankton County 

20 

 

 

Major Recreational Equipment - Major recreational equipment is defined as including 

boats and boat trailers, travel trailers, pick-up campers or coaches, designed to be 

mounted on automotive vehicles, motorized dwellings, tent trailers, and the like, and 

case or boxes used for transporting recreational equipment, whether occupied by such 

equipment or not. 

 

Manufactured Home - A moveable or portable dwelling which is eight (8) feet or 

more in width and thirty-two (32) feet or more in length, constructed on a chassis, and 

which is designed to be towed, designed for year-round occupancy, primarily to be 

used without a permanent foundation, but which may sit on a permanent foundation, 

and designed to be connected to utilities. It may consist of one or more units, 

separately transportable, but designed to be joined together into one integral unit. 

Manufactured homes are built according to the Federal Manufactured Housing 

Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, which became effective June 15, 

1976. Manufactured homes are not mobile homes. 

 

The following shall not be included in this definition: 

1. Travel trailers, pickup coaches, motor homes, camping trailers, or other 

recreational vehicles. 

2. Manufactured modular housing which is designed to be set on a 

permanent foundation, and which uses standard sheathing, roofing, 

siding, and electrical, plumbing, and heating systems. 

 

Manufactured Home Park - A parcel of land under single ownership, which has been 

planned and improved for the placement of, manufactured homes for non-transient 

use. 

 

Manufacturing - The use of land, buildings or structures for the purpose of 

manufacturing, assembly, making, preparing, inspecting, finishing, treating, altering, 

repairing, warehousing or storing or adapting for sale of any goods, substance, article, 

thing or service. 

 

Manufacturing Light - The use of land, buildings or structures for the purpose of 

manufacturing, assembly, making, preparing, inspecting, finishing, treating, altering, 

repairing, warehousing or storing or adapting for sale of any goods, substance, article, 

thing or service. Light manufacturing shall have no more than ten employees. 

 

Manure System Definitions: (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

1. Solid Manure System – Any style of manure not conforming to the definition 

of “Liquid Manure”. Example systems include floor-raised poultry, deep- 

bedded housing systems, and dry lots. Vast majority (>90%) of excreted 

manure will be maintained in form that can be handled with a front-end loader 

and stacked without seepage under normal operating conditions. Example 

systems include floor-raised poultry, deep-bedded housing systems, and 

drylots 

 

2. Liquid Manure System – Vast majority (>90%) of excreted manure will be 

stored in a form that – with or without agitation/mixing – can be handled with 

a common centrifugal pump under normal operating conditions. Example 



Yankton County 

21 

 

 

systems include slatted floor facilities and facilities where manure can be 

transferred via gravity. 

 

Massage Establishment - Any premises or part thereof where massages are given, 

offered or solicited in pursuance of a trade or calling, business or occupation provided 

that the service is rendered by a person duly trained, licensed and registered under the 

appropriate statute. 

 

Medical use - includes the acquisition, administration, cultivation, manufacture, 

delivery, harvest, possession, preparation, transfer, transportation, or use of cannabis 

or paraphernalia relating to the administration of cannabis to treat or alleviate a 

registered qualifying patient’s debilitating medical condition or symptom associated 

with the patient’s debilitating medical condition. The term does not include: 

(Amended November 4, 2021) 

a. The cultivation of cannabis by a nonresident cardholder; 

b. The cultivation of cannabis by a cardholder who is not designated as being 

allowed to cultivate on the card holder’s registry identification card; or 

c. The extraction of resin from cannabis by solvent extraction unless the 

extraction is done by a cannabis product manufacturing facility 

 

Meteorological Tower - shall mean, for purposes of this regulation, a tower which is 

erected primarily to measure wind speed and directions plus other data relevant to 

siting a Small or Large Wind Energy Conversion System. Meteorological towers do 

not include towers and equipment used by airports, the South Dakota Department of 

Transportation, or other applications to monitor weather conditions. (Amended 

September 3, 2024) 

Mobile Home - A transportable, factory-built home, designed to be used as a year- 

round residential dwelling and built prior to the enactment of the Federal 

Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, which 

became effective June 15, 1976. 

 

Modular Home - A structure or building module that is manufactured at a location 

other than the site upon which it is installed and used as a residence; transportable in 

one or more sections on a temporary chassis or other conveyance device; and to be 

used as a permanent dwelling when installed and placed upon a permanent foundation 

system. This term includes the plumbing, heating, air conditioning, and electrical 

systems contained within the structure. 

 

Motel - A group of attached or detached buildings on the same lot containing sleeping 

quarters for rental to transients. 

 

Motor Vehicle Track or Play Area - An area of land utilized for the racing or 

recreational riding of motor vehicles with or without a defined area or track. The term 

may include a racetrack with spectators and an established racing affiliation or a day 

use area utilized by a club, group, or independent individuals. A motor vehicle may 



Yankton County 

22 

 

 

include cars, trucks, motorcycles, all-terrain vehicles or similar items. (Amended 

May 19, 2020) 

 

Museum - A building or buildings used, or to be used, for the preservation of a 

collection of paintings and/or other works of art, and/or of objects of natural history, 

and/or of mechanical, scientific and/or philosophical inventions, instruments, models 

and/or designs and dedicated or to be dedicated to the recreation of the public, 

together with any libraries, reading rooms, laboratories and/or other offices and 

premises used or to be used in connection therewith. 

 

Navigable Waters - A body of water presently being used or is suitable for use for 

transportation and commerce, or if it has been so used or was suitable for such use in 

the past, or if it could be made suitable for such use in the future by reasonable 

improvements. 

 

Non-Participating – A property that is not a participating property. 

(Amended September 3, 2024) 

Nonconforming Lot - A lot of record existing on the date of passage of this ordinance 

which does not have the minimum width or contain the minimum area for the zone in 

which it is located. 

 

Nonconforming Structure - A lawful structure which exists on the date of passage of 

this ordinance that could not be built under the terms of this ordinance by reason of 

restrictions on area, lot coverage, height, yard setbacks, or other characteristics of the 

structure. 

 

Nonconforming Use - A land use or building or structure or portion thereof lawfully 

existing at the effective date of this ordinance or at the time of any amendment 

thereto, which does not conform to the regulations of the zone in which it is located. 

 

Nonresident cardholder - a person who: (Amended November 4, 2021) 

a. Has been diagnosed with a debilitating medical condition, or is the parent, 

guardian, conservator, or other person with authority to consent to the medical 

treatment of a person who has been diagnosed with a debilitating medical 

condition; 

b. Is not a resident of this state or who has been a resident of this state for fewer 

than forty-five (45) days; 

c. Was issued a currently valid registry identification card or its equivalent by 

another state, district, territory, commonwealth, insular possession of the 

United States, or country recognized by the United States that allows the 

person to use cannabis for 

medical purposes in the jurisdiction of issuance; and. 

d. Has submitted any documentation required by the department and has received 

confirmation of registration 

 

Noxious - When used with reference to any use or activity in respect of any land, 
building or structure or a use or activity which, from its nature or from the manner of 



Yankton County 

23 

 

 

carrying on same, creates or is liable to create, by reason or destructive gas or fumes, 

dust, objectionable odor, noise or vibration or unsightly storage of goods, wares, 

merchandise, salvage, machinery parts, junk, waste or other material, a condition 

which may become hazardous or injurious as regards to health or safety or which 

prejudices the character of the surrounding area or interferes with or may interfere 

with the normal enjoyment of any use of activity in respect of any land, building or 

structure. 

 

Nuisance - Any condition existing that is or may become injurious or dangerous to 

health or that prevents or hinders or may prevent or hinder in any manner the 

suppression of a disease. 

 

Nursery, Swine - A facility confining a specific number of small and/or young swine 

averaging ten (10) to fifty five (55) pounds in size. (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Nursing Home, Rest Home, Convalescent Home - A place which undertakes through 

its ownership or management to provide maintenance, personal, or nursing care for 

three or more persons who by reason of illness, physical deformity, or old age are 

unable to care for themselves. 

 

Obstruction - Any structure or vegetation that blocks the complete vision of people. 

 

Off-Site Sign - A sign/billboard that advertises goods or services not available at the 

location of the billboard or advertising sign. 

Office - A building or part thereof, designed, intended or used for the practice of a 

profession, the carrying on of a business, the conduct of public administration, or, 

where not conducted on the site thereof, the administration of an industry, but shall 

not include a retail commercial use, any industrial use, clinic, financial institution or 

place of amusement or place of assembly. 

 

On-Site Sign - A sign identifying an establishment's activities, products or services 

conducted or available on the property upon which it is located and signs advertising 

the sale or lease of the property upon which they are located. 

Open Sales Area - Any open land or area used or occupied for the purpose of 

displaying for sale new or secondhand merchandise, including but not limited to, 

passenger cars or trucks, farm machinery, construction machinery, motor scooters or 

motorcycles, boats, trailers, aircraft, and monuments. 

Outdoor Storage Area - Any open land or area used for the purpose of storage of any 

product or part of a product either before, during, or after manufacturing, servicing, or 

repairing and not displayed for retail sale. This does not include open sales areas. 

 

Owner - The record owners of the fee or a vendee in possession, including any 

person, group of persons, firm or firms, corporation or corporations, or any other legal 

entity having legal title to or sufficient proprietary interest in the land sought to be 

subdivided. 



Yankton County 

24 

 

 

Ownership Line - A line defining ownership of property under one owner of record. 

 

Parcel - A legally defined piece of property including a platted lot, legally described 

portion, or similarly described piece of property primarily used as an identifier within 

taxation. 

 

Park - An area consisting largely of open space, which may include a recreational 

area, playground, or similar use but shall not include a mobile home park, a 

campground or trailer park. 

 

Parking Space - An off right-of-way space available for parking of a motor vehicle 

and which is held to be an area for dimension of which are ten (10) feet by twenty 

(20) feet or which covers two hundred (200) square feet, exclusive of passageways 

and driveways appurtenant thereto and giving access thereto. Off right-of-way 

parking shall be on or adjacent to the property on which the principal use is located. 

 

Parking Space, Off Right-of-Way - For the purposes of this ordinance, an off right-of- 

way parking space shall consist of a space adequate for parking an automobile with 

room for opening doors on both sides, together with properly related access to a right- 

of-way and maneuvering room. Required off right-of-way parking areas for three (3) 

or more automobiles shall have individual spaces marked, and shall be so designed, 

maintained, and regulated that no parking or maneuvering incidental to parking shall 

be on any right-of-way, and so that any automobile may be parked and un-parked 

without moving another. For purposes of rough computation, an off right-of-way 

parking space and necessary access and maneuvering may be estimated at three 

hundred (300) square feet, but off right-of-way parking requirements will be 

considered to be met only when actual spaces meeting the requirements above are 

provided and maintained, improved in a manner appropriate to the circumstances of 

the case, and in accordance with all ordinances and regulations of the County. 

 

Participating – A property that is a host property to a project or a property that is 

subject of an agreement that provides for the payment of monetary compensation to 

the landowner regardless of whether any part of the project is constructed on the 

property and specifies in writing any waiver of a requirement or right under this 

ordinance and the landowner’s acceptance of payment establishes the landowner’s 

property as a participating property. (Amended September 3, 2024) 

Pawnshop - An establishment where money is loaned on the security of personal 

property pledged in the keeping of the pawnbroker. 

 

Performance Standards – 

Criterion established for the purposes of: 
1. Assigning proposed land uses to proper districts; and 

2. Controlling noise, odor, glare, smoke, toxic matter, aesthetics, vibration, 

fire/explosive hazards generated by, or inherent in, uses of land or 

buildings. 

 

Permitted Use - A use by right, which is specifically authorized in a particular zoning 

district. 



Yankton County 

25 

 

 

Permitted Special Use - A use allowed in a zoning district subject to the applicable 

restrictions of that zoning district and additionally subject to certain restrictions for 

that specific use. (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Person - Any individual or group of individuals, or any corporation, general or limited 

partnership, joint venture, unincorporated association, or governmental or quasi- 

governmental entity. 

 

Places of Assembly - Places where people gather or congregate for amusement, 

worship, learning, etc. This includes schools, churches, theaters, playgrounds, etc. 

 

Place of worship - a structure where persons regularly assemble for worship, 

ceremonies, rituals, and education relating to a particular form of religious belief and 

which a reasonable person would conclude is a place of worship by reason of design, 

signs, or architectural or other features. (Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Plat - a map, or representation on paper, of a piece of land subdivided into lots, parcels, 

tracts or blocks, including roads, commons, and public grounds, if any, all drawn to scale 

and complete with all irrevocable offers of dedication. 

Planning Commission - The Planning Commission of Yankton County. The term 

Planning Commission shall be synonymous with Planning and Zoning Commission 

and Commission, but shall not include Board of Adjustment or Zoning Board. 

 

Planning Official: The Planning (Zoning) Administrator and his/her designee charged 

with the administration and enforcement of the Yankton County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Plaza - A public square or similar open area. 

 

Portable Processing Plant - Any equipment for the crushing, screening or washing of 

sand and gravel aggregate materials, but not including a concrete batching plant or an 

asphalt plant, which equipment is capable of being readily drawn or readily propelled 

by a motor vehicle and which equipment is not considered permanently affixed to the 

site. 

 

Practitioner - a physician who is licensed with authority to prescribe drugs to humans. 

In relation to a nonresident cardholder, the term means a person who is licensed with 

authority to prescribe drugs to humans in the state of the patient’s residence. 

(Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Principal Use - The main use of land or structures as distinguished from a secondary 

or accessory use. 

 

Private Recreation Area - Any open space or recreational area, other than a public 

park, owned and operated or maintained in whole or in part for profit by a private 

individual(s), club or fraternal organization for members only, and may include 

therein one or more of the following activities: swimming, boat facilities, picnic area, 

tennis courts, outdoor skating rinks, athletic fields, walking, riding and cross-country 



Yankton County 

26 

 

 

skiing, snowmobiling, but does not include the racing of animals, motor vehicles, 

motorcycles or snowmobiles. 

 

Private Shooting Preserves - An acreage of at least one hundred and sixty (160) acres 

and not exceeding one thousand two hundred and eighty (1,280) acres either privately 

owned or leased on which hatchery raised game and/or larger game is released for the 

purpose of hunting, for a fee, over an extended season. 

 

Property Line - The division between two parcels of land, or between a parcel of land 

and the right-of-way. 

 

Public - Promotion of a public cause or service, including utilities having a franchise 

from Yankton County or other governmental entity, but excluding other for-profit 

organizations. 

 

Public Building - Any building which is owned, leased, primarily used, and/or 

primarily occupied by a school district or municipal, county, state, or federal 

government, or any subdivision or agency of the school district, municipal, county, 

state, or federal government. 

 

Publicly Traded Company - For purposes of this Ordinance a “publicly traded 

company” means a company, the shares or other interests in which are regularly 

traded on the New York Stock Exchange, the American Stock Exchange, NASDAQ 

or similar recognized security market. 

 

Qualifying patient - a person who has been diagnosed by a practitioner as having a 

debilitation medical condition. (Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Quarry - A place where consolidated rock has been or is being removed by means of 

an open excavation to supply material for construction, industrial, or manufacturing 

purposes, but does not include a wayside quarry or open pit metal mine. 

 

Ranch Building - See Farm Building. 

 

Ranch Occupation - See Farm Occupation. 

 

Ranch Unit - See Farm Unit. 

 

Recreational Equipment - The term recreational equipment shall include boats and 

boat trailers, jet skis, snowmobiles, travel trailers, pick-up campers or coaches, 

designed to be mounted on automotive vehicles, motorized dwellings, tent trailers, 

and the like, and case or boxes used for transporting recreational equipment, whether 

occupied by such equipment or not. 

 

Recycling Center - A building in which used material is separated and processed prior 
to shipment to others who will use those materials to manufacture new products. 

 

Registry identification card - a document issued by the department that identifies a 

person as a registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver, or 

documentation that is deemed a registry identification card pursuant to SDCL 34- 



Yankton County 

27 

 

 

20G-29 to SDCL 34-20G-42 inclusive. (Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Remote Fuel Depots - A structure, usually unmanned, that is used for the sale of 

gasoline, diesel, or other motor vehicle fuel. 

 

Rent-All Shop - A building or part of a building where residential and commercial 

equipment is kept for rental to the general public and includes such things as lawn and 

garden tools, floor cleaning equipment, masonry tools, painting and decorating 

equipment, moving tools, plumbing tools and power tools. 

 

Repair Shop, Auto Body - A general industrial establishment for the repair of damage 

to a motor vehicle caused by collision, accident, corrosion or age, and, without 

limiting the generality of the foregoing, includes the reconstruction of motor vehicles, 

the painting or repainting of motor vehicles and the rebuilding or conversion of 

automotive engines or engine parts, but does not include a motor vehicle repair shop, 

an impounding yard, an automobile service station or a gas station. 

 

Repair Shop, Motor Vehicle - A service commercial or general industrial 

establishment for the repair or replacement of parts in a motor vehicle and without 

limiting the generality of the foregoing, shocks, transmissions, gears, brakes, clutch 

assemblies, steering assemblies, radiators, heating or cooling systems, ignition 

systems, mechanical or electrical parts or systems, the installation of undercoating, 

engine tuning, lubrication and engine conversion or replacement, but does not include 

an auto body repair shop, an impounding yard, an automobile service station or a gas 

station. 

 

Residential Care Facility - A family home, group care facility, or similar facility for 

twenty-four (24) hour non-medical care of persons in need of personal services, 

supervision or assistance for sustaining the activities of daily living or for the 

protection of the individual. 

 

Restaurant - A business establishment consisting of a kitchen and dining room, whose 

primary purpose is to prepare and serve food to be eaten by customers seated in the 

dining room. 

 

Restaurant, Drive-In - A business establishment consisting of a kitchen, with or 

without a dining room, where food is prepared and packaged to eat either off the 

premises or within automobiles parked on the premises. 

 

Restaurant, In-House - A private business establishment consisting of a kitchen, with 

or without a dining room, whose primary purpose is to prepare and serve food to be 

eaten by employees of the principal employer. For the purposes of this ordinance, the 

term “cafeteria” shall be synonymous with “Restaurant, In-House.” 

 

Rest Home - See Nursing Homes. 

 

Retail Sales - A building where goods, wares, merchandise, substances, articles, or 

items are offered or kept for sale at retail, including storage of limited quantities of 

such goods, wares, merchandise, substances, articles, or items sufficient only to 

service such store. 



Yankton County 

28 

 

 

Retail Store - A building where goods, wares, merchandise, substances, articles or 

items are offered or kept for sale at retail, including storage of limited quantities of 

such goods, wares, merchandise, substances, articles or items sufficient only to 

service such store. 

 

Retaining Wall - A structure constructed to hold back or support an earthen bank. 

 

Riding Stable - Any place that has more than fifteen (15) stalls or horse spaces to 

board, train, or provide recreational equine activities. 

 

Right-of-Way; ROW - An area of land that is legally described in a registered deed 

for the provision of public access within which there is usually a road or street. The 

term right-of-way shall include any defined access route or point including but not 

limited to public and private accesses, road easements, streets, roads, and drives other 

than a private drive serving a single owner. 

 

Right-of-Way Line - A dividing line between a lot, tract, or parcel of land and the 

public right-of-way. 

 

Roadside Stand - A structure having a ground area of not more than three hundred 

(300) square feet, not permanently fixed to the ground, readily removable in its 

entirety, not fully enclosed and to be used solely for the sale of farm products 

produced on the premises, bait, and other approved products. 

 

Rodeo Grounds - A building or place where rodeo events such as roping and riding 
are done for practice or competition. 

 

Rotor Diameter - shall mean the diameter of the circle described by the moving rotor 

blades. (Amended September 3, 2024) 

Row of Trees - Ten (10) or more trees planted in a line, separated by a distance of 

forty (40) feet or less. 

 

Running Gear - The parts which allow a manufactured home to be mobile including 

the tires, wheels, axles, running lights, and hitch. This definition shall include all 

mobility items exclusive of the parts of the chassis that make up the structural 

integrity of the manufactured home. 

 

Salvage Yard - The use of more than seven hundred fifty (750) square feet of open 

storage on any lot, portion of lot, or tract of land for the sale, storage, keeping, or for 

the abandonment, dismantling, or wrecking of automobiles or other vehicles, 

machines, or parts thereof. 

 

Satellite Dish/Receiver - A device incorporating a reflective surface that is solid, open 

mesh, or bar configured and is the shape of a shallow dish or cone designed and used 

for the reception of television signals related back to earth from a terrestrially and/or 

orbital based communications satellite. 

 

School, Boarding - A school under the sponsorship of a private agency, corporation, 

or religious entity, having a curriculum generally equivalent to public elementary or 



Yankton County 

29 

 

 

secondary schools, accredited by the State of South Dakota and provides room and 

board for its students; but excluding private trade or commercial schools. “Day Care 

Centers” as herein defined, shall not be considered schools as applicable to this 

definition. 

 

School, Denominational or Private - A school under the sponsorship of a private 

agency, corporation, or religious entity, having a curriculum generally equivalent to 

public elementary or secondary schools and accredited by the State of South Dakota; 

but excluding private trade or commercial schools. “Day Care Centers” as herein 

defined, shall not be considered schools as applicable to this definition. 

 

School, Public - A school under the sponsorship of a public agency providing 

elementary or secondary curriculum, and accredited by the State of South Dakota; but 

excluding private trade or commercial schools. 

 

School, Trade or Commercial - An establishment other than an accredited or licensed 

public, private or denominational school, offering training or instruction in art, 

occupation or trade. 

 

Screening - A continuous fence, wall, compact evergreen hedge or combination 

thereof, supplemented with landscape planting, which would effectively screen the 

property which it encloses, and is broken only by access drives and walks. 

 

Secondhand Shop - The use of land or building or structure or part thereof where used 

goods, wares, merchandise, substances, or articles are offered or kept for sale but shall 

not include a pawnshop. 

 

Security Dwelling Unit - A building or portion thereof designed for occupancy by a 

security employee. 

 

Self-Storage Warehouse - A building containing separate, individual self-storage units 

divided from the floor to the ceiling by a wall with an independent entrance from the 

exterior of the building, designed to be rented or leased on a short-term basis to the 

general public for private storage of personal goods, materials and equipment. 

 

Semi-Portable Agricultural Structures - Anything that requires placement on the 

ground for agriculture related purposes. Semi-portable agricultural structures include, 

but are not limited to, feed bunks, calving, lambing, or farrowing sheds, and 

temporary grain storage facilities. 

 

Services - Establishments, primarily engaged in providing services for individuals, 

business and government establishments and other organizations, including hotels and 

other lodging places, establishments providing personal business, repair, and 

amusement services, health, legal, engineering, and other professional services, 

educational institutions, membership organizations, and other miscellaneous services. 

 

Service Establishment - Establishments primarily engaged in providing services for 

individuals, business and government establishments and other organizations, 

including hotels and other lodging places, establishments providing personal business, 

repair, and amusement services, health, legal, engineering, and other professional 



Yankton County 

30 

 

 

services, educational institutions, membership organizations and other miscellaneous 

services. 

 

Setback - The minimum horizontal distance from a lot line, to a wall of the building, 

exclusive of permitted projections. The setback shall be measured at right angles to 

such lot lines. 

 

Shared Wall Structure – A structure that contains two (2) or more units that share 

common walls (known as party walls). Shared wall structures include: dwellings two 

family, dwellings multiple families, residential and commercial buildings. (Amended 

October 18, 2022) 

 

Shelterbelt - Five or more rows of trees and/or shrubs that reduce erosion and protects 

against the effects of wind and storms. 

 

Shelterbelt Restoration - The removal and replacement of two or more rows of trees 

or of trees totaling one-half acre or more, whichever is greater, in an existing 

shelterbelt. 

 

Side Wall - The measurement from the highest point of the finished floor at grade to 

the height of the highest point of wall framing. 

 

Sight Triangle - See “Traffic Visibility Triangle”. 

 

Signs/Billboards - Any sign defined in this ordinance which displays or conveys any 

identification, description, illustration, or device illuminated or non-illuminated, 

which directs attention to a product, service, business activity, institution, business or 

solicitation, including any permanently installed or situated merchandise, or any 

emblem, painting, banner, pennant or placard designed to advertise, identify or 

convey information, with the exception of window displays. 

 

Sign Structure - The sign face and support members that are permanently affixed to 

the ground or attached to a structure. 

Sign - Any device designed to inform or attract the attention of persons not on the 

premises on which the sign is located, provided, however, that the following shall not 

be included in the application of the regulations herein: 

1. Signs not exceeding one (1) square foot in area and bearing only property 

numbers, post office box numbers, names of occupants of premises, or 

other identification or premises not having commercial connotations; 

2. Flags and insignias of any government, except when displayed in 

connection with commercial promotion; 

3. Legal notices, identification, informational, or directional signs erected or 

required by governmental bodies; 

4. Integral decorative or architectural feature of buildings, except letters, 

trademarks, moving parts, or moving lights; and 

5. Signs directing and guiding traffic and parking on private property, but 

bearing no advertising matter. 



Yankton County 

31 

 

 

Sign, Banner - A temporary sign, which has a maximum area of twelve (12) square 

feet, composed of lightweight material either enclosed or not in a rigid frame, secured 

or mounted so as to allow movement of the sign caused by movement of the 

atmosphere (i.e., pennants, twirling signs, balloon, or other gas-filled figures, ribbons, 

or other similar moving devices) and intended to be displayed for a limited period of 

time. 

 

Sign, Bulletin Board - An exterior sign, which has a maximum area of thirty-five (35) 

square feet, used by public, charitable, and religious institutions for the purpose of 

informing the public about activities of their organization. 

 

Sign, Directional Off-Site - An exterior sign that is generally informational, that has a 

purpose secondary to the use of the primary use on a property that is not adjacent to 

the property on which the directional off-site sign exists. Said sign shall include only 

those signs placed by a political subdivision and shall include those signs 

standardized by the South Dakota Department of Transportation. 

 

Sign, Directional On-Site - An exterior sign that is generally informational, that has a 

purpose secondary to the use of the property on which it is located, such as “no 

parking,” “entrance,” and “loading only.” Said sign shall conform to standards 

adopted or approved by the regulating public agency. 

 

Sign, Easement and Utility - An exterior sign, which has a maximum area of five (5) 

square feet, used to identify the location of easements, property lines, utilities, 

hazards, or otherwise providing notice of restrictions on public access. 

 

Sign, Exterior On-site - An exterior sign relating in subject to the premises upon 

which it is located, or to products, accommodations, services, or activities on the 

premises. Exterior on-site signs do not include signs erected by outdoor advertising 

industry in the conduct of the outdoor advertising business, such as billboards, which 

are off-site signs. 

 

Sign Facing - That portion of a sign structure upon which advertising is affixed or 

painted and visible in one direction at one time. 

Sign, Flag - Any fabric or bunting containing distinctive colors, patterns, or symbols, 

which has a maximum area of twenty (20) square feet and is used as a symbol of 

government, political subdivision, or other entity. 

 

Sign, Ground and Monument - An exterior sign permanently attached to the ground to 

identify churches, schools, institutional, and public uses. Said sign may also identify a 

specific neighborhood by displaying the name of the tract. Ground and monument 

signs: 

1. Are generally constructed of concrete or other masonry material; 

2. Shall not exceed twenty (20) feet in height above the mean right-of-way 

centerline or grade; 

3. Shall meet a minimum of one-half (½) of the yard requirements for the 

district in which it is located; and 

4. Shall not exceed one hundred (100) square feet on one (1) side or two 

hundred (200) square feet on all sides of any one (1) premise. 



Yankton County 

32 

 

 

Sign, Mounted Wall - A sign, which has a maximum area of one hundred (100) 

square feet, that is attached to or erected against a wall of a building and shall project 

no more than twelve (12) inches from the wall of the building. Said sign is intended to 

be read from directly in front of the face of the building. 

 

Sign, Name and Address Plate - A sign, which has a maximum area of two (2) square 

feet, that is affixed to the side of a building informing the public as to the residents, 

occupation, and/or address of the building. 

 

Sign, Off-Site - A sign other than an on-site sign. Off-site signs are conventionally 

know as billboards regardless of size. 

 

Sign, Portable - Any sign, which has a maximum area of twenty (20) square feet, not 

permanently attached to the ground or other permanent structure, or a sign designed to 

be transported, including, but not limited to, signs designed to be transported by 

means of wheels; signs converted to A or T-frames; menu and sandwich board signs. 

Signs attached to or painted on vehicles parked and visible from the public right-of- 

way shall not be included in this definition and shall be prohibited unless said vehicle 

is used in normal day-to-day operations of the business. Said sign is intended to be 

displayed for a limited period of time. 

 

Sign, Projecting - Any sign, which has a maximum area of one hundred (100) square 

feet, that is affixed to a building or wall in such a manner that its face is perpendicular 

to the face of the building and the sign extends more than twelve (12) inches beyond 

the surface of such building or wall. 

 

Sign, Real Estate - An exterior sign for the purpose of advertising the sale, rental, 

lease of real property. Said sign is located on the premises for sale, rental, or lease and 

shall be of a temporary nature and shall have a maximum area of four (4) square feet 

except in the Commercial, Highway Commercial, or Industrial Districts where the 

maximum area shall be thirty-two (32) square feet. 

 

Sign, Roof - Any sign, which has maximum area of three hundred (300) square feet 

that is erected upon, against, or directly above a roof or on top of the parapet of a 

building. 

 

Small Wind Energy Conversion System - shall mean a wind energy conversion 

system consisting of a Horizontal-Axis Wind Turbine (HAWT), a Vertical-Axis Wind 

Turbine (VAWT), which may include a tower, and associated control or conversion 

electronics, which has a rated capacity of less than 50 kWh and which is primarily 

intended to reduce on-site consumption of utility power. (Amended September 3, 

2024) 

Solar Energy – Radiant energy received from the sun that can be collected in the form 

of heat or light by a solar collector. (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

Solar Energy Conversion System – Solar energy conversion systems are any 

combination of solar panels on a parcel of property (Amended December 19, 2023) 



Yankton County 

33 

 

 

Start of construction – includes substantial improvement, and means the date the 

building permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, 

reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition placement, or other improvement was within 

180 days of the permit date. The actual start means either the first placement of 

permanent construction of a structure on a site, such as the pouring of slabs or 

footings, installation of piles, construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage 

of excavation; or the placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. Permanent 

construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; 

nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include 

excavation for a basement, footings, piers or foundations or the erection of temporary 

forms; nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings such 

as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or are not part of the main 

structure. For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the 

first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, 

whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building. 

(Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Street - A right-of-way established by a recorded plat to provide the primary means of 

access to abutting property. The term shall also include the term “road” or other 

similar means of conveyance or access. 

 

Street Line - The right-of-way line of a street. 

 

Street, Arterial - A public street or highway intended to be used primarily for fast or 

heavy through traffic. 

 

Structure - Anything constructed or erected which requires location on the ground, or 

attached to something having a fixed location on the ground. Among other things, 

structures include, but are not limited to, buildings and manufactured homes. This 

definition does not include semi-portable agricultural structures. 

 

Structural Alterations - Any change in the supporting members of a structure such as 

bearing walls, columns, beams or girders, foundations and poles. See Building, 

Alterations of. 

 

Substations - shall mean any electrical facility to convert electricity to a voltage 

greater than 35,000 KV for interconnection with high voltage transmission lines. 

(Amended September 3, 2024) 

Swine Production Unit - An operation confining a specific number of female breeding 

age swine for the purpose of farrowing. The operation shall farrow no more than an 

average of one-third (1/3) of the total herd at any one time and the total herd shall not 

farrow more than an average of two and one-half (2 ½) times within a twelve month 

period. All farrowed swine shall be relocated to an off-site nursery facility, as defined 

by this ordinance, at approximately ten (10) pounds or said swine shall be calculated 

as part of the total animal units. 

 

Tank Farm - A facility having two or more storage containers for the transfer of 

inorganic liquids or gases and from which wholesale sales of fuel to the public is or 

may be conducted. 

https://www.lawinsider.com/dictionary/start-of-construction


Yankton County 

34 

 

 

Temporary Construction Facilities - Parcels of land or structures where construction 

or mining support facilities are constructed or placed at or near a job site to provide 

materials and support mechanisms for construction or mining projects. The term shall 

include but is not limited to portable offices, signage, trailers, stationary and mobile 

equipment, and scales. Common uses include portable concrete, processing, or asphalt 

plants, job site trailers, and areas for equipment parking, material storage or 

stockpiling. The term temporary shall be flexible yet is generally tied to a related 

construction project with defined start-up and completion times. 

 

Temporary Signs - Signs and sign structures that are temporary in nature used in 

conjunction with a specific event, that are placed or erected in such a manner to be 

easily removed from the property and are not permanently affixed. All political signs 

shall be considered temporary signs. Temporary signs shall not exceed 32 square feet 

in size. 

Thrift Shop - A shop operated by a charitable organization, which sells, donated used 

merchandise only. All such merchandise shall be displayed and/or stored in an 

enclosed building. 

 

Tower - A structure situated on a nonresidential site that is intended for transmitting 

or receiving television, radio, or telephone communications, excluding those used 

exclusively for governmental dispatch communications. 

 

Traffic Visibility Triangle - The triangular space formed by the right-of-way lines of a 

corner lot and driveways with a line drawn from a point in one right-of-way line to a 

point in the other right-of-way line, each such point being thirty (30) feet from the 

point of intersection of the right-of-way lines (measured along the right-of-ways 

lines). Where the two (2) right-of-way lines do not intersect at a point, the point of 

intersection of the right-of-way lines shall be deemed to be the intersection of the 

projection of the right-of-way lines or the intersection of the tangents to the right-of- 

way lines. In the case of arterial highways intersecting with other arterial highways or 

railways, the distances establishing the sight triangle shall be increased to fifty (50) 

feet. 



Yankton County 

35 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Trailer Park - This definition shall include the following existing trailer courts or parks: 

 

1. Country Acres, legally described as LT C exc LTS H2 & all LT D lane’s S/D; 

 

2. Country Liven’, legally described as Lot A NE4 SW4 10-93-55; 

 

3. Country View, legally described as LT A & S2 LT B & W30’ N2 NE4 NE4 16-93- 

55; 

 

4. Sunrise, legally described as Parcel C LT 2 NE4 less LTS H1 & H2 16-93-55; 

 

5. Hansen’s Court, legally described as LT D N2 NE4 NE4 less Lot H1 16-93-55; 

 

6. Lakeside Court, legally described as Lakeside SE4 SE4 (10.66 A) 16-93-56; 

 

7. Crosley Court, legally described as Lot 4 truck/trailer S/D 15-93-55; 

 

8. Blue Shak Rentals, legally described as Vera Van Epps Add’n exc Lot H1 & H2 SW4 

NW4 (2.47 a) 3-93-55; 

 

9. Marquardts Trail Acres, legally described as Lots 2–4 trail acres Lot G of Gov LT 1 

1- 93-55; 

 

10. Lakeview, legally described as LTS F1 & F2 Fitzgerald Park & E6’ W150’ orig. 

Fitzgerald Park 17-93-56; 



Yankton County 

36 

 

 

11. Black Walnut, legally described as N2 N2 NE4 exc Parcels 17-93-56; 

 

12. Shreve’s, legally described as Parcel A LT 5 NW4 SE4 3-93-55; 

 

13. Eastwinds, legally described as Blk 1 Edna’s Add’n & Par A W2 SW4 SE4 10-93-55; 

 

14. Country Manor Estates, legally described as LT 2, ex W170’ & NW4 NW4 exc 

E417.4’ & S417.4’ W482.2’ S220’ N578.7’ & Parcel C exc W170’ NW4 NW4 16- 

93-55; and 

 

15. Larson’s Landing, legally described as E2 LT 2 Shore Acres 27-93-56. 

 

Transmission Line - shall mean the electrical power lines that carry voltages of at 

least 69,000 volts (69 KV) and are primarily used to carry electric energy over 

medium to long distances rather than directly interconnecting and supplying electric 

energy to retail customers. (Amended September 3, 2024) 

Travel Trailer - A moveable vehicle with wheels designed or used as living and 

sleeping quarters or for recreation or business purposes, and such vehicles that have 

not had the wheels removed. Including campers, recreation vehicles, and trailer 

coaches. 

 

Truck or Equipment Terminal - A building, structure or place where six (6) or more 

commercially licensed trucks are rented, leased, kept for hire, stored, or parked for 

compensation, or from which trucks or transports, stored or parked on the property, 

are dispatched for hire as common carriers, and which may include warehouse space. 

 

Use - Use shall mean the purpose for which a lot or a building or structure, or any 

portion thereof, is designed, arranged, intended, occupies, or maintained, and “used” 

shall have a corresponding meaning. 

 

Utility - shall mean any entity engaged in this state in the generation, transmission or 

distribution of electric energy including, but not limited to, a private investor owned 

utility, cooperatively owned utility, and a public or municipality utility. (Amended 

September 3, 2024) 

Utility Facilities - Any above-ground structures or facilities, other than buildings, 

unless such buildings are used as storage incidental to the operation of such structures 

or facilities, owned by a governmental entity, a nonprofit organization, a corporation, 

a private citizen, or any entity defined as a public utility for any purpose and used in 

connection with the production or generation., transmission, delivery, collection, or 

storage of water, sewage, electricity, gas, oil, or electronic signals. (Amended August 

19, 2021) 

 

Variance - A variance is a relaxation of the terms of the zoning ordinance where such 

variance will not be contrary to the public interest and where, owing to conditions 

peculiar to the property and not the result of the actions of the applicant, a literal 

enforcement of the ordinance would result in unnecessary and undue hardship. As 

used in this ordinance, a variance is authorized only for area and size of structure or 



Yankton County 

37 

 

 

size of yards and open spaces; establishment or expansion of a use otherwise 

prohibited shall not be allowed by variance, nor shall a variance be granted because of 

the presence of nonconformities in the zoning district or uses in an adjoining district 

or because of conditions created by the landowner. 

 

Veterinary Clinic - A building or part of a building used for the care, diagnosis, and 

treatment of sick, ailing, infirm, or injured animals, and those who are in need of 

medical or surgical attention. Such clinics may or may not provide long-term lodging 

for ill or unwanted animals, or lodging for healthy animals on a fee basis. No outside 

runs, pens, or facilities shall be permitted. 

 

Veterinary Service - Shall be defined as a veterinary clinic except that outside pens 

and runs are allowed. 

 

Video Rental Shop - The use of land, building or structure for the purpose of renting 

video cassette recorders and/or video disc players and/or the rental of video tapes 

and/or discs. 

 

Vision Clearance - An unoccupied triangular space at the intersection of right-of-ways 

with other right-of-ways or at the intersection of right-of-ways with railroads. See 

Traffic Visibility Triangle. 

 

Warehouse - A building or part of a building used for the storage and distribution of 

goods, wares, merchandise, substances, or articles and may include facilities for a 

wholesale or retail commercial outlet, but shall not include facilities for a truck or 

transport terminal or yard. 

 

WECS Total Height - shall mean the highest point, above ground level, reached by a 

rotor tip or any other part of the Small or Large Wind Energy Conversion System. 

(Amended September 3, 2024) 

WECS Tower - shall mean the vertical structures that support the electrical, rotor 

blades, or meteorological equipment of the Small or Large Wind Energy Conversion 

System. (Amended September 3, 2024) 

Wholesale - The sale of commodities to retailers or jobbers and shall include the sale 

of commodities for the purpose of carrying on any trade or business even if the said 

trade of business is the consumer or end user of the commodity. 

 

Wind Turbines - shall mean any piece of electrical generating equipment that converts 

the kinetic energy of blowing wind into electrical energy using airfoils or similar 

devices to capture the wind. (Amended September 3, 2024) 

Windbreak - Any non-opaque manmade structure constructed of any material and 

erected adjacent to an animal feeding, calving, or other such lot of which its principal 

use is that of protecting livestock from the effects of the wind. 

 

Written certification - a document dated and signed by a practitioner, stating that in 

the practitioner’s professional opinion the patient is likely to receive therapeutic or 



Yankton County 

38 

 

 

palliative benefit from the medical use of cannabis to treat or alleviate the patient’s 

debilitating medical condition or symptom associated with the debilitating medical 

condition. This document shall affirm that it is made in the course of a bona fide 

practitioner-patient relationship and shall specify the qualifying patient’s debilitating 

medical condition. (Amended November 4, 2021) 

Yard - An open space at grade, other than a court or plaza, between a structure and the 

adjacent lot lines, unoccupied and unobstructed by any portion of a structure from the 

ground upward. 

 

Yard, Front - An open, unoccupied space on a lot facing a right-of-way and extending 

across the front of the lot between the side lot lines; measured from the road right-of- 

way to the structure. 

 

Yard, Rear - An open, unoccupied space extending across the rear of a lot from one 

side lot line to the other side lot line. 

 

Yard, Side - An open, unoccupied space on the same lot with a building situated 

between the building and sideline of the lot and extending through from the front yard 

to the required rear yard. Any lot line not the rear line or a front line shall be deemed 

a sideline. 

 

Zero Lot-Line – A common lot line on which a wall of a structure may be 

constructed. (Amended October 18, 2022) 

 

Zero Lot-Line Structure – A multi-family dwelling located on a single lot line that is 

(a) constructed as one (1) unit, (b) but is intended to be sold as separate sites and (c) 

otherwise meets all requirements of the zone in which it is located. (Amended 

October 18, 2022) 

 

Zone - An area within which, in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, 

certain uses of lands, buildings, and structures are permitted and certain others are 

prohibited, where yards and other open spaces are required, where lot areas, building 

height limits, and other requirements are established, all of the foregoing being 

identical for the zone and district in which they apply. 

 

Zoning Administrator - An official of the County appointed by the Chairman and 

confirmed by the County Commission, charged with the responsibility of 

administrating this ordinance. 



Yankton County 

39 

 

 

ARTICLE 5 

AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT (AG) 

Section 501 Intent  

 

The intent of Agricultural Districts (AG) is to protect agricultural lands and lands 

consisting of natural growth from incompatible land uses in order to preserve land 

best suited to agricultural uses and land in which the natural environment should be 

continued and to limit residential, commercial, and industrial development to those 

areas where they are best suited for reasons of practicality and service delivery. 

 

Section 503 Permitted Principal Uses and Structures  

 

The following principal uses and structures shall be permitted in an Agricultural 

District (AG): (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

1. Agriculture; 

 

2. Cemeteries; 

 

3. Day cares, family; 

 

4. Farms, ranches or orchards as defined herein; 

 

5. Farm buildings; 

 

6. Historic sites; 

 

7. Horticulture; 

 

8. Utility facilities; and 

 

9. Veterinary services. 

 

10. Cannabis Cultivation Facility 

 

11. Cannabis Dispensary 

 

12. Cannabis Product Manufacturing Facility 

 

13. Cannabis Testing Facility 

 

14. Solar Energy Conversion Systems (SECS) under 50 kilowatts alternating 

current (AC). (Amended December 19, 2023) 

Section 505 Permitted Accessory Uses and Structures  

 

The following accessory uses and structures shall be permitted in an Agricultural 



Yankton County 

40 

 

 

District (AG): (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

1. Accessory structures; 

 

2. Customary water irrigation systems, other than manure irrigation equipment; 

 

3. Farm drainage systems; 

 

4. Home and farm occupations; 

 

5. Roadside stands; 

 

6. Shelterbelts; 

 

7. Signs, banner; 

 

8. Signs, directional on-site; 

 

9. Signs, directional off-site; 

 

10. Signs, easement and utility; 

 

11. Signs, exterior off-site, pursuant to Article 14; 

 

12. Signs, flag; 

 

13. Signs, name and address plate; 

 

14. Signs, on-site; 

 

15. Signs, real estate; 

 

16. Stock dams; and  

 

 

Section 506 Permitted Special Uses (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

1. Dwellings, single family including modular homes pursuant to Section 516 

 

2. Dwellings, two-family pursuant to Section 516 

 

3. Dwellings, additional farm dwelling, in excess of one (1) pursuant to Section 

516 and 1509; 

4. Manufactured Homes, pursuant to Section 516 and 1509; 

 

5. Animal Feeding Operations (AFOs) Class B pursuant to Section 519 (2) and 

Section 519 (3); 

6. Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation, Existing are allowed a one-time 

expansion of 25 % over current operation size if the operation exists on an 



Yankton County 

41 

 

 

occupied farmstead of continuous property to the farmstead not to exceed 999 

animal units. . The species of animals pertaining to the expansion must be that 

of the existing operation. Performance standards of Section 519 are applicable 

to the expansion with exception to the setbacks found in the Facility Setback 

Chart in Section 519(2). All DANR requirements must be met. 

 

7. Agribusinesses are allowed on lots no smaller than five (5) acres. A deed 

restriction prohibiting any type of residential dwelling shall be required for 

agribusiness use only. 

Section 507  Conditional Uses (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

After the provisions of this Ordinance relating to conditional uses have been fulfilled, 

the Board of Adjustment may permit as conditional uses in an Agricultural District 

(AG): 

 

1. Agricultural, fertilizer, and chemical sales and applications; 

 

2. Agricultural product processing facilities; 

 

3. Aquaculture; 

 

4. Auction yards and barns; 

 

5. Bars; 

 

6. Bed and breakfast operations; 

 

7. Buying stations; 

 

8. Churches; 

 

9. Concentrated Animal Feeding Operations and Concentrated Animal Feeding 

Operation expansion over 25% of current operation size. 

10. Construction services; 

 

11. Day cares, group family home; 

 

12. Exhibition areas; 

 

13. Fairgrounds; 

 

14. Fireworks sales; 

 

15. Game farms; 

 

16. Game lodges; 

 

17. Golf courses; 



Yankton County 

42 

 

 

18. Grain elevators; 

 

19. Indoor shooting/archery ranges; 

 

20. Kennels; 

 

21. Landing Strips; 

 

22. Manufacturing, light; 

 

23. Motor vehicle tracks or play areas; 

 

24. Manure irrigation; 

 

25. Municipal, commercial, or residential central containment, sewage disposal, 

treatment, or application sites; 

26. Open sales areas; 

 

27. Outdoor shooting/archery ranges; 

 

28. Parks; 

 

29. Portable processing plants; 

 

30. Private recreation areas; 

 

31. Private shooting preserves; 

 

32. Quarries, pursuant to Section 1515; 

 

33. Remote fuel depots; 

 

34. Repair shops, auto-body; 

 

35. Repair shops, motor vehicle and equipment; 

 

36. Riding stables; 

 

37. Rodeo arenas; 

 

38. Salvage yards; 

 

39. Sanitary landfills or restricted use sites, permitted by the Department of 

Environment and Natural Resources (DENR); 

40. Solar Energy Conversion Systems (SECS) fifty (50) kilowatts alternating 

current (AC) and higher, pursuant to Article 29. (Amended December 19, 

2023) 

41. Spreading, injection, or other application of manure or animal waste generated 



Yankton County 

43 

 

 

from a concentrated animal feeding operation not permitted by Yankton 

County, shall be required to submit a waste management plan for land 

application of said manure within the Agricultural (AG) District. The waste 

management plan shall be the same as for a permitted site, pursuant to Section 

519(3); 

42. Temporary construction facilities; (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

43. Towers, pursuant to Article 25 & Article 26; 

 

44. Wildlife and game production areas; and 

 

45. Wind energy systems, pursuant to Article 26. 

 

46. Utility Facilities 

 

Section 509 Classification of Unlisted Uses  

 

In order to ensure that the zoning ordinance will permit all similar uses in each 

district, the Planning Commission and Board of Adjustment, upon its own initiative or 

upon written application, shall determine whether a use not specifically listed as a 

permitted, accessory, or conditional use in a Agricultural District shall be deemed a 

permitted, accessory, or conditional use in one or more districts on the basis of 

similarity to uses specifically listed. The review shall be heard at a regular meeting of 

the aforementioned bodies and may be required to adhere to the notification 

requirements as described in Section 1803(3-5). (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Section 511 Prohibited Uses and Structures  

 

All uses and structures which are not specifically permitted as principal, accessory, or 

conditional uses or approved as such within the provisions of Section 509 shall be 

prohibited. 

 

Section 513 Minimum Lot Requirements (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

1. The minimum lot area shall be twenty (20) acres; 

 

2. The minimum lot area shall be five (5) acres for any agribusiness as defined 

herein, pursuant to Section 506(7); 

3. The minimum lot width shall be five hundred (500) feet; 

 

4. The Zoning Administrator may allow a smaller minimum lot requirement 

where an established single-family home exists or where a permit for a single- 

family home is requested on an existing farmstead site. 

5. Lots of record, as defined herein, existing prior to adoption of this ordinance 

may be developed pursuant to Article 16 and as approved by the Zoning 

Administrator; 



Yankton County 

44 

 

 

Section 515 Minimum Yard Requirements (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

All yards must meet the following criteria as measured from the lot lines. This Section 

shall apply to all buildings and structures, including but not limited to decks and 

patios: 

 

1. There shall be a front yard of not less than a depth of fifty (50) feet; 

2. There shall be a rear yard of not less than a depth of fifty (50) feet; 

 

3. There shall be two (2) side yards, each of which shall not be less than fifty 

(50) feet; 

 

4. Buildings and structures on corner lots as defined herein shall maintain two 

(2) front yards for the property abutting the road right-of-ways; and 

 

5. Water and sewer or sanitary drainage systems shall be installed by a licensed 

installer and shall comply with all applicable South Dakota Department of 

Agriculture and Natural Resources regulations. 

6. Non-conforming lots of record that are allowed to develop must meet the 

following setbacks: All allowable uses 50’ Minimum Front Yard, 10’ 

Minimum Side Yard and 50’ Minimum Rear Yard. (Added June 21, 2022) 
 

 Lot Size Min. 

Front 

Yard 

Min. 

Side 

Yard 

Rear 

Yard 

Single 

Family 

Dwelling 

Under 

20 

Acres 

50’ 10’ 50’ 

Other 

Allowable 

Use 

Under 

20 

Acres 

50’ 10’ 50’ 

 

Section 516 New Residence Requirements (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

The requirements herein apply to all new residences including but not limited to 

single family dwellings, two family dwellings, and modular homes. 

 

1. Any new residence must acknowledge that any AFO and/or CAFO operation 

located within 1.5 miles of the new residence and that is operating at the time 

of the issuance of the new residence’s building permit may expand in the 

future without regard to setbacks from this new residence. Setbacks for 

already established residences still apply to expansion of these AFO and/or 

CAFO operations. This acknowledgement shall be attached to the building 

permit and include: 

a. A specific list of all operators of the AFO and/or CAFO operations 



Yankton County 

45 

 

 

which are allowed to expand without regard to this residence as noted 

above; 

b. A copy of South Dakota’s policy to protect agricultural operations 

from nuisance suits as defined in SDCL 21-10-25.1 through 21-10- 

25.6; Agricultural operations may include, but are not limited to, the 

following: the cultivation, harvesting, and storage of crops; livestock 

production, ground rig or aerial application of pesticides or 

herbicides; the application of fertilizer, including animal waste; the 

operation of machinery; the application of irrigation water; and other 

accepted and customary agricultural activities conducted in 

accordance with Federal, State, and County laws. 
c. Be signed by the building permit applicant; and 

d. A copy is given to all AFO and/or CAFO operators listed. If the AFO 

and/or CAFO operator sells the operation to a non-family member, this 

setback exemption from the new residence is not transferrable. Family 

members noted here include: siblings, children, grandchildren, nieces, 

and nephews. 

 

2. An additional dwelling unit by definition is allowed within the farmstead upon 

approval of the building permit application if it is to be occupied by other 

members of the family, provided the property is not transacted or prepared, 

platted, or described for transaction; and 

 

3. The Zoning Administrator may allow construction of single and multi-family 

dwelling units not in conformance with this provision only on those lands 

organized as a 501(d), non-profit religious and apostolic associations as 

described in the united States Tax Code, Prior to issuance of a building permit 

or permission to proceed said entity shall file the Articles of Incorporation and 

other requested documentation with the Zoning Administrator. Construction 

activities carried on under this provision shall be in conformance with all other 

provisions of this ordinance. 

 

Section 517 Traffic Visibility  

 

1. There shall be no obstructions, such as buildings, structures, grain bins, trees, 

wind breaks, baled agricultural products, or other objects within fifty (50) feet 

from the right-of-way. 

2. A traffic visibility triangle as defined herein shall be maintained at all road 

intersections, public and private, driveways, railway crossings, or similar 

situation as determined by the Zoning Administrator; and 

3. No perennial vegetation between the heights of thirty (30) inches and 

ten (10) feet shall encroach upon the right-of-way at the time of 

planting or future growth. The Zoning Administrator reserves the right 

to refer such requests to Township Supervisors, the County Highway 

Superintendent, or other officials. (Amended August 19, 2021) 

Section 519 Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation Performance Standards 

(Amended August 19, 2021) 

 



Yankton County 

46 

 

 

1. Conditional Use Permit Application Requirements. The following shall be 

submitted for the consideration of a Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation 

Conditional Use Permit: 

a. Site description information: 

i. The owners’, managers’, management company’s or similar 

entities’ name, address and telephone number. 

ii. A legal description of the site and proposed 911 address for the 

location. 

iii. The type and number of animals to be housed at the site. 

iv. Site diagram of all existing and proposed buildings and 

structures. 

v. Information on ability to meet designated setback requirements 

(Section 519(2)), including maps showing measured distances. 

vi. Information on the types of soils at the site, and whether there 

are any shallow aquifers and/or 100-year floodplain 

designations at or within one half mile of the proposed site. 

vii. Provide a Farm Service Agency wetland map. 

viii. Test boring location and test boring results may be required. 

The standards utilized by the South Dakota Department of 

Environment and Natural Resources for soil borings shall be 

followed. 
b. A facility management plan shall include: 

i. The methods utilized to dispose of dead animals shall be 

identified and shall be in compliance with the South Dakota 

Animal Industry Board. Temporary dead animal storage or 

disposal sites shall be a screened substantially built fence to 

hold up to removal and prevent scavenging, and or located out 

of site from neighboring dwellings and the adjacent right-of- 

way. 

ii. The methods utilized to control pests and flies. 

iii. A screening and/or buffering section to include the planting of 

trees and shrubs of adequate size to control wind movement 

and dispersion of dust and odors generated by the facility. The 

applicant of any naturally ventilated or open style CAFO must 

plant a shelter belt of trees between the proposed CAFO and 

shelterbelt shall run the length of the footprint within 250’ of 

the facility, include a minimum of five rows of trees consisting 

of both evergreen and deciduous species, be planted in the first 

year of obtaining a conditional use permit. For three 

consecutive years, all trees that die must be replaced within one 

growing season. The shelter belt must maintain 90% 

survivability while the conditional use permit is active. 

iv. A review of Industry Best Management practices including the 

use of bio-filters, pit additives, urine-feces separation systems, 

or other odor reduction technologies. Applicant shall identify 

which practices will be utilized. , subject to approval of 

Planning Commission and Board of Adjustment. 

v. A storm water management plan shall provide adequate slopes 

and drainage to divert storm water from confinement areas, 

while providing for drainage of water from said area, thereby 

assisting in maintaining dryer confinement areas to reduce odor 



Yankton County 

47 

 

 

production. 

vi. Road haul routes and road maintenance agreements for both the 

construction and operation of the facility shall be signed by the 

applicant and the local road authority and included in the CUP 

 

c. Waste Management Plan Requirements. An operational plan for 

manure collection, storage, treatment, and use shall be kept updated 

and implemented The plan shall include the following: 

i. All CUP applicants must submit and receive approval for a 

waste management plan to the Department of Environment and 

Natural Resources prior to obtaining a CUP. The waste 

management plan will list all fields and acres that are in the 

waste management plan and shall include expected manure 

application rates. 

ii. A state general permit is required if any of the following 

situations are met. 
1 Any CAFO greater than or equal to 1000 animal units. 

2 A general permit is required by the South Dakota 

Department of Environment and Natural Resources. 

3 A general permit is required by Yankton County as a 

condition of approval. 

4 The proposed site is located over a mapped shallow 

aquifer area as depicted on the Department of 

Environment and Natural Resources First Occurrence of 

Aquifer Materials in Yankton County, SD (Refer to South 

Dakota Department of Agriculture and Natural 

Resources). 
iii. Proposed maintenance of waste facilities. 

iv. Number and size of containment areas. 

v. Timeframe for removal of manure from storage containment. 

vi. Land application process and/or methods (surface, injection, 

etc.). 

vii. Legal description and map, including documented proof of area 

to be utilized for manure application. 

viii. If the applicant does not own all of the land which will be used 

for the spreading of waste, the applicant shall provide an 

enforceable lease, easement, or other written agreement as part 

of the application. The length of the agreement shall be such 

that the CAFO has adequate time to make other alternative 

arrangements in the event that the existing lease, easement, or 

other written agreement cannot be renewed. 

d. Prior to construction, such facilities shall obtain a Storm Water Permit 

for Construction Activities from the South Dakota Department of 

Environment and Natural Resources. This plan must be implemented 

upon the start of construction. 

e. The Yankton County Planning Commission, Board of Adjustment or 

the Planning Director may require additional information or conditions 

reasonably related to a concentrated animal feeding operation not 

contained in these regulations 



Yankton County 

48 

 

 

2. Facility Setback Requirements. New Animal Feeding Operations and waste 

facilities shall be located no closer than the following regulations prescribe. 

The applicant(s) of an animal feeding operation may request the required 

setback to any residence other than the applicant, active church, business, or 

school be lessened. This request shall only be approved after the applicant 

obtains signed waivers from all property owners within the setback distance. 

Any authorized person, business or governmental entity that is within the 

setback distance may waive the setback distance. The written waiver(s) shall 

be permanently attached to the approved conditional use permit. 

 

Facility Setback Chart (Feet) 

Class A B 

Animal Units 500 to 10,000 200 to 499 

Solid Manure System*   

Residence other than owner, active 

church, business, schools 

1.98 feet per A.U. 

(minimum 1,320) 

(maximum 1.5 miles) 

1,320 

Municipalities 2.2 feet per A.U. 

(minimum 2,640) 

(maximum 1.5 miles) 

2,640 

Liquid Manure System*   

Residence other than owner, active 

church, business, schools 

2.64 feet per A.U. 

(minimum 1,320) 

(maximum 1.5 miles) 

1,320 

Municipalities 2.64 feet per A.U. 

(minimum 2,640) 

(maximum 1.5 miles) 

2,640 

Any Style Manure System   

Public wells 1,000 1,000 

Private well 250 250 

Private well (operator’s) 150 150 

Lakes, rivers and streams 660 660 

Right-of-way line 330 330 

Property line delineating a change 

in ownership 

660 660 

100 year flood plain PROHIBITED PROHIBITED 

 

*Operations that utilize both solid and liquid manure have a blended setback, 

taking into account setback distances proportional to the number of animal units 

of each style of manure. Example: An operation w/1000 dry lot beef cattle and 

940 AU’s of finishing swine would have a setback of (1000 AU x 1.98ft.) + (940 

AU x 2.64 ft.) = 4462’ 

 

3. Manure application. New Animal Feeding Operations and waste facilities 

shall comply to the following: 



Yankton County 

49 

 

 

a. A review of weather conditions shall be conducted prior to application 

to minimize the potential for runoff and to mitigate effects upon 

neighboring properties. 

b. Animal waste shall be transported no further than five miles from the 

point of origination by equipment designed for direct application. 

Animal waste hauled within non-application or transportation 

equipment shall not be restricted as to distance. Both methods of 

transportation must comply with federal, state, and local load limits on 

roads, bridges, and other similar structures. 

c. All liquid manure shall be injected to provide for better agronomic 

benefits, to reduce the potential for runoff, and to minimize odor. 

Liquid manure may be surface applied if approved by the Department 

of Natural Resources for emergency discharge only. Documentation 

of this approval shall be maintained by the operator and be available 

upon request by the Planning Department. 

d. If irrigation is used for dewatering a lagoon (gray water) basin, these 

rules apply: 

i. Must be used on systems that disperse the liquid no higher than 

18” off the ground if no crop is actively growing on the field. 

ii. If a crop is actively growing on the field, the liquid must then 

be dispersed below the crop canopy. 

iii. No runoff or diffused spray from the system onto neighboring 

property or public right-of-way will be allowed. 

iv. No irrigation shall be applied when soils are water saturated, 

frozen, or covered with snow, or when other soil conditions 

would result in waste runoff. 
v. No irrigation over FSA designated wetlands. 

vi. No “big gun” type irrigation systems shall be used for liquid 

manure or dewatering lagoons or other manure containment 

systems. 

e. Manure should not be applied over frozen or snow covered ground. 

f. No pipes or drag lines may be permanently installed in the public 

right-of-way. 

g. The producer, or agent acting on behalf of the producer, shall inspect the land 

application equipment, land application sites and irrigation equipment, if used, on a 

daily basis while land application of process wastewater or manure is occurring. 

This inspection is to ensure that the land application equipment is not leaking and 

runoff from the land application site is not occurring. If a discharge or leak is found 

where process wastewater or manure is reaching any surface waters of the state, 

flowing onto property not owned by the producer, or not included in the nutrient 

management plan, the producer is responsible for taking immediate steps to stop the 

discharge or leak and report the leak to the county zoning office, state DENR and 

the affected landowner. The producer shall keep documentation of these inspections 

so the Zoning Administrator can review them upon request or during an inspection 

h. A notification section should be formulated by the applicant. It should be a 

reasonable attempt is to include the names, addresses, and phone numbers of all 

occupied residences and public gathering places, within one-half (1/2) mile of 

applicant’s manure application fields. The preferred hauling and application process 

should be detailed and include timetables of probable application periods. 

Application of manure on weekends, holidays, and evenings during the warmer 



Yankton County 

50 

 

 

seasons should be avoided whenever possible. Complaints could lead to having to 

give 48 hour notice in advance of manure applications. Annual notification advising 

of an upcoming 30 day window should be given. 
 

 
Manure Application Setback Chart 

 Injection or 

Incorporated within 24 

hours 

Surface 

Applied 

Irrigated 

Public wells (feet) 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Private wells (feet) 250 250 250 

Private wells 

(operator’s) (feet) 

150 150 150 

Lakes, rivers and 

streams (public 

drinking supply) 

(feet) 

1,000 1,000 1,000 

Lakes, rivers and 

streams (fisheries) 

(feet) 

250 660 660 

All public road right- 

of-ways (feet) 

10 10 100 

Municipalities (feet) 660 1,000 2,640 

Residence other than 

operator’s (feet) 

100 330 750 

 

 

Section 520 Conditional Use Permit for an Animal Feeding  Operation  Not  

Permitted if Applicant Applies for the Permit for the Purpose of Selling, Transferring, 

or Brokering. (Amended August 19, 2021) 
 

The Board of Adjustment shall not grant a Conditional Use Permit for an Animal 

Feeding Operation, Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation, and/or waste facility if 

the Applicant is applying for the Permit for the purpose of selling, transferring, or 

brokering the Permit. 
 

For the purposes of this Ordinance, any sale or transfer of the Permit from the 

Applicant to any other person or entity within five (5) years of the date that the Permit 

is issued shall be considered to be prima facie evidence that such Permit was obtained 

for the purpose of selling, transferring or brokering the Permit. The Board of 

Adjustment may hear and grant exceptions to this rule in the case of unforeseen life 

events that may force the sale of an operation. 



Yankton County 

51 

 

 

Any evidence that is presented by any person that any Building Permit and/or 

Conditional Use Permit for an Animal Feeding Operation, Concentrated Animal 

Feeding Operation, and/or waste facility was sought for the purpose of selling, 

transferring, or brokering the Permit shall be considered by the Zoning Administrator, 

Planning Commission, and/or Board of Adjustment in considering a new application 

for Conditional Use Permit. It may be the basis for a denial or revocation of the 

application, building permit, and/or a conditional use permit by the Board of 

Adjustment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Yankton County 

52 

 

 

ARTICLE 6 
 

LOW DENSITY RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (R1) 
 

Section 601  Intent  

 

The intent of Low Density Rural Residential Districts (R1) is to provide for 

residential uses of larger lots and other compatible uses in a pleasant and stable 

environment. 

 

Section 603  Permitted Principal Uses and Structures  

 

The following principal uses and structures shall be permitted in a Low Density Rural 

Residential District (R1): 

 

1. Day cares, family; 

 

2. Dwellings, single-family; 

 

3. Governmental services; 

 

4. Horticulture; 

 

5. Modular homes;(Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

6. Utility facilities. and (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

7. Solar Energy Conversion Systems (SECS) under 50 Kilowatts alternating 

current (AC) (Amended December 19, 2023) 

Section 605  Permitted Accessory Uses and Structures  

 

The following accessory uses and structures shall be permitted in a Low Density 

Rural Residential District (R1): 

 

1. An aggregate maximum total floor area of 4,000 square foot accessory 

building or buildings. Side wall height shall not exceed sixteen (16) feet as 

measured from the highest point of the finished floor at grade to the highest 

point of wall framing. (Amended May 19, 2020) 

2. Home occupations; 

 

3. Signs, banner; 

 

4. Signs, directional on-site; 

 

5. Signs, directional off-site; 



Yankton County 

53 

 

 

6. Signs, easement and utility; 

 

7. Signs, flag; 

 

8. Signs, name and address plate; and 

 

9. Signs, real estate. 

 

Section 607 Conditional Uses  

 

After the provisions of this Ordinance, relating to conditional uses have been fulfilled, 

the Board of Adjustment may permit as conditional uses in a Low Density Rural 

Residential District (R1): (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

1. Accessory agricultural structures; 

 

2. Bed and breakfasts; 

 

3. Campgrounds; 

 

4. Cemeteries; 

 

5. Home based sales; 

 

6. Greenhouses; 

 

7. Golf courses; 

 

8. Hobby farms; 

 

9. Horticultural sales; 

 

10. Kennels; 

 

11. Manufactured homes, pursuant to Section 1507; 

 

12. Manufacturing, light; 

 

13. Parks; 

 

14. Signs, off-site; 

 

15. Towers; and 

 

16. One Accessory Structure exceeding 4,000 square feet or Accessory Structures 

with an aggregate maximum total floor area exceeding 4,000 square feet 

and/or exceeding a sidewall height of sixteen (16) feet and . (Amended May 

19, 2020) 

 

17.  Utility Facilities 



Yankton County 

54 

 

 

Section 609 Classification of Unlisted Uses  

 

In order to insure that the zoning ordinance will permit all similar uses in each 

district, the Board of Adjustment, upon its own initiative or upon written application, 

shall determine whether a use not specifically listed as a permitted, accessory, or 

conditional use in a Low Density Residential District shall be deemed a permitted, 

accessory, or conditional use in one or more districts on the basis of similarity to uses 

specifically listed. The review shall be heard at a regular meeting of the 

aforementioned bodies and may be required to adhere to the notification requirements 

as described in Section 1803(3-5). 

 

Section 611 Prohibited Uses and Structures  

 

All uses and structures, which are not specifically permitted as principal, accessory, or 

conditional uses or approved as such within the provisions of Section 609, shall be 

prohibited. 

 

Section 613 Minimum Lot Requirements  

 

1. The minimum lot area shall be five (5) acres; and 

 

2. The minimum lot width shall be two hundred (200) feet. 

Section 615 Minimum Yard Requirements  

All yards must meet the following criteria as measured from the lot lines. This Section 

shall apply to all buildings and structures, including but not limited to decks, patios, 

and carports: 

 

1. There shall be a front yard of not less than a depth of thirty (30) feet, except 

when said lot is adjacent to or abutting a arterial or collector right-of-way then 

the depth shall be fifty (50) feet; 

2. There shall be a rear yard of not less than a depth of twenty (20) feet; 

 

3. There shall be two (2) side yards, each of which shall not be less than ten (10) 

feet; and 

4. Buildings and structures on corner lots as defined herein shall maintain two 

(2) front yards for the property abutting the road right-of-ways. 

Section 617  Traffic Visibility  

1. A traffic visibility triangle as defined herein shall be maintained at all road 

intersections, public and private, driveways, railway crossings, or similar 

situation as determined by the Zoning Administrator; and 

2. Structures, perennial, or similar vegetation planted on or immediately adjacent 

to a road right-of-way public shall be approved in writing by the Zoning 



Yankton County 

55 

 

 

Administrator prior to construction or planting. No such vegetation between 

the heights of thirty (30) inches and ten (10) feet shall encroach upon the 

right-of-way at the time of planting or future growth. The Zoning 

Administrator reserves the right to refer such requests to Township 

Supervisors, the County Highway Superintendent, or other officials. 



Yankton County 

56 

 

 

ARTICLE 7 
 

MODERATE DENSITY RURAL RESIDENTIAL 

DISTRICT (R2) 

 

Section 701 Intent  

 

The intent of Moderate Density Rural Residential Districts (R2) is to provide for 

residential uses of moderate lots and other compatible uses in a pleasant and stable 

environment. 

 

Section 703 Permitted Principal Uses and Structures  

 

The following principal uses and structures shall be permitted in a Moderate Density 

Rural Residential District (R2): 

 

1. Day cares, family; 

 

2. Dwellings, single-family; 

 

3. Governmental services; 

 

4. Horticulture; 

 

5. Modular homes; (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

6. Utility facilities. and (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

7. Solar Energy Conversion Systems (SECS) under 50 kilowatts alternating 

current (AC). ( Amended December 19, 2023) 

Section 705 Permitted Accessory Uses and Structures  

 

The following accessory uses and structures shall be permitted in a Moderate Density 

Rural Residential District (R2): 

 

1. An aggregate maximum total floor area of 2,400 square foot accessory 

structure or structures. Side wall height shall not exceed fourteen (14) feet as 

measured from the highest point of the finished floor at grade to the highest 

point of wall framing. (Amended May 19, 2020) 

2. Home occupations; 

 

3. Signs, banner; 

 

4. Signs, directional on-site; 

 

5. Signs, directional off-site; 



Yankton County 

57 

 

 

6. Signs, easement and utility; 

 

7. Signs, flag; 

 

8. Signs, name and address plate; and 

 

9. Signs, real estate. 

 

Section 707 Conditional Uses  

 

After the provisions of this Ordinance, relating to conditional uses have been fulfilled, 

the Board of Adjustment may permit as conditional uses in a Moderate Density Rural 

Residential District (R2): (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

1. Bed and breakfasts; 

 

2. Campgrounds, pursuant to 1521; 

 

3. Churches; 

 

4. Day cares, group family home; 

 

5. Dwellings, multi-family; 

 

6. Dwellings, two family; 

 

7. Manufactured homes, pursuant to Section 1507; 

 

8. Parks; 

 

9. Schools, public; 

 

10. Signs, off-site; 

 

11. Towers; and 

 

12. One Accessory Structure exceeding 2,400 square feet or Accessory Structures 

with an aggregate maximum total floor area exceeding 2,400 square feet 

and/or exceeding a sidewall height of fourteen (14) feet and . (Amended 

May 19, 2020) 

 

13. Utility Facilities 

Section 709 Classification of Unlisted Uses  

 

In order to insure that the zoning ordinance will permit all similar uses in each 

district, the Board of Adjustment, upon its own initiative or upon written application, 

shall determine whether a use not specifically listed as a permitted, accessory, or 

conditional use in a Moderate Density Residential District shall be deemed a 

permitted, accessory, or conditional use in one or more districts on the basis of 

similarity to uses specifically listed. 



Yankton County 

58 

 

 

Section 711 Prohibited Uses and Structures  

 

All uses and structures which are not specifically permitted as principal, accessory, or 

conditional uses or approved as such within the provisions of Section 709 shall be 

prohibited. 

 

Section 713 Minimum Lot Requirements  

 

1. The minimum lot area shall be one (1) acre or forty thousand (40,000) square 

feet; 

2. The minimum lot area for multi-family dwellings in areas of two (2) units 

shall be one (1) acre or forty thousand (40,000) square feet and an additional 

five thousand (5,000) square feet for each unit in excess of the first two (2); 

and 

3. The minimum lot width shall be one hundred (100) feet. 

Section 715  Minimum Yard Requirements  

All yards must meet the following criteria as measured from the lot lines. This Section 

shall apply to all buildings and structures, including but not limited to decks, patios, 

and carports: 

 

1. There shall be a front yard of not less than a depth of thirty (30) feet, except 

when said lot is adjacent to or abutting a arterial or collector right-of-way then 

the depth shall be fifty (50) feet; 

2. There shall be a rear yard of not less than a depth of twenty (20) feet; 

 

3. There shall be two (2) side yards, each of which shall not be less than ten (10) 

feet; 

4. Buildings and structures on corner lots as defined herein shall maintain two 

(2) front yards for the property abutting the road right-of-ways. 

Section 717 Traffic Visibility  

1. A traffic visibility triangle as defined herein shall be maintained at all road 

intersections, public and private, driveways, railway crossings, or similar 

situation as determined by the Zoning Administrator; and 

2. 2. Structures, perennial or similar vegetation planted on or immediately 

adjacent to a road right-of-way public shall be approved in writing by the 

Zoning Administrator prior to construction or planting. No such vegetation 

between the heights of thirty (30) inches and ten (10) feet shall encroach upon 

the right-of-way at the time of planting or future growth. The Zoning 



Yankton County 

59 

 

 

Administrator reserves the right to refer such requests to Township 

Supervisors, the County Highway Superintendent, or other officials. 



Yankton County 

60 

 

 

ARTICLE 8 
 

HIGH DENSITY RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (R3) 
 

Section 801  Intent  

 

The intent of High Density Rural Residential Districts (R3) is to provide existing 

concentrated residential subdivisions as recorded with the Register of Deeds and other 

compatible uses a pleasant and stable environment. Yet, not allow an extension of 

these areas beyond their respective boundaries as recorded at the time of zoning 

ordinance adoption. 

 

Section 803  Permitted Principal Uses and Structures  

 

The following principal uses and structures shall be permitted in a High Density Rural 

Residential Districts (R3): (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

1. Day cares, family; 

 

2. Dwellings, single-family; 

 

3. Governmental services; 

 

4. Horticulture; 

 

5. Modular homes; 

 

6. Utility facilities; and (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

7. Solar Energy Conversion Systems (SECS) under 50 kilowatts alternating 

current (AC). (Amended December 19, 2023) 

Section 805  Permitted Accessory Uses and Structures  

 

The following accessory uses and structures shall be permitted in a High Density 

Rural Residential Districts (R3): 

 

1. An aggregate maximum total floor area of 1,600 square foot accessory 

structure or structures. Side wall height shall not exceed twelve (12) feet as 

measured from the highest point of the finished floor at grade to the highest 

point of wall framing. (Amended May 19, 2020) 

2. Home occupations; 

 

3. Signs, banner; 

 

4. Signs, directional on-site; 

 

5. Signs, directional off-site; 



Yankton County 

61 

 

 

6. Signs, easement and utility; 

 

7. Signs, flag; 

 

8. Signs, name and address plate; and 

 

9. Signs, real estate. 

 

Section 807 Conditional Uses  

 

After the provisions of this Ordinance, relating to conditional uses have been fulfilled, 

the Board of Adjustment may permit as conditional uses in a High Density Rural 

Residential Districts (R3): (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

1. Day cares, group family home; 

 

2. Dwellings, multi-family; 

 

3. Dwellings, two family; 

 

4. Manufactured homes, pursuant to Section 1507; 

 

5. Parks; 

 

6. Signs, off-site; 

 

7. Towers; and 

 

8. One Accessory Structure exceeding 1,600 square feet or Accessory Structures 

with an aggregate maximum floor area exceeding 1,600 square feet and/or 

exceeding a sidewall height of twelve (12) feet and . (Amended May 19, 

2020) 

 

9. Utility Facilities 

Section 809 Classification of Unlisted Uses  

 

In order to insure that the zoning ordinance will permit all similar uses in each 

district, the Board of Adjustment, upon its own initiative or upon written application, 

shall determine whether a use not specifically listed as a permitted, accessory, or 

conditional use in a High Density Residential District shall be deemed a permitted, 

accessory, or conditional use in one or more districts on the basis of similarity to uses 

specifically listed. 

 

Section 811 Prohibited Uses and Structures  

 

All uses and structures which are not specifically permitted as principal, accessory, or 

conditional uses or approved as such within the provisions of Section 809 shall be 

prohibited. 

 

Section 813 Minimum Lot Requirements  



Yankton County 

62 

 

 

1. The minimum lot area shall be one-half (1/2) acre or twenty thousand (20,000) 

square feet and meeting DANR sewer requirements; 

2. The minimum lot area for multi-family dwellings shall be one-half (1/2) acre 

or twenty thousand (20,000) square feet and an additional five thousand 

(5,000) square feet for each unit in excess of the first two (2); and 

3. The minimum lot width shall be seventy five (75) feet. 

Section 815  Minimum Yard Requirements  

All yards must meet the following criteria as measured from the lot lines. This Section 

shall apply to all buildings and structures, including but not limited to decks, patios, 

and carports: 

 

1. There shall be a front yard of not less than a depth of thirty (30) feet, except 

when said lot is adjacent to or abutting an arterial or collector right-of-way 

then the depth shall be fifty (50) feet; 

2. There shall be a rear yard of not less than a depth of twenty (20) feet; 

 

3. There shall be two (2) side yards, each of which shall not be less than ten (10) 

feet; and 

4. Buildings and structures on corner lots as defined herein shall maintain two 

(2) front yards for the property abutting the road right-of-ways. 

Section 817  Traffic Visibility  

1. A traffic visibility triangle as defined herein shall be maintained at all road 

intersections, public and private, driveways, railway crossings, or similar 

situation as determined by the Zoning Administrator; and 

2. Structures, perennial or similar vegetation planted on or immediately 

adjacent to a road right-of-way public shall be approved in writing by 

the Zoning Administrator prior to construction or planting. No such 

vegetation between the heights of thirty (30) inches and ten (10) feet 

shall encroach upon the right-of-way at the time of planting or future 

growth. The Zoning Administrator reserves the right to refer such 

requests to Township Supervisors, the County Highway 

Superintendent, or other officials. 



Yankton County 

63 

 

 

ARTICLE 9 
 

MANUFACTURED HOME PARK DISTRICT (MHP) 
 

Section 901 Intent  

 

The intent of the Manufactured Home Park District (MHP) is to preserve and enhance 

property values by providing designated, distinctive areas in which manufactured 

homes may be situated as a residential dwelling. It is the intent that this district be a 

desirable, prominent area providing adequate open space and essentially the same 

considerations given to citizens of other residential districts. 

 

Section 903  Permitted Principal Uses and Structures  

 

The following principal uses and structures shall be permitted in a Manufactured 

Home Park District (MHP): 

 

1. Dwellings, single family; 

 

2. Manufactured homes, pursuant to Section 1409; 

 

3. Modular homes; 

 

4. Parks; (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

5. Utility facilities. and (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

6. Solar Energy Conversion Systems (SECS) under 50 kilowatts alternating 

current (AC). (Amended December 19, 2023 

Section 905  Permitted Accessory Uses and Structures  

 

The following accessory uses and structures shall be permitted in a Manufactured 

Home Park District (MHP): 

 

1. Accessory buildings; 

 

2. Garages; 

 

3. Home occupations; 

 

4. Signs, banner; 

 

5. Signs, directional on-site; 

 

6. Signs, directional off-site; 

 

7. Signs, easement and utility; 

8. Signs, flag; 

9. Signs, name and address plate; and 



Yankton County 

64 

 

 

10. Signs, real estate. 

 

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, or corporation to use any van body, truck 

body, semi-trailer, rail car, “shipping crate”, and/or any vehicle no longer used for its 

manufactured purpose as a storage shed, storage building, warehouse, or as living 

quarters. In addition, manufactured homes shall not be for any purpose other than 

residential living quarters. However, this shall not prevent the lawful parking of 

vehicles properly licensed, insured, and in regular use for their intended purpose to 

include ‘RVs’ and camping trailers. 

Section 907 Conditional Uses  

 

After the provisions relating to conditional uses have been fulfilled, the Board of 

Adjustment may permit as conditional uses in a Manufactured Home Park District 

(MHP): 

 

1. Day care centers; 

 

2. Day cares, family; 

 

3. Day cares, group family home; 

 

4. Dwellings, two family; 

 

5. Laundry facilities; 

 

6. Self-storage warehouses; 

 

7. Signs, bulletin board; 

 

8. Signs, ground and monument; 

 

9. Signs, mounted wall; 

 

10. Signs, off-site; 

 

11. Signs, portable; 

 

12. Swimming pools; and 

 

13. Towers and 

 

14. Utility Facilities 

 

Section 909 Classification of Unlisted Uses  

 

In order to insure that the zoning ordinance will permit all similar uses in each 

district, the Board of Adjustment, upon its own initiative or upon written application, 

shall determine whether a use not specifically listed as a permitted, accessory, or 

conditional use in a District shall be deemed a permitted, accessory, or conditional use 



Yankton County 

65 

 

 

in one or more districts on the basis of similarity to uses specifically listed. 

 

Section 911 Prohibited Uses and Structures  

No part of any park shall be used for nonresidential purposes, except such uses that 

are required for the direct servicing and well-being of park residents and for the 

management and maintenance of the park. (Amended May 19, 2020) 

Section 913 Minimum Lot Requirements  

1. The minimum park size is three (3) acres; 

 

2. The minimum park width is three hundred (300) feet; 

 

3. The minimum lot area for individual manufactured homes shall be four 

thousand (4,000) square feet; 

4. The density of any manufactured home park shall not exceed eight (8) units 

per gross acre; and 

5. The net density of any particular acre shall not exceed ten (10) units per net 

(gross reduced by required yards, right-of-ways, etc.) acre. 

Section 915 Minimum Yard Requirements  

 

All yards must meet the following criteria as measured from the lot line. This Section 

shall apply to all buildings and structures, including but not limited to decks, patios, 

and garages: 

 

1. The minimum distance required for the separation of a manufactured home 

from side and rear lot lines shall be ten (10) feet. In no case shall a 

manufactured home be closer than twenty (20) feet from another 

manufactured home; 

2. The minimum setback distance required from a private drive or public right- 

of-way shall be thirty (30) feet; and 

3. Accessory buildings shall not encroach on minimum yard requirements. 

 

Section 917 Manufactured Home Park Application Requirements  

 

 

The applicant follows the rezoning process pursuant to Articles 16 -21; 

 

1. A request for a change in zoning districts to a Manufactured Home Park 

District shall set forth the location and legal description of the proposed 

manufactured home park property; 

2. Each application for a manufactured home park shall be accompanied by a 

detailed site development plan incorporating the regulations established 

herein. The plan shall be drawn to scale and indicate the following: 



Yankton County 

66 

 

 

A. Location and topography of the proposed manufactured home park, 

including adjacent property owners and proximity to federal and state 

highways, and to county, township, or city roads; 

B. Exterior and interior property or individual lot lines with dimensions and 

square footage of the proposed park; 

C. Location and dimensions of all easements and right-of-ways; 

 

D. Proposed lot layout, including parking and recreational areas; 

 

E. General pedestrian access or transportation plan; 

 

F. General utility, water, and sewer plan with proximity and proposed 

connection to municipal and/or private utilities; and 

G. Site drainage plan and development impact on culverts, etc. 

 

3. Certification of compliance with all ordinances and regulations regarding 

manufactured home park licensing and zoning, health, plumbing, electrical, 

building, fire prevention, and all other applicable ordinances and regulations. 

Section 919  Manufactured Home Regulations within a Manufactured Home Park  

 

1. Manufactured home developments should be located to avoid the need 

for excessive traffic movement from the park to pass through an 

existing single-family residential area or area suitable for future single- 

family residential development; and 

 

2. Access and Right-of-way Requirements: 

 

A. All manufactured home spaces must be served from internal private right- 

of-ways within the manufactured home park and there shall be no direct 

access from a manufactured home space to a public right-of-way; 

 

B. Internal private right-of-ways must be graveled at a minimum and kept in 

good repair to prevent excessive potholes or pooling of water; 

 

C. A minimum of two (2) off right-of-way parking spaces shall be provided 

for each manufactured home lot; guest parking of one (1) parking space 

per five (5) manufactured home spaces shall be interspersed throughout 

the manufactured home park; 

 

D. No internal private right-of-way access to public right-of-ways shall be 

located closer than one hundred (100) feet to any public right-of-way 

intersection; 

 

E. Stop signs shall be placed at all public right-of-way intersections and 

Yield signs placed appropriately on internal private right-of-way; 

 

F. Entrance to manufactured home parks shall have direct connections to a public road 



Yankton County 

67 

 

 

and shall be designed to allow free movement of traffic on such public roads; and 

 

G. Travel surfaces should be of adequate widths to accommodate the 

contemplated parking and traffic load in accordance with the type of 

traveled way with twelve (12) feet minimum moving lanes for collector 

roads, twelve (12) feet minimum moving lanes for minor roads, and eight 

(8) feet minimum lanes for parallel parking. 

3. Other Requirements: 

 

A. Manufactured homes may be of single or multiple sections and shall not 

be less than fourteen (14) feet as assembled on the site, as measured across 

the narrowest portion; 

 

B. Manufactured homes shall be skirted with materials that are not highly 

combustible. The skirting shall be installed around the perimeter of the 

home from the chassis of the manufactured home to the prevailing grade; 

 

C. The hitch shall be removed; 

 

D. All electric service shall be underground; 

E. Each manufactured home lot shall be connected to a sanitary sewer system 

and central water system including individual utility service lines and 

valves as approved by the Zoning Administrator or their designee; 

 

F. If individual refuse collection points are not available, each manufactured 

home park shall provide screened areas or enclosed containers accessible 

for refuse collection of an adequate size for the number of units served, 

and shall provide for the disposal of such refuse on a regularly scheduled 

basis; 

 

G. Manufactured homes shall be anchored to the ground to resist tipping and 

lateral movement in the manner contemplated by the manufactured design; 

 

H. Not less than ten (10) percent of the gross site area shall be devoted and 

maintained as recreational facilities for occupant needs; 

 

I. No manufactured home shall occupy more than fifty (50) percent of the 

area of the lot on which it is situated; 

 

J. In accordance with Section 921 a landscaped buffer area of ten (10) feet in 

width shall be provided and maintained around the perimeter of the park, 

except where the park abuts a public right-of-way then the buffer shall be 

thirty (30) feet. This does not include those places where walks and drives 

penetrate the buffer; 

 

K. The manufactured home shall meet or exceed the federal Manufactured 

Home Construction and Safety Standards (HUD code); and 

 

L. Additional development requirements may be prescribed as conditions for approval 

when determined to be necessary to ensure protection of the neighboring property’s 



Yankton County 

68 

 

 

character, compatibility with land uses, and health and safety of manufactured home 

park occupants. 

 

Section 921  Traffic Visibility  

 

1. A traffic visibility triangle as defined herein shall be maintained at all  

road intersections, public and private, driveways, railway crossings, or 

similar situation as determined by the Zoning Administrator; and 

2. Structures, perennial or similar vegetation planted on or immediately 

adjacent to a road right-of-way public shall be approved in writing by the 

Zoning Administrator prior to construction or planting. No such vegetation 

between the heights of thirty (30) inches and ten (10) feet shall encroach 

upon the right-of-way at the time of planting or future growth. The Zoning 

Administrator reserves the right to refer such requests to Township 

Supervisors, the County Highway Superintendent, or other officials. 

 
 



Yankton County 

69 

 

 

ARTICLE 10 

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (C) 

Section 1001 Intent  

 

The intent of the Commercial District (C) is to provide commercial areas for those 

establishments that can function most satisfactorily in an area related to a rural or 

municipal fringe environment requiring major vehicular circulation routes and off 

right-of-way parking and loading due to the nature of the merchandise handled and 

the display space required. 

 

Section 1003 Permitted Principal Uses and  Structures  (Amended October 21, 2021) 

 

The following principal uses and structures shall be permitted in a Commercial 

District (C): (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

1. Arcades; 

 

2. Bars; 

 

3. Day care centers; 

 

4. Financial institutions; 

 

5. Funeral homes; 

 

6. Garages, public; 

 

7. Gasoline stations; 

 

8. Golf courses; 

 

9. Governmental services; 

 

10. Historic sites; 

 

11. Hotels; 

 

12. Indoor archery/shooting ranges; 

 

13. Lockers; 

 

14. Manufacturing, light; 

 

15. Motels; 

 

16. Open sales areas; 

 

17. Parks; 



Yankton County 

70 

 

 

18. Repair shops, auto-body; 

 

19. Repair shops, motor vehicle; 

 

20. Restaurants; 

 

21. Restaurants, drive-in; 

 

22. Restaurants, in-house; 

 

23. Retail sales; 

 

24. Self-storage warehouses; 

 

25. Service establishments; 

 

26. Theaters; 

 

27. Utility facilities; 

 

28. Veterinary clinics; 

 

29. Warehousing facilities; 

 

30. Wholesale sales. 

 

31. Cannabis Cultivation Facility 

32. Cannabis Dispensary 

33. Cannabis Product Manufacturing Facility 

34. Cannabis Testing Facility; (Amended December 19, 2023) 

35. Accessory Structures. and (Amended December 19, 2023) 

36. Solar Energy Conversion Systems (SECS) under 50 kilowatts alternating 

current (AC). (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

Section 1005 Permitted Accessory Uses and Structures  

 

Those accessory uses and structures normally appurtenant to the permitted principal 

uses and structures shall be permitted in a Commercial District (C) when established 

in conformance within the space limits of this district. 

 

1. Signs, banner; 

 

2. Signs, directional off-site; 

 

3. Signs, directional on-site; 

 

4. Signs, easement and utility; 



Yankton County 

71 

 

 

5. Signs, flag; 

6. Signs, name and address plate; 

 

7. Signs, on-site; and 

 

8. Signs, real estate. 

 

Section 1007 Conditional Uses  

 

After the provisions of this resolution relating to conditional uses have been fulfilled, 

the Board of Adjustment may permit as conditional uses in a Commercial District (C): 

(Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

1. Adult entertainment; 

 

2. Agricultural fertilizer and chemical manufacturing, sales, and applications; 

 

3. Agricultural product processing; 

 

4. Amusement parks; and 

 

5. Asphalt plants; 

 

6. Buying stations; 

 

7. Campgrounds; 

 

8. Concrete plants; 

 

9. Construction services; 

 

10. Dwellings, single-family; 

 

11. Dwellings, two-family; 

 

12. Grain elevators; 

 

13. Manufacturing; 

 

14. Manufacturing, distribution, sale, or storage of flammable, combustible, or 

hazardous material; 

15. Outdoor shooting/archery ranges. 

 

16. Sale and auction yards and barns; 

 

17. Salvage yards; 

 

18. Sanitary landfills and restricted use sites, permitted by DENR; 

 

19. Signs, off-site, pursuant to Article 14; 



Yankton County 

72 

 

 

20. Tank farms; 

21. Towers, pursuant to Article 25 & Article 26; 

 

22. Truck or equipment terminals; 

 

23. Veterinary services; (Amended May 19, 2020) 

 

24. Wind energy systems; (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

25. Firework Sales;. and (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

26. Solar Energy Conversion System (SECS) fifty (50) kilowatts alternating 

current (AC) and higher, pursuant to Article 29; and. (Amended 

December 19, 2023) 

 

27. Utility Facilities 

Section 1009 Classification of Unlisted Uses  

 

In order to insure that the zoning ordinance will permit all similar uses in each 

district, the Board of Adjustment, upon its own initiative or upon written application, 

shall determine whether a use not specifically listed as a permitted, accessory, or 

conditional use in a Commercial District (C) shall be deemed a permitted, accessory, 

or conditional use in one or more districts on the basis of similarity to uses 

specifically listed. 

 

Section 1011  Prohibited Uses and Structures  

 

All uses and structures which are not specifically permitted as principal, accessory, or 

conditional uses or approved as such within the provisions of Section 1009 shall be 

prohibited. 

 

Section 1013  Minimum Lot Requirements (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

1. The minimum lot area shall be two 40,000 sq. ft.; and 

 

2. The minimum lot width shall be seventy-five (75) feet. 

 

Section 1015 Minimum Yard Requirements  

 

All yards must meet the following criteria as measured from the lot lines. This 

Section shall apply to all buildings and structures, including but not limited to loading 

docks, decks, patios, and covered areas: (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

1. There shall be a front yard of not less than a depth of Fifty (50) feet; 

 

2. There shall be a rear yard of not less than a depth of twenty-five (25) feet; and 

 

3. Each side yard shall be not less than twenty-five (25) feet. 

Section 1017 Traffic Visibility  



Yankton County 

73 

 

 

1. A traffic visibility triangle as defined herein shall be maintained at all road 

intersections, public and private, driveways, railway crossings, or similar 

situation as determined by the Zoning Administrator; and 

 

2. Structures, perennial or similar vegetation planted on or immediately adjacent 

to a road right-of-way public shall be approved in writing by the Zoning 

Administrator prior to construction or planting. No such vegetation between 

the heights of thirty (30) inches and ten (10) feet shall encroach upon the 

right-of-way at the time of planting or future growth. The Zoning 

Administrator reserves the right to refer such requests to Township 

Supervisors, the County Highway Superintendent, or other officials. 



Yankton County 

74 

 

 

ARTICLE 11 
 

LAKESIDE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (LC) 
 

Section 1101  Intent  

 

The intent of the Lakeside Commercial District (LC) is to provide commercial areas 

for those establishments that can function most satisfactorily in an area directly 

related to a tourist, outdoor recreation, and residential environment requiring 

vehicular circulation routes and large off right-of-way parking due to the nature of the 

customer base and vehicle traffic. 

 

Section 1103  Permitted Principal Uses and Structures (Amended October 21, 

2021) 

 

The following principal uses and structures shall be permitted in a Lakeside 

Commercial District (LC): (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

1. Arcades; 

 

2. Bars; 

 

3. Day Cares, family; 

 

4. Day Cares, group family home; 

 

5. Financial institutions; 

 

6. Gasoline stations; 

 

7. Golf courses; 

 

8. Governmental services; 

 

9. Historic sites; 

 

10. Indoor archery/shooting ranges; 

 

11. Open sales areas; 

 

12. Parks; 

 

13. Restaurants; 

 

14. Restaurants, drive-in; 

 

15. Restaurants, in-house; 

 

16. Retail sales; 

 



Yankton County 

75 

 

 

17. Service establishments; 

18. Theaters; 

 

19. Utility facilities. 

 

20. Cannabis Cultivation Facility 

21. Cannabis Dispensary 

22. Cannabis Product Manufacturing Facility; (Amended December 19, 2023) 

23. Cannabis Testing Facility, and (Amended December 19, 2023) 

24. Solar Energy Conversion Systems (SECS) under 50 kilowatts alternating current (AC) 

(Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

Section 1105 Permitted Accessory Uses and Structures  

 

Those accessory uses and structures normally appurtenant to the permitted principal 

uses and structures shall be permitted in a Lakeside Commercial District (LC) when 

established in conformance within the space limits of this district. (Amended June 

21, 2022) 

 

1. Signs, banner; 

 

2. Signs, directional off-site; 

 

3. Signs, directional on-site; 

 

4. Signs, easement and utility; 

 

5. Signs, flag. 

 

6. Signs, name and address plate; 

 

7. Signs, on-site; 

 

8. Signs, real estate; and 

 

9. Accessory Structures. 

Section 1107 Conditional Uses  

After the provisions of this resolution relating to conditional uses have been fulfilled, 

the Board of Adjustment may permit as conditional uses in a Lakeside Commercial 

District (LC): 

 

1. Amusement parks; 

 

2. Campgrounds; 

 

3. Day care centers; 



Yankton County 

76 

 

 

4. Dwellings, multi-family; 

5. Dwellings, single-family; 

 

6. Dwellings, two-family; 

 

7. Exhibition areas; 

 

8. Garages, public; 

 

9. Hotels; 

 

10. Kennels; 

 

11. Motels; 

 

12. Outdoor shooting/archery ranges; 

 

13. Outdoor storage areas; 

 

14. Repair shops, auto-body; 

 

15. Repair shops, motor vehicle; 

 

16. Self-storage warehouses; 

 

17. Signs, off-site, pursuant to Article 14; 

 

18. Swimming pools; 

 

19. Towers, pursuant to Article 25 & Article 26; 

 

20. Utility Facilities 

 

21. Veterinary clinics; and 

 

22. Warehousing facilities; and 

 

23. Firework sales. 

Section 1109 Classification of Unlisted Uses  

In order to insure that the zoning ordinance will permit all similar uses in each 

district, the Board of Adjustment, upon its own initiative or upon written application, 

shall determine whether a use not specifically listed as a permitted, accessory, or 

conditional use in a District shall be deemed a permitted, accessory, or conditional use 

in one or more districts on the basis of similarity to uses specifically listed. 

Section 1111  Prohibited Uses and Structures  

All uses and structures which are not specifically permitted as principal, accessory, or 

conditional uses or approved as such within the provisions of Section 1109 shall be 



Yankton County 

77 

 

 

prohibited. 

 

Section 1113 Minimum Lot Requirements  (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

1. The minimum lot area shall be 20,000 sq. ft.; and 

2. The minimum lot width shall be seventy-five (75) feet. 

Section 1115 Minimum Yard Requirements  

 

All yards must meet the following criteria as measured from the lot lines. This 

Section shall apply to all buildings and structures, including but not limited to decks, 

patios, and carports: (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

1. There shall be a front yard of not less than a depth of fifty (50) feet; 

 

2. There shall be a rear yard of not less than a depth of twenty-five (25) feet; and 

 

3. Each side yard shall be not less than twenty-five (25) feet. 

 

Section 1117 Traffic Visibility  

1. A traffic visibility triangle as defined herein shall be maintained at all road 

intersections, public and private, driveways, railway crossings, or similar 

situation as determined by the Zoning Administrator; and 

2. Structures, perennial or similar vegetation planted on or immediately adjacent 

to a road right-of-way public shall be approved in writing by the Zoning 

Administrator prior to construction or planting. No such vegetation between 

the heights of thirty (30) inches and ten (10) feet shall encroach upon the 

right-of-way at the time of planting or future growth. The Zoning 

Administrator reserves the right to refer such requests to Township 

Supervisors, the County Highway Superintendent, or other officials. 



Yankton County 

78 

 

 

ARTICLE 12 
 

RURAL TRANSITIONAL DISTRICT (RT) 

 
Section 1201  Intent  

 

The intent of Rural Transitional Districts (RT) is to protect un-developed and under 

developed lands lying within or adjacent to expected growth corridors from 

unstructured or incompatible land uses in order to preserve land best suited for 

planned development to ensure practicality and service delivery. 

 

Section 1203  Permitted Principal Uses and Structures  

 

The following principal uses and structures shall be permitted in a Rural Transitional 

District (RT): 

 

1. Agriculture; 

 

2. Historic sites; 

 

3. Horticulture; (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

4. Utility facilities. and (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

5. Solar Energy Conversion systems (SECS) under 50 kilowatts alternating 

current (AC). (Amended December 19, 2023) 

Section 1205  Permitted Accessory Uses and Structures  

 

The following accessory uses and structures shall be permitted in a Rural Transitional 

District (RT): (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

1. Accessory structures. 

 

2. Customary water irrigation systems, other than manure irrigation equipment; 

 

3. Farm drainage systems; 

 

4. Home and farm occupations; 

 

5. Shelterbelts; 

 

6. Signs, banner; 

 

7. Signs, directional off-site; 

 

8. Signs, directional on-site; 

 

9. Signs, easement and utility; 



Yankton County 

79 

 

 

10. Signs, flag; 

 

11. Signs, name and address plate; 

 

12. Signs, on-site; 

 

13. Signs, real estate; 

 

14. Stock dams; and 

 

15. Temporary/seasonal roadside stands. 

Section 1207 Conditional Uses  

After the provisions of this Ordinance relating to conditional uses have been fulfilled, 

the Board of Adjustment may permit as conditional uses in a Rural Transitional 

District (RT): (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

1. Dwellings, single family. 

 

2. Individual septic or sewage treatment facilities, pursuant to Section 1513; 

 

3. Manure irrigation; 

 

4. Parks; 

 

5. Portable processing plants; 

 

6. Rural Developments, pursuant to Section 1219; 

 

7. Sanitary landfills or restricted use sites, permitted by the Department of 

Environment and Natural Resources (DENR); 

8. Spreading, injection, or other application of manure or animal waste generated 

from a concentrated animal feeding operation not permitted by Yankton 

County, shall be required to submit a waste management plan for land 

application of said manure within the Rural Transitional (RT) District. The 

waste management plan shall be the same as for a permitted site, pursuant to 

Section 519(3); 

9. Temporary construction facilities; and 

10. Utility Facilities. 

Section 1209  Classification of Unlisted Uses  

In order to insure that the zoning ordinance will permit all similar uses in each 

district, the Planning Commission and Board of Adjustment, upon its own initiative or 

upon written application, shall determine whether a use not specifically listed as a 

permitted, accessory, or conditional use in a Rural Transitional District (RT) shall be 



Yankton County 

80 

 

 

deemed a permitted, accessory, or conditional use in one or more districts on the basis 

of similarity to uses specifically listed. The review shall be heard at a regular meeting 

of the aforementioned bodies and may be required to adhere to the notification 

requirements as described in Section 1803(3-5). 

Section 1211 Prohibited Uses and Structures  

All uses and structures which are not specifically permitted as principal, accessory, or 

conditional uses or approved as such within the provisions of Section 509 shall be 

prohibited. 

 

Section 1213 Minimum Lot Requirements  

 

1. The minimum lot area shall be twenty (20) acres; 

 

2. The minimum lot width shall be five hundred (500) feet; 

 

3. The Zoning Administrator may allow a smaller minimum lot requirement 

where a permit for a single-family home is requested on an existing farmstead 

site, as defined herein; 

4. Lots of record, as defined herein, existing prior to adoption of this ordinance 

may be developed pursuant to Article 18 and as approved by the Zoning 

Administrator. 

5. An additional dwelling unit is allowed within the farmstead upon approval of 

the building permit application if it is to be occupied by other members of the 

family farm unit, provided the property is not transacted or prepared, platted, 

or described for transaction; and 

6. The Zoning Administrator may allow construction of single and multi-family 

dwelling units not in conformance with this provision only on those lands 

organized as a 501(d), non-profit religious and apostolic associations as 

described in the United States Tax Code. Prior to issuance of a building permit 

or permission to proceed said entity shall file the Articles of Incorporation and 

other requested documentation with the Zoning Administrator. Construction 

activities carried on under this provision shall be in conformance with all other 

provisions of this ordinance. 

Section 1215 Minimum Yard Requirements  

 

All yards must meet the following criteria as measured from the lot lines. This Section 

shall apply to all buildings and structures, including but not limited to decks and 

patios: 

 

1. There shall be a front yard of not less than a depth of thirty (30) feet, except 

when said lot is adjacent to or abutting an arterial or collector right-of-way 

then the depth shall be fifty (50) feet; 

2. There shall be a rear yard of not less than a depth of twenty (20) feet; 



Yankton County 

81 

 

 

3. There shall be two (2) side yards, each of which shall not be less than ten (10) feet; 

 

4. Buildings and structures on corner lots as defined herein shall maintain two 

(2) front yards for the property abutting the road right-of-ways; and 

 

5. The Zoning Administrator may allow construction of single and multi-family 

dwelling units not in conformance with this provision only on those lands 

organized as a 501(d), non-profit religious and apostolic associations as 

described in the United States Tax Code. Prior to issuance of a building permit 

or permission to proceed said entity shall file the Articles of Incorporation and 

other requested documentation with the Zoning Administrator. Construction 

activities carried on under this provision shall be in conformance with all other 

provisions of this ordinance. 

Section 1217 Traffic Visibility  

 

1. A traffic visibility triangle as defined herein shall be maintained at all road 

intersections, public and private, driveways, railway crossings, or similar 

situation as determined by the Zoning Administrator; and 

2. Structures, perennial or similar vegetation planted on or immediately adjacent 

to a road right-of-way public shall be approved in writing by the Zoning 

Administrator prior to construction or planting. No such vegetation between 

the heights of thirty (30) inches and ten (10) feet shall encroach upon the 

right-of-way at the time of planting or future growth. The Zoning 

Administrator reserves the right to refer such requests to Township 

Supervisors, the County Highway Superintendent, or other officials. 

Section 1219  Development Standards  

 

1. All platted lots shall be part of planned development or subdivision; 

 

2. All planned developments or subdivisions shall be platted with a minimum of 

four platted lots and recorded with the Register of Deeds; 

3. The minimum lot area shall be one (1) acre; 

 

4. The minimum lot width shall be two hundred (200) feet; 

 

5. All yards must meet the following criteria, which shall apply to all buildings 

and structures, including decks, patios, and car ports: 

a. Front yard of not less than a depth of thirty (30) feet; 

 

b. Rear yard of not less than a depth of twenty (20) feet; and 

 

c. Each side yard shall not be less than a width of ten (10) feet. 

 

6. The proposed development must have controlled public road access; 



Yankton County 

82 

 

 

7. Planned developments or subdivisions shall not be located within the 100-year 

floodplain; 

8. All lots within a planned development or subdivision shall be served by a 

Department of Environment and Natural Resources approved water system; 

9. A site plan and topographic maps shall be submitted with the building permit 

application, said plan and maps shall include, at a minimum: 

a. Proposed site layout; 

 

b. Storm water drainage; 

 

c. Roads and streets, including ingress and egress; and 

 

d. Water and sewer service. 

 

10. Water and sewer or sanitary drainage systems shall be installed by certified 

plumber and shall comply with all applicable South Dakota Department of 

Environment and Natural Resources regulations. 

 



 

Low Density Rural {R1) 
 
Section 613 Minimum Lot Requirements 

1. The minimum lot area shall be one-hundred thirty thousand six 

hundred eighty (130,680) sq. ft or eighty-seven thousand one hundred 

twenty (87,120)? sq. ft. five (5) acres; and  

NOTE: It was asked if the campground option for a conditional use in R-1 

could be eliminated? 

                                        

Moderate Density Rural (R2) 

Section 713 Minimum Lot Requirements 

1. The minimum lot area shall be one (1) acre or forty thousand (40,000) 
square feet;  

 

 
HIGH DENSITY RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (R3) 

 
Section 801 Intent 

 
The intent of High Density Rural Residential Districts (R3) is to provide 

existing concentrated residential subdivisions as recorded with the Register 

of Deeds and other compatible uses a pleasant and stable environment. 

Extension of these areas is at the discretion of the Planning Commission and County 

Commission. Yet, not allow an extension of these areas beyond their 

respective boundaries as recorded at the time of zoning ordinance 

adoption. 

 
  Section 813 Minimum Lot Requirements 
 

1. The minimum lot area shall be one-half acre or twenty thousand (20,000) sq. ft. 
and meeting DANR sewer requirements. 

 
Commercial (C) 
 
Section 1013 Minimum Lot Requirements (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

 1. The minimum lot area shall be twenty thousand (20,000) sq. ft. two 

40,000 sq. ft.; and 

 
 



Section 513 Minimum Lot Requirements (Amended August 19, 2021) 
 

1. The minimum lot area shall be twenty (20) acres; The base density 
permitted in the Agricultural district is one (1) dwelling unit per quarter-
section to be placed where two (2) section lines intersect with a 
minimum lot area of five (5) acres. All existing dwellings, including 
those on parcels of record are counted towards calculation of overall 
base density per quarter section. Rights have been transferred from a 
quarter section shall be counted against the base density in the quarter 
section they have been transferred from;  

 
2. The minimum lot area shall be five (5) acres for any agribusiness as 

defined herein, pursuant to Section 506(7); 

3. The minimum lot width shall be two hundred (200) five hundred (500) 
feet; NOTE: Should we consider setback change also. 

 
4. The Zoning Administrator may allow a smaller minimum lot 

requirement where an established single-family home exists or where 

a permit for a single-family home is requested on an existing farmstead 

site. 

5. Lots of record, as defined herein, existing prior to adoption of this 

ordinance may be developed pursuant to Article 16 and as approved 

by the Zoning Administrator; 



Applicant 

Yankton County Planning Commission 

Yankton County Board of Adjustment 

Steven D Slowey - PLAT 

Date filed: l 1/26/2024 

District type: □ AG □ Rl-Low O R2-Moderate O R3-High □ C-Comm.

0LC- Lakeside Commercial D RT-Rural Transitional 
[8J ETJ - City Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

Variance needed: 
□Section 513 (4) - Existing Farmstead/Home D Section 515 D Section 705

North Side/ Yard lot line: 

East Side / Yard lot line: 

D Section 715 D Section 805 

D Other 605 

feet or no closer than feet to the lot line. 

feet or no closer than ___ feet to the ___ lot line. 

South Side / Yard lot line: feet or no closer than feet to the lot line. 
---- ---- --� 

West Side / Yard lot line feet or no closer than feet to the ___ lot line. 

Accessory Building Size allowed: 

Proposed building size: 

Proposed sidewall height: 

Affects Section: 

NOTE: 

Plat of Tract 2 ofYaggie's Addition in the Nl/2 SEl/4 of Section 35, Township 94 North, Range 
56 West of the 5th P.M., Yankton County, South Dakota containing 665,600 S.F (15.28 acres 
more or less) 

Planning Commission date: 4/82025 

Board of Adjustment date: 4/15/2025 

Time: 

Time: 











Longitude 

-97 .41949137828337

Latitude 

42.91499413853878 

Permit Number 

PLAT2420 

Parcel Number 

10.035.300.100 

Permit Status 

Approved Active 

Permit Fee 

100 

Total Due 

100 

Was fee paid? 

Yes 

Receipt Number 

9121 

Application Accepted By 

Bill Conkling 

Site Plan Checked By 

Gary Vetter 

PLAT PERMIT 



Is location in floodplain? 

No 

Existing Zoning 

City ETJ 

Size of the Current Parcel 

144 

Current Legal Description 

N2 SW4 & N2 SE4 EXC PARCELS A & B NE4 SE4 & EXC TR 1 

Applicant Name 

Steven Slowey 

Applicant Phone 

6056658092 

Applicant Address 

201 Walnut St, Yankton 

Applicant Email Address 

bkennedy@stockwellengineers.com 

Name of the Surveyor / Engineer 

Brett Kennedy 

Surveyor/ Engineer Address 

201 Walnut St 

Surveyor/ Engineer Phone 

6056658092 

Surveyor/ Engineer Email 

bkennedy@stockwel lengi neers.com 

YAGGIE'S ADON 



Surveyor/ Engineer Contact Person 

Brett Kennedy 

Owner Name 

Steven Slowey 

Owner Phone 

6056658092 

Owner Address 

201 Walnut St, Yankton 

Owner Email Address 

bken nedy@stockwellengineers.com 

Location of Property 

Lat: 42.914994 Lon: -97.419491 

Section Township Range 

35-94-56

Tract or Lot Number 

Tract 2 

Number of Acres Being Platted 

15 

Addition Name 

Yaggie's Addition 

Powered by Esri 



How is the Property Currently Being Used 

AG 

How Will the Property Be Used 

AG 

Is this Property an Existing Farmstead 

No 

If a Farmstead, How Many Acres Surround it 

0 

Has the Plat Been Approved By the City of Yankton 

Yes 

Is Owner Signature Notarized 

Yes 

Do you have Signatures and Approval from the Road Authority 

Yes 

Do you have the County Treasuer's Signature 

Yes 

Insert Plat Here 

PDF 
PLAT-.pdf 

667.8KB 



Applicant Signature 

ApplicantSignature-.jpg 

Owner Signature 

OwnerSignature-.jpg 

Date of Application Submission 

Nov 26, 2024 


	PC Agenda 4-8-2025
	PC Minutes 3-11-2025
	Michels Road and Stone - Conditional Use Permit
	Central Specialties, Inc – Conditional Use Permit
	Discussion of Proposed Ordinance Changes
	OrdRev 04-25 Red Lines Only
	Yankton County Ordinance Rev 04-25
	Original Zoning Proposal - Redline

	Slowey - Plat



